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Dear Shareholders,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 29th Boards’ Report together with the Financial Statements from  
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 along with annexure thereto and Report of Auditor's thereon.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
Your company has prepared its standalone and consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year 2022-23 in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as required by Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made thereunder. The following are the key financial highlights of the company's operations:

a) Consolidated financial results
(In INR Lakhs)

Particulars 1 April 2022 to  
31 March 2023

1 April 2021 to 
 31 March 2022

Revenue from contract with customers (I) 3,63,280 2,99,691
Other income (II) 2,730 2,782
Total Income (III = I + II) 3,66,010 3,02,473
Total Expenditure (IV) 2,97,978 2,45,083
Profit before exceptional items and taxes 68,032 57,390
Share of loss of an associate & a JV (V) (928) (1256)
Net Profit Before Tax (VII = III – IV+ V) 67,104 56,134
Total Tax Expense 20,130 10,234
Net Profit After Tax 46,974 45,900

b) Standalone financial results
(In INR Lakhs)

Particulars 1 April 2022 to  
31 March 2023

1 April 2021 to 
 31 March 2022

Revenue from contract with customers (I) 45, 361 38,029
Other income (II) 4,480 4,764
Total Income (III = I + II) 49,841 42,793
Total Expenditure (IV) 37,518 35,888
Net Profit Before Tax (V = III – IV) 12,323 6,905
Total Tax Expense 3,993 2,100
Net Profit After Tax 8,330 4,805

2. PERFORMANCE & STATE OF THE COMPANY AFFAIRS:
With effect from 22nd April 2022, your Company relocated its registered office from “13th Floor Ramky grandiose 
Ramky Towers Complex Gachibowli Telangana- 500032” to “Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge 
City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad, Telangana 500081”. The registered office remains within the local limits of 
Hyderabad city.

 Further, the financial performance of the Company for FY 22-23 is as provided below: -

 •  On a Consolidated basis, the Company recorded a total revenue of INR 3,66,010 lakhs during the financial year 
that ended on 31 March 2023 (the corresponding revenue for the previous financial year was INR 3,02,473 
lakhs).

 •  On a Consolidated basis, the Company made a Net Profit after Tax for the current year amounting to  
INR 46,974 lakhs as compared to the previous financial year Net Profit after Tax of INR 45,900 lakhs.
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 •  On a Standalone basis, the Company recorded a total revenue of INR 49,841 lakhs during the financial year 
that ended on 31 March 2023 (the corresponding revenue for the previous financial year was INR 42,793 
lakhs).

 •  On a Standalone basis, the Company made a Net Profit after Tax for the current year amounting to INR 8,330 
lakhs as compared to the previous financial year Net Profit after Tax of INR 4,805 lakhs.

  (Amounts mentioned in the point no. 1 & 2 are rounded off to the nearest amount in lakhs)

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS IF ANY:
Your Company is one of Asia's largest and leading integrated waste management organization that aims to make this 
world a better place. The Company along with its subsidiaries brings sustainability to the core by dealing in Waste 
Management, Recycling, Environmental Services, Consultancy, Facilities Management, Car Park Management, and 
Construction & Demolition. Moreover, the Company has extensive footprints across 60 operating locations spread 
across the world.

During the financial year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures have changed 
the nature of Business

4. SHARE CAPITAL AS ON 31ST MARCH 2023:
During the financial year under review, there were no changes in the Company’s Authorised, Issued, Subscribed 
and Paid-up share capital except conversion of 11,10,909 Optionally Convertible and Redeemable Preference 
Shares issued to Metropolis Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. having face value of Rs. 15/- each into 52,217 Class A 
Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each.

  A summary of the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed, & Paid-up Share Capital of your Company as on  
31 March 2023 is as follows:

 Authorised Share Capital:
(In INR)

Equity Shares:
Class A - 20,25,22,450 shares of INR10/- each. 2,02,52,24,500
Class B - 100 shares of INR 10/- each. 1,000
Preference shares:
Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares – 1,00,000 shares of 
INR100/- each.

1,00,00,000

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares – 13,44,000 shares of 
INR15/- each.

2,01,60,000

Redeemable Preference Shares – 71,145 shares of INR100/- each. 71,14,500
Total 2,06,25,00,000

 Issued, Subscribed, & Paid-up Share Capital:

(In INR)

Equity Shares:
Class A – 42,29,575 shares of INR10/- each. 4,22,95,750
Class B - 100 shares of INR10/- each. 1,000
Preference shares:
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares – 2,28,563 shares of 
INR15/- each.

34,28,445

Total 4,57,25,195
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5. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME:
During the financial year under review, your Company has not granted any Employee Stock Options to any of its 
employees. 

The Board of the Company at its meeting held on 2 May 2019 and based on the recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Company, approved the Share Option Plan of 84,594 equity shares (ESOP 
Plan- I) for Employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries and share option plan of 4,893 equity shares (ESOP- 
Plan-II) for key Employees. This was subsequently approved by the Members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary 
General Meeting held on 2 May 2019.

The report on Employee Stock Option Scheme disclosures as required under Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure-I to this report.

6. RESERVES:
During the financial year under review, on standalone basis, the Company has transferred INR 206 lakhs into the 
Shares based payment reserve, and profit for the year INR 8,330 lakhs in the retained earnings. The total securities 
premium is Rs. 9,281 lakhs at the end of FY 22-23.

7. DIVIDEND:
With a view to conserve resources for future expansion of Company’s business, your directors have found it 
prudent not to recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
The Board of Re Sustainability Limited is a balanced Board, comprising Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
The present composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge, and experience. 
The members of your Company’s Board are eminent persons of proven competence and integrity. Besides 
experience, strong financial acumen, strategic astuteness and leadership qualities, they have a significant degree 
of commitment towards the Company, and they devote adequate time to the meetings. The Board meets at 
regular intervals to discuss on various developments in the Company / business policy and strategy apart from 
other Board business items.

As on 31 March 2023, the Board of your Company comprises the following:

S. No Name Designation DIN

1 Mr. BS Shantharaju Chairman & Independent Director 00068501

2 Mr. Narayan K. Seshadri Independent Director 00053563

3 Mrs. Hwee Hua Lim Nominee Director 08305430

4 Mrs. Vaishali Nigam Sinha Independent Director 02299472

5 Mr. Rohan Rakesh Suri Nominee Director 07074450

6 Mr. M. Goutham Reddy Managing Director 00251461

7 Mr. Masood Alam Mallick CEO & Whole time Director 01059902

8 Mr. Anil Khandelwal
Whole time Director

(Designated as Joint Managing Director)
02552099

9 Ms. Simrun Mehta Nominee Director 09118938

10 Mr. Suveer Kumar Sinha Nominee Director 09708143
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 As on 31 March 2023, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of your Company comprise of the follows:

S. No Name Designation
1 Mr. M. Goutham Reddy Managing Director

2 Mr. Masood Alam Mallick CEO & Whole time Director

3 Mr. Anil Khandelwal Whole time Director (Designated as Joint Managing Director)

4 Mr. Pankaj Kumar Maharaj Chief Financial Officer

5 Mr. Govind Singh Company Secretary

The details relating to Directors and KMP’s and the 
changes during the financial year and subsequent 
to financial year till the date of this report are 
mentioned herein below:

•  Mr. M Goutham Reddy (DIN 00251461), was 
re-appointed as the Managing Director of the 
Company, for a period of 3 (three) years with 
effect from 25 September 2022.

•  Mr. Narayan K Seshadri (DIN 00053563) was 
re-appointed as an Independent Director of 
the Company for a second term of 5 years with 
effect from 7 May 2022.

•  Mr. Masood Alam Mallick (DIN 01059902) was 
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
of the Company with effect from 24 August 
2022.

•  Mr. Anil Khandelwal (DIN: 01059902) resigned 
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company 
with effect from the close of business hours 
of 14 August 2022 and continued as the Joint 
Managing Director of the Company.

•  Mr. Pankaj Maharaj was appointed as the Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company with effect 
from 24 August 2022.

•  Ms. Simrun Mehta (DIN 09118938) was appointed 
as Nominee Director of the Company in Board 
Meeting held on 24 August 2022.

•  Mr. Suveer Sinha (DIN 09708143) was appointed 
as Nominee Director of the Company in Board 
Meeting held on 24 August 2022.

•  Mrs. Vaishali Nigam Sinha (DIN 02299472) 
resigned as the Independent Director of the 
company with effect from the close of business 
hours of 26 May 2023.

•  Mr. Anil Khandelwal (DIN: 01059902) resigned 
as the Whole Time Director (designated as Joint 
Managing Director) of the Company with effect 
from the close of business hours of 8 August 
2023.

9.  STATEMENT ON DECLARATION FROM  
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors 
of the Company have submitted declarations that 
each of them meets the criteria of independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and there 
has been no change in the circumstances which may 
affect their status as Independent Director during 
the financial year. The Company has also received a 
declaration from all the Independent Directors that 
they have registered their names in the Independent 
Directors Data Bank.

The Independent Directors of the Company have 
complied with the code for Independent Directors 
prescribed in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

10. AUDITORS:
A. Statutory Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, M/s S. R. Batliboi 
& Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
Hyderabad (Firm Registration No. 101049W/
E300004) were re-appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company by the Shareholders 
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 
30 September 2022 for a period of five years 
commencing from the conclusion of the 28th 
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 
33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company.

B. Secretarial Auditor:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, The Board, on the 
recommendation of Audit Committee, had 
appointed M/s R & A Associates, Company 
Secretaries, Hyderabad as the Secretarial Auditors 
of the Company at the Board meeting held on  
24 August, 2022 for the financial year 2022-23.
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C. Internal Auditor:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section138 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee had 
appointed M/s KPMG India, Chartered Accountants, 
Hyderabad (Firm Registration No. BA-62445) as 
Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 in the 
Board Meeting held on 3 June, 2022.

D. Cost Auditor:
Pursuant to the Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Company has not appointed any 
Cost Auditor as the Central Government has not 
prescribed Cost Audit for any of the activities of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. Accordingly, 
the maintenance of cost records as specified by 
the Central Government is not applicable on the 
Company.

11.  DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED 
BY AUDITOR UNDER SECTION 143(12):
During the year under review, there were no frauds 
reported by the Auditors as provided under Section 
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

12.  EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE 
BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RES-
ERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DIS-
CLAIMER MADE BY STATUTORY AUDITOR 
AND SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

A. Statutory Auditor:
The Auditors’ Report(s) to the Members of the 
Company in respect of the Standalone Financial 
Statements and the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 
2023 are self-explanatory. During the year under 
review, no observation was raised by the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for which Board 
explanation is required.

B. Secretarial Auditor:
The Secretarial Auditors have submitted their 
report, confirming compliance by the Company 
of all the provisions of applicable corporate laws. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 
ended 31 March 2023 in Form MR-3 is annexed to 
this Board’s Report as Annexure-II and forms part 
of this Report. Following observation was raised 
by the Secretarial Auditors in their report for which 
explanation is provided hereinbelow:-

Observations Explanation by the 
Board

There was delay in 
filing of Form MGT-
14 in connection with 
the Special Resolution 
passed in the Annual 
General Meeting held 
on 30 September 2022 
for Alteration of Arti-
cles of Association of 
the Company.

Due to transition from 
MCA Version 2 to Ver-
sion 3, there was an 
inadvertent delay in 
submitting the form, 
however, this was rec-
tified by filing the form 
with an additional fee 
for the delayed period.

13.  COMPLIANCE TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
Your Company is in compliance with the provisions 
of Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining 
to the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

14.  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES 
OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:
The Company is covered under the definition of 
Infrastructure project and facilities as prescribed in 
Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, 
except sub section 1 other provisions of section 186 
are not applicable.

However, particulars of loans given, investment 
made and guarantee given and securities provided 
during the year under review have been disclosed in 
notes of the Audited Standalone financial statements 
for the Financial Year 2022-23.

15.  MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSI-
TION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BE-
TWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINAN-
CIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE 
OF THE REPORT
No material changes and commitments have 
occurred after the close of the year till the date of 
this Report, which may affect the financial position 
of the Company.

16.  THE WEB ADDRESS WHERE ANNUAL RE-
TURN REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (3) 
OF SECTION 92 HAS BEEN PLACED:
As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act 
and Rules framed thereunder, the copy of the Annual 
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Return for FY 2022-23 is uploaded on the website of 
the Company and the same is available at web-link
https://resustainability.com/investors/

17.  DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT  
VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
During the financial year, no Subsidiary/Joint venture/
Associate Companies have become or ceased to 
be the Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ Associates of the 
Company, as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 except following:-

1.  Re Sustainability Solutions Private Limited, the 
subsidiary of Re Sustainability Limited has acquired 
99% stake in Saidpura Envirotech Private Limited 
on 26 May 2022.

2.  Hyderabad RDF WTE Private Limited was 
incorporated as a stepdown Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary Company on 4 July 2022.

3.  Re Sustainability International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., 
subsidiary of Re Sustainability Limited has formed 
a Joint Venture by acquiring 49% shareholding in 
Re Sustainability Dulsco Services WLL Qatar on  
21 August 2022.

4.  Mumbai Waste Management Limited, Subsidiary 
of Re Sustainability Limited has transferred its 
entire holding (i.e. 55% of total share capital) 
in Bio- Medical Waste Treatment Plant Private 
Limited, Pathankot to Mr. Sushil Kumar Saini on  
12 August 2022.

5.  Ramky Enviro Engineers Middle East FZ LLC invested 
incorporated Re Sustainability Environmental 
Services LLC (One Person Company) as 100% 
subsidiary on 9 June 2022.

6.  The Company sold its entire holding (i.e. 51% of 
total share capital) in Visakha Solvents Limited 
to Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private 
Limited on 28 June 2022.

A detailed report on the performance of the 
aforesaid Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate 
Companies and their contribution to the overall 
performance of the Company during the period 
under review is provided in form AOC-1, attached 
herewith as Annexure-III.

18. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS:
The Board Meetings were held at regular intervals 
to discuss and decide on strategies apart from 

other regular Board related items. However, in case 
of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s 
approval was taken by passing resolutions through 
circulation, as permitted by law, which were noted 
in the subsequent Board meetings.

The Meetings of the Board of Directors were held Six 
(06) times during the year on the following dates:

S. No Date of Meeting Board 
Strength

No of 
Directors 
Attended

1 22 April 2022 8 8

2 3 June 2022 8 8

3 24 august 2022 10 8

4 6 November 2022 10 9

5 17 February 2023 10 9

6 24 March 2023 10 6

Further, the following circular resolutions were 
passed unanimously by the Board:-

S. 
No Date of Circulation Date of Approval

1 6 May 2022 6 May 2022

2 18 August 2022 19 August 2022

19.  MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV of 
the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of 
the Independent Directors of the Company was 
convened on 3rd March 2023 to review the matters 
as laid down in Schedule IV of the Companies, Act, 
2013. All the Independent Directors attended the 
meeting and updated the Board on the discussion in 
the Board Meeting held on 26 May 2023.

20. COMMITTEES:
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor 
and provide effective supervision of Company’s 
financial reporting process, to ensure accurate 
and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of 
transparency, integrity, and quality of financial 
reporting. The Committee is also responsible for 
the timely disclosure of the Company’s financial 
performance and promotes high ethical standards, 
transparency, and fairness within the Organization’s 
operations and Management. It actively implements 
the whistleblower policy, enabling the timely 
reporting of any contraventions or infringements. 

https://resustainability.com/investors/
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The Audit committee also handles a diverse set of 
governance, finance, risk, and compliance-related 
duties. It takes on the crucial task of selecting or 
reappointing statutory auditors and determining 
their fees. Furthermore, all significant financial 
transactions at ReSL require the involvement and 
approval of this committee.

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 
of the Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of 
Directors of the Company has re-constituted Audit 
Committee on 15 September 2021. The detail of the 
same is herein below.

 The details of the Audit Committee constitution as 
on 31 March 2023 is mentioned hereunder:

Sr.
No.

Members 
of the Audit 
Committee

Category DIN Designation

1
Mr. Narayan 
K Seshadri

Inde-
pendent 
Director

00053563 Chairman

2
Mr. B S 
Shantharaju

Inde-
pendent 
Director

00068501 Member

3
Mr. Rohan 
Suri

Nominee 
Director

07074450 Member

  The Meetings of the Audit Committee were held six 
times (06) during the year on the following date(s):

S. No Date of Meeting
Com-
mittee 

Strength

No of 
Directors 
Attended

1 22 April 2022 3 3
2 18 May 2022 3 3
3 3 June 2022 3 3
4 24 August 2022 3 3
5 31 October 2022 3 3
6 17 February 2022 3 2

2.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE (“NRC”)
 The objective of the NRC is to identify persons who 
are qualified to become directors and who may be 
appointed in senior management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board 
their appointment and removal and shall carry out 
evaluation of every director’s performance.

The role and function of NRC includes criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to 
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of 
the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 
of the Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of 
Directors of the Company have re-constituted the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) on 
15 September 2021.

The details of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee constitution as on 31 March 2023 are 
mentioned hereunder:-

Sr.
No.

Name of 
the  
Members

Category DIN Designation

1
Mr. Narayan 
K Seshadri

Independent 
Director

00053563 Chairman

2
Mr. B S 
Shantharaju

Independent 
Director

00068501 Member

3
Mrs. Hwee 
Hua Lim

Nominee 
Director

08305430 Member

 *  Mr. Rohan Suri is a permanent invitee to the NRC 
Meetings.

  The Meeting(s) of the Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee (“NRC”) were held Four times (04) 
during the year on the following dates:-

S. 
No Date of Meeting Committee 

Strength
No of Directors 

Attended

1 3 June 2022 3 3

2 15 July 2022 3 3

3 24 August, 2022 3 3

4 17 February 2023 3 2

 The NRC Policy has been placed on the website 
of the Company https://resustainability.com/wp- 
content/uploads/2022/12/Final_NRC-Charter.pdf

Further, the following approvals were taken, vide 
circular resolutions, which were unanimously 
approved by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee:-

S. No Date of Circulation Date of Approval

1 6 May 2022 6 May 2022

2 20 December 2022 20 December 2022

https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_NRC-Charter.pdf
https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_NRC-Charter.pdf
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3.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
(‘’CSR’’) COMMITTEE
In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, 
the Board of Directors of the Company have duly 
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee. The Committee recommends the thrust 
areas for the CSR projects to be undertaken by the 
Company, in accordance with the Company’s CSR 
policy. The Committee also monitors the project 
outcomes and the budget of CSR activities.

The details of the CSR Committee constitution as on 
31 March 2023 is mentioned herein below:-

S.
No.

Members 
of the CSR 
Committee

Category DIN Designation

1
Mr. B S 
Shantharaju

Independent 
Director

00068501 Chairman

2
Mr. Rohan 
Suri

Nominee 
Director

07074450 Member

3
Mrs. Hwee 
Hua Lim

Nominee 
Director

08305430 Member

4
Mr. M 
Goutham 
Reddy

Managing 
Director

00251461 Member

  The Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(“CSR’’) Committee was held once (1) during the 
year on the following date:-

S. 
No

Date of  
Meeting

Committee 
Strength

No of Directors 
Attended

1 3 June 2022 4 4

The CSR Policy has been placed on the website of 
the Company.
h t tps : // resus ta inab i l i t y. com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/12/Final_REEL-CSR-Policy-May-1_-
2021-final-file.pdf 

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 
and the CSR Policy, the Company had framed an 
Annual CSR Plan on the proposed CSR Projects and 
the activities to be undertaken by the Company 
during the Financial Year 2022- 23.

The Annual Report on CSR as required under Section 
135 of the Act read with Rules framed thereunder is 
provided in Annexure-IV to this report.

4. EXECUTIVE BOARD COMMITTEE (“EBC”)
In accordance with the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted an 
Executive Board Committee to meet the day-to-day 
business requirements of the Company.

Brief terms of reference of the EBC are mentioned 
hereunder.

 i.  Framework of Executive Board  
Committee

  The objective of the Executive Board Committee 
Charter of the Company shall be as follows:

 a) Reduce the workload of the Board.

 b)  Meet the Approval requirements of day-
to-day business.

 ii.  Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of 
the Committee

  Subject to the provisions of the Articles 
of Association of the Company, including 
obtaining Investor (as defined in the Articles) 
consent where necessary:

 a)  Any borrowings (fund based, non-fund 
based, equipment finance etc.) upto 
Rs. 50,000,000 (Rupees Five Crore only) 
individually or Rs. 200,000,000 (Rupees 
Twenty Crores only) in aggregate in any 
financial year, or any capital commitment 
by the Company.

 b)  To invest the funds, provide loan 
including inter corporate deposits, within 
Group Companies not exceeding Rs. 
100,00,00,000 (Rupees Hundred Crore 
only) individually or Rs. 500,00,00,000 
(Rupees Five Hundred Crore only) in 
aggregate in any financial year.

 c)  To give Guarantee (including performance 
guarantee) and provide security in 
respect of any loans obtained by any of 
the Group Companies, not exceeding Rs. 
100,00,00,000 (Rupees Hundred Crore 
only) individually or Rs. 500,00,00,000 
(Rupees Five Hundred Crore only) in 
aggregate in any financial year.

https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_REEL-CSR-Policy-May-1_-2021-final-file.pdf
https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_REEL-CSR-Policy-May-1_-2021-final-file.pdf
https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_REEL-CSR-Policy-May-1_-2021-final-file.pdf
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 d)  To authorise the use of financial and 
technical qualification of the Company 
for participating in bid and tender by the 
Group Companies.

 e)  To open / close Bank accounts in the 
name of the Company and to change the 
signatories and to avail online banking 
facilities and to give authorization to 
operate (including online Banking) of the 
Bank Accounts of the Company.

 f)  To issue Power of Attorney / 
authorizations to represent before 
the authorities like Sales Tax, Income 
Tax, Excise, Service Tax, Registrar of 
Companies, Company Law Board, 
National Company Law Tribunal and 
such other Government Authorities, 
bodies and organizations as may be 
deemed necessary and to liaise and deal 
with the Central and State Government 
and Similar other authorities, public 
bodies, public officers, local Self 
Government bodies, Municipalities, 
Pollution Control Boards, Electricity 
Boards, Sub-Registrar’s/ Registrar’s and 
all government office in connection with 
and for obtaining all necessary Statutory 
approval in general course of business 
on behalf of the Company and other 
matters incidental and ancillary thereto.

 g)  To approve the bids/tender and delegate 
authorizations to sign bids/tender 
documents and other agreements and 
documents relating to the day-to-day 
business affairs of the Company.

 h)  To issue authorization to initiate or defend 
litigation.

 i)  To Appoint and change of the Occupier 
under the Factories Act.

 j)  Such other functions as may be authorised 
by the Board of Directors / Shareholders of 
the Company through resolutions passed 
from time to time.

  The details of the Executive Board Committee 
constitution as on 31 March 2023 is mentioned 
hereunder:

S.
No.

Members of 
the EBC Category DIN Designation

1
Mr. M 
Goutham 
Reddy

Managing 
Director

00251461 Member

2
Mr. Masood 
Alam Mallick

CEO & Whole 
Time Director

01059902 Member

3
Mr. Anil 
Khandelwal

Jt. Managing 
Director

02552099 Member

The Meetings of the Executive Board Committee 
were held 12 (Twelve) times during the year on the 
following dates:-

S. 
No

Date of  
Meeting

Committee 
Strength

No of Directors  
Attended

1 8 April 2022 3 3

2 25 April 2022 3 3

3 1 June2022 3 2

4 13 June 2022 3 3

5 13 July 2022 3 3

6 30 Aug 2022 3 3

7 1 Oct 2022 3 3

8 14 Oct 2022 3 3

9 21 Nov 2022 3 3

10 21 Jan 2023 3 3

11 17 Feb 2023 3 3

12 23 March 2023 3 2

5.  RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND ITS 
POLICY
The Company has a well-defined risk management 
framework in place and a robust organizational 
structure for managing and reporting risks. Your 
Company’s risk management strategies are based 
on sound understanding of various risks associated 
with the industry.

The Board has constituted a Committee to 
monitor and review the implementation of the 
Enterprise Risk Management Policy. Adequate 
Risk management process has been established 
across your Company and is designed to identify, 
assess and mitigate the threats that may affect the 
achievement of Company’s objectives and goals.
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The details of the Risk Management Committee (“RMC") constitution as on 31 March 2023 is mentioned hereunder:

S.
No. Names Designation on Board/ Company DIN Designation in Committee

1 Mr. Narayan K Seshadri Independent Director 00053563 Chairman

2 Mr. M. Goutham Reddy Managing Director 00251461 Member

3 Mr. Masood Mallick CEO & Whole Time Director 01059902 Member

4 Mr. Anil Khandelwal Joint Managing Director 02552099 Member

5 Mr. Shujath Bin Ali
General Counsel and Chief  
Compliance Officer

NA Member

 * Mr. Pankaj Maharaj has been appointed as a member of the committee w.e.f 26 May 2023.

  The Meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held once during the year on the following date:-

S. No Date of Meeting Committee Strength No of Directors Attended

1 30 March 2023 5 5

The RMC approved the Risk Management Policy 
and Enterprise Risk Management Framework 
to ensure and lay out standardized Enterprise 
Risk Management process to provide visibility, 
oversight, control, and discipline to drive 
and thereon improve the organization's risk 
management capabilities in a changing business 
environment including identification of elements of 
risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may 
threaten the existence of the company.

However, during the financial year under review, 
the Company has not come across any element 
of risk which may threaten the existence of the 
Company.

6.  ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVER-
NANCE (ESG) COMMITTEE
Since inception, sustainability has remained at 
the core of your Company’s business strategy. 
Besides economic performance, safe operations, 
environment conservation and social well-being 
have always been at the core of our philosophy of 
sustainable business. In line with this view, the Board 
has constituted an ESG (Environment Social and 
Governance) Committee and has also adopted an 
ESG Charter to define the roles and responsibilities 
of the Committee.

The Committee seeks inputs and feedback from 
ReSL businesses and functions like Administration, 
HR, Operations, SCM, Finance, Legal, Projects, Plants, 

CSR, and IT on relevant matters, including assessment 
of ESG related risks and impacts on the Group, from 
time to time. The Committee also works towards 
improving the Company’s ESG disclosures in order 
to effectively demonstrate RESL’s ESG commitments 
to its stakeholders.

The objective of Environment, Social and 
Governance (ESG) Committee is to:

a)  Assist the Board of Directors in upholding 
the company's commitment to environment 
conservation and sustainability including 
climate change, health & safety of its 
employees and the communities where it 
operates; corporate governance, reputation 
and diversity

b)  Ensure formulation and deployment of relevant 
process and protocols; undertake preventive 
action and periodic assessments to manage 
any risks to the environment, society and 
health & safety, governance arising from work 
activities.

  During the year under review, the Committee 
met once on 28 July 2022, where all the 
members of the Committee were present.

The composition of ESG Committee of the Company 
as on 31 March 2023 is mentioned hereunder;
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S.
No. Name of the member Designation in the Company Designation in the 

Committee DIN

1 Mrs. Vaishali Nigam Sinha* Independent Director Chairperson 02299472

2 Mr. Rohan Suri Nominee Director Member 07074450

3 Mr. Masood Mallick CEO & Whole Time Director Member 01059902

4 Mr. Shujath Bin Ali
General Counsel & Chief  
Compliance Officer

Member NA

5 Mr. Dr. K. Srinivas Vice President - Technical Member NA

 *  Mrs. Vaishali Nigam Sinha has resigned as the Independent Director and Chairperson of the committee w.e.f 26 May 2023 and 

Mr. Narayan K. Sheshadri has been appointed as the Chairman of the ESG Committee.

21.  DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HA-
RASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRES-
SAL) ACT, 2013:

  The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sex-
ual harassment at workplace and has formulated 
a policy on prevention, prohibition, and redressal 
of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder for pre-
vention and redressal of complaints of sexual ha-
rassment at workplace. The Company has complied 
with provisions relating to the constitution of Inter-
nal Complaints Committee (POSH Committee) un-
der the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

  During the year under review, the Company has not 
received any complaints under Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. Further, there were no 
complaints pending as on March 31, 2023.

S. 
No

Particulars Remarks

1 No of Sexual harassment com-
plaints received in FY 2022-23

0

2 No of complaints disposed off 
during FY 2022-23

0

3 No of cases pending for more 
than 90 days

0

4 No. of awareness programs 
or workshops against sexual 
harassment conducted during 
the year.

2

5 Nature of actions taken by the 
employer

NA

  The Management has adopted the policy of 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 
and ensures the adequate implementation of the 
same.

22.  VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER 
POLICY:

  In line with the requirement under Section 177(9) 
& (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) 
Rules 2014, the Company has adopted Whistle 
Blower policy for directors, officers, employees, 
agents, representatives, and other associated 
persons of the Company to report concerns about 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or 
violation of Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics. 
The Whistle Blower Policy is placed on the website 
of the https://resustainability.com/wp- content/
uploads/2023/02/Whistleblower-Policy.pdf

  If the Employee or Third Party has a concern 
regarding a potential violation of any Code or a 
Company’s policy or anything which is inconsistent 
with applicable laws, they can promptly inform 
it to the member of Legal, Ethics & Compliance 
Department at ethics.reel@resustainability.
com or Chief Compliance Officer at cco.reel@
resustainability.com, or through Speak Open 
Hotline or Speak Open Web intake facility which 
can be accessed through the below link mentioned 
and also in our Company website. https://secure.
ethicspoint.com/domain/media/en/gui/74090/. 
Toll free number for Speak Open Hotline (India) 
000 800 0502 103, and contact numbers for other 
countries as mentioned in the Policy. The five pillars 
of the Speak Open program include: Speak Open; 
Open Culture; Be Vigilant; Reporting concerns; and 
No Retaliation.

https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Whistleblower-Policy.pdf
https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Whistleblower-Policy.pdf
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  The Whistleblower’s complaints can be received 
through the communication portals including email, 
phone call, SMS or a written letter from employee 
or third party through a whistleblower or internal 
audit reference.

23.  ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Company has adequate internal financial 
controls consistent with the nature of business and 
size of the operations, to effectively provide for 
safety of its assets, reliability of financial transactions 
with adequate checks and balances, adherence to 
applicable statues, accounting policies, approval 
procedures and to ensure optimum use of available 
resources. These systems are reviewed and improved 
on a regular basis. It has a comprehensive budgetary 
control system to monitor revenue and expenditure 
against approved budget on an ongoing basis.

Further, the Internal Auditors are empowered to 
oversee & report to the Audit Committee about the 
status of internal financial controls on a Quarterly/ 
Half Yearly basis.

24. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Based on the framework of internal financial 
controls and compliance systems established and 
maintained by the Company, the work performed 
by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors 
and External Consultants, including the audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting by 
the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by 
management and the relevant board committees, 
including the Audit Committee, the Board is of 
the opinion that the Company’s Internal Financial 
Controls were adequate and effective during FY 
2022-23.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that:

a)  In the preparation of the accounts for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2023, the 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed and that there are no material 
departures;

b)  The Directors had selected such accounting 
policies and have applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

at the end of the financial year and of the Profit 
of the Company for the period.

c)  The Directors had taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

d)  The Directors had prepared the annual accounts 
on a going concern basis; and

e)  The Directors have devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
As a part of its philosophy of adhering to the 
highest ethical standards, transparency and 
accountability, your Company is following the 
practice of undertaking related party transaction on 
arm’s length basis. Also, the same were undertaken 
in compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The transactions entered 
during the financial year were in conformity with the 
Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions.

All the related party transactions are placed on 
quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and 
Board for their review and approval. Prior Omnibus 
approval was also obtained from the Audit 
Committee and Board for the transactions which are 
repetitive in nature.

During the year 2022-23, your Company did not 
enter into any material Related Party Transactions. 
Accordingly, disclosure with respect to the 
Related Party Transactions in the Form AOC – 2 
in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013 is not applicable. Details of all the Related 
Party Transactions undertaken during the financial 
year are provided in the notes of the Standalone 
Financial Statements of financial year 2022-23 of 
the Company.

26. DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC:
Your Company has not accepted any deposits 
from public during the financial year as per Section 
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder, and no amount of principal or interest 
is outstanding at the end of the financial year 
2022-23.
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27.  SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS, 
AND TRIBUNALS:

  During the year under review, there were no 
significant material orders passed by the regulators, 
courts, and Tribunals.

28.  ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS 
COMMITTEES, AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 every Public Company having 
paid up capital of INR 25 crores (Rupees Twenty-
Five Crores) is required to conduct a formal annual 
evaluation of the performance of the Board, 
Committees and Individual Directors (annually).

As your Company is not covered in the foregoing 
criteria, hence it is not applicable.

However, pursuant to the provisions of section 
178, the Board has approved the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee Charter cum Policy and 
ensured that the evaluation process is in place for 
all the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management 
Personnel.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee is 
empowered to evaluate the performance of all the 
Directors by seeking their inputs on various aspects 
on the following:

1)  The contribution to and monitoring of 
corporate governance practices, participation 
in the long-term strategic planning.

2)  The fulfilment of Directors' obligations and 
fiduciary responsibilities, including but not 
limited to, active participation at the Board and 
Committee meetings.

3)  The Independent Directors at their meeting shall 
review the performance of Board, Chairman of 
the Board and of Non-Executive Directors.

During the year under review the Board evaluation 
for every Board Member and the Board Committees 
was conducted with the support of an Independent 
agency and the report of the performance evaluation 
was submitted to the Chairman of the Board.

The Nomination and remuneration Charter cum 
Policy is available on the website of the Company.
h t tps : // resus ta inab i l i t y. com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/12/Final_NRC-Charter.pdf

29.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECH-
NOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN  
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO UNDER 
SECTION 134 (3) (M) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013
The disclosures required under Section 134 (3)(m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31 March 
2023 are as follows:

https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_NRC-Charter.pdf
https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_NRC-Charter.pdf
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A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
  Company's operations require electric energy for its operations, computer systems, air conditioners and other 

lightening equipment, which are energy intensive. Therefore, adequate measures have been taken to reduce  
energy consumption, wherever possible.

Steps taken on conservation of energy and 
impact thereof:

a)  Established roof top solar power plant with an in-
stalled capacity of 310 KW at Visakhapatnam (Coast-
al Waste Management Project). Also, a total of 4 
battery operated forklifts have been deployed at 
different hazardous waste management facilities (at 
Coastal Waste Management Project – Visakhapa-
tnam, Karnataka Waste Management Project, Ra-
jasthan Waste Management Project, Punjab Waste 
Management Project).

b)  replacement of sodium vapour streetlights, tube 
lights with LED lights and solar streetlights. 

c)  upgraded to 5 star rated energy efficient ACs, lab 
equipment to save energy

d)  Pressurized nature gas usage in the incinerator in 
place of Diesel to operate the incinerator. 

  In addition to the above, the Company, through its 
subsidiaries have taken several other steps includ-
ing installation of 110 KWp Rooftop Solar at Raipur 
Municipal Solid Waste Facility, VFD installation at 
different facilities, procurement of EVs & CNG vehi-
cles, replacement of old conventional motors/ ma-
chinery with new energy conservative equipment, 
lighting conversion to LED etc. at different facilities. 
Also, in many facilities, incinerator is being operated 
by PNG, LDO, LPG instead of Diesel. For monitoring, 
energy audit has been carried out for gap analysis 
and energy sub meters have been installed at differ-
ent facilities.

Impact:

a)  The solar plant helped in reduction of the electricity 
bill payment by about Rs. 50,000 per month. The 
battery-operated forklifts reduced the dependency 
on diesel.

b)  Reduced the power consumption with the use of 
LED and solar lights 

c)  Reduced the use of Diesel consumption with the use 
of alternative fuel.

Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy:

Renewable Energy: Established 310 KW rooftop solar 
power plant at Visakhapatnam.

Fuel Substitution: Reduced the dependency on diesel 
through deployment of 4 battery operated forklifts at 
different hazardous waste management facilities.

Capital investment on energy conservation equip-
ment:

INR 51.44 Lakhs
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

1 Efforts made to-
wards technology 
absorption and 
the benefits de-
rived like product 
improvement, cost 
reduction, product 
development or 
import substitution.

1. Salt Recovery:
 Action Undertaken:
 •  Pilot plant commissioned in March 2023 and handed over to business (Hyder-

abad Waste Management Project) for regular operations. About 500 kg salt 
has been recovered through R&D trials.

 Impact:
 • Reduce Landfill footprint
 • Reduce Leachate generation
 • Revenue from sale of salt

2. Critical waste Management
 Action undertaken:
 •  This is a dynamic activity to identify appropriate and customized solution for 

each different non-regular critical wastes, this process implementation has 
been extended to 13 Hazardous Waste facilities

 Impact:
 • Provide solution to the customer – outcome customer satisfaction
 • Big business opportunity – 35.57cr business done during FY 22-23

3. Optimization of Reagents Action undertaken:
 •  Ongoing activity for conservation of resources as a regular activity &  

extended to other facilities as well
 • Initiatives for conservation of resources include:
 • Utilization of GGBS (in place of cement and lime)
 • Utilization of Red Mud (for Cr stabilization, replacement of FeSO4)
 • Utilization of spent acid (in place of H2SO4 and HCl)
 •  Utilization of bottom ash/fly ash from WTE (to avoid solidifying agents and 

purchase of fly ash)
 • Utilizing neutral/inert waste as stabilizing agent, wherever feasible.

 Impact:
 • Resource conservation & landfill air space conservation

4. Diversion of salt waste and ETP sludge from landfill
 Action undertaken:
 •  Hazardous waste such as ETP sludge and contaminated salt waste which gen-

erates leachate from landfill and consume huge quantity of resources like lime, 
cement, etc. for stabilization are being diverted from landfill to cement plants 
through process modification. This will be extended to all other IWM facilities

 Impact:
 • Quantity of waste diverted from landfill: 3875 MT
 • Savings from Innovation: 207.6 Lakhs

HWMP CWMP
Facility Salt 

Waste
ETP

Sludge
Total Salt 

Waste
ETP

Sludge
Total

Waste (in MT) 1612 1387 2994 164 717 881
Revenue
(In Lakhs)

76 115 191 3.0 13.6 16.5
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 Non-Financial:
 • Conservation of Landfill air space
 • Reduction of leachate generation
 • Conservation of natural resources

5. Recycling of vehicle wash/wheel wash
 Action undertaken:
 •  The contaminated water generated from vehicle wash/wheel wash has been 

treated through processes like filtration, sedimentation, colour removal etc. & 
the treated water is recycled back to vehicle wash.as feed stock to vehicle 
wash. This project has been commissioned in Mar-23, handed over to Business 
(HWMP) for regular operations. This will be extended to other facilities as well.

 Impact:
 • Conservation of water
 • This will be extended to other facilities as well

6. Other Innovation Projects in Progress
 i) Diversion of High Moisture Waste from Landfill
  •  For diversion of high moisture waste from landfill - Planned to establish sludge 

dryer for removal of moisture from high moisture wastes at Visakhapatnam.

 ii) Improvement in quality, quantity & TAT of compost:
  • Planned to have tie-up with Professor Jai Shankar Agriculture University

 iii) Development of solid fuels
  • Proposed to develop solid fuel from RDF
  • Work is in progress 

 iv)  A Center of Excellence has been established at Hyderabad as a central facil-
ity, which serves as a hub for multidisciplinary research, with cutting-edge 
technologies, bench-scale studies, and pilot-scale activities. The CoE coordi-
nates with regional centers and other site activities.

2 In case of import-
ed technology 
(imported during 
the last three years 
reckoned from the 
beginning of the 
financial year)-

The Company has not imported any technology.

3 The details of tech-
nology imported;

Not Applicable

4 Whether the tech-
nology been fully 
absorbed;

Not Applicable

5 If not fully ab-
sorbed, areas 
where absorption 
has not taken 
place, and the rea-
sons thereof; and

Not Applicable

6 R&D Expenditure INR 46 lakhs
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
During the year the Company has the following 
Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo:

(In INR Lakhs)

S. 
No. Particulars

As on  
31 March 

2023

As on  
31 March 

2022

1
Foreign Ex-
change Earnings

1000.86 1290.73

2
Foreign Ex-
change Outgo

12,24.43 1523.22

30.  STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE 
BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EX-
PERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING 
THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT  
DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR
The Board is of the opinion that the Independent 
Directors possess the requisite expertise, experience 
and proficiency in their field and are the persons of 
high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions 
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made thereunder and are independent of the 
management of the Company.

Also, pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all the 
Independent Directors of the Company have registered 
themselves with the Data bank maintained by the Indian 
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA).

Further, the Independent Directors of the Company 
are exempted from undertaking the Online Proficiency 
Self- Assessment Test for Independent Director’s 
conducted by the IICA. Based on the declaration 
received, it was noted that Independent Directors are in 
compliance of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.

31.  THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY 
PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVEN-
CY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) 
DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS 
AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.
The Company has not made any application and no 
proceeding are pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 OF 2016) at the end of 
financial year 2022-23.

32.  THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 
AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT 
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND 
THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REA-
SONS THERE OF
The Company has not made any one-time 
settlements during the financial year 2022-23.

33. GENERAL DISCLOSURES
Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting 
is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transactions on these items during the year 
under review:
•  Issue of equity shares with differential rights as 

to dividend, voting or otherwise.
• Issue of sweat equity shares.
•  Your Company does not have any scheme of 

provision of money for the purchase of its own 
shares by employees or by trustees for the 
benefit of employees.

•  There was no revision in the Financial 
Statements of the Company.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your directors wish to place on record their 
appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard 
work, dedication and commitment. The Board also 
desires to place on record its sincere appreciation 
for the support and co- operation the Company 
received from the customers, strategic partners, 
bankers, auditors, consultants, and all others 
associated with the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Re Sustainability Limited

(Formerly Known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited)

Date: 8 September 2023
Place: Hyderabad

M. Goutham Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 00251461

Masood Alam Mallick
CEO & Whole Time Director
DIN: 01059902
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The main features of the ESOP Plan-I and ESOP Plan-II and other details of the Scheme as per Rule 12 of Companies 
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, are as under:

S.
No.

Item Particulars as on 31 March 2023
ESOP Plan-I for Employees of

the Company and its subsidiary  
companies

ESOP Plan- II for key Employees of 
the Company

1 Options granted 68,333 4,893

2 Options vested till date  
(Time Based)

20,869 4,893

3 Options exercised 0 0

4 The total number of shares arising 
as a result of exercise of options

0 0

5 Options lapsed 3,206 0

6 The exercise price Fair market value of the shares as on 
the date of grant of the options.

The exercise price for the option 
will be face value of the Class A  
Equity shares.

7 Variation of terms of options There were no variation of terms of op-
tions during the financial year ended  
31 March 2023

There were no variation of terms 
of options during the financial year 
ended 31 March 2023

8 Money realized by exercise of  
options;

0 0

9 Total number of options in 
force (options granted- options  
exercised-options lapsed)

65,127 4,893

10 Employee wise details of options 
granted to 

i. Key managerial personnel

Name of KMP No of 
Options

% of 
offer

M Goutham 
Reddy

21,149 30.95%

Masood 
Mallick

14,911 21.82%

Anil  
Khandelwal

11,104 16.25%

Pankaj  
Maharaj

3,618 5.29%

Govind Singh 140 0.21%

Name No of % of of Options  
offer KMP

Masood 4,893 100% Mallick

Not applicable

ANNEXURE I

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN
(Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014)
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S.
No.

Item Particulars as on 31 March 2023
ESOP Plan-I for Employees of

the Company and its subsidiary  
companies

ESOP Plan- II for key Employees of 
the Company

ii.  Any other employee who 
receives a grant of options 
in any one year of option 
amounting to five percent 
or more of options granted 
during that year.

iii.  Identified employees who 
were granted option, during 
any one year, equal to or ex-
ceeding one percent of the 
issued capital (excluding out-
standing warrants and con-
versions) of the company at 
the time of grant

Name No. of % Options
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of
Re Sustainability (Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited)

M. Goutham Reddy
Managing Director

Masood Alam Mallick
CEO & Whole Time Director

Date: 8 September 2023
Place: Hyderabad

DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902
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To
The Members,
Re Sustainability Limited
(Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited)
Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge  
City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad - 500081,  
Telangana, India.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by RE Sustainability Limited 
(Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited and 
hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial Year ended 31 March 2023 (“the Audit Period”) 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board processes 
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company during the audit period, according to the 
provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules 
made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period);

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

ANNEXURE-II

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 
of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct 
Investment (There were no External Commercial 
Borrowings transactions in the company, during the 
Audit Period);

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines pre-
scribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —

 (a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit Period)

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Take-
overs) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period)

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; (Not applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period)

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Com-
pany during the Audit Period);

 (e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employ-
ee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 
and The Securities and Exchange Board of In-
dia (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula-
tions, 2014 notified on 28 October 2014; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period)

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Is-
sue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 (Not applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period);
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 (g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies 
Act and dealing with client (Not applicable 
to the Company during the Audit Period);

 (h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 
(Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period); and

 (i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period).

(vi)  We further report on the following laws that are 
applicable specifically to the company:

 (a)  The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) 
Act, 1974;

 (b)  The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) 
Act, 1981;

 (c) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

 (d)  The Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management 
& Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016;

 (e) The Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016;

 (f) Bio Medical Waste Management Rules, 2016

  We have also examined compliance with the appli-
cable clauses of the following:

 (i)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

 (ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with Stock Exchanges (Not applica-
ble to the Company during the Audit Period);

  During the period under review the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above subject to the following observation:

 Companies Act, 2013:
There was delay in filing of Form MGT-14 in 
connection with the Special Resolution passed in 
the Annual General Meeting held on 30 September, 
2022 for Alteration of Articles of Association of the 
Company.

 We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors and Non- Executive Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule 
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee 
Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors 
or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems 
and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the company to monitor 
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the 
Company has:

Converted its 11,10,909 (Eleven Lakh Ten Thousand 
Nine Hundred Nine) optionally convertible 
redeemable preference shares of face value of Rs. 
15/- (Rupees Fifteen only) each into 52,217 (Fifty-Two 
Thousand Two Hundred Seventeen) Class A Equity 
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) 
each.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even 
date, which is annexed as “Annexure – A” and forms an 
integral part of this report.

For R&A Associates

R. Ramakrishna Gupta
Senior Partner 
FCS No.: 5523 
C P No.: 6696

UDIN: FO5523E000592120

Office No. T 202, Technopolis, 
1-10-74/B, Above Ratnadeep Super Market, 

Chikoti Gardens, Begumpet, Hyderabad - 500 016.

Date: 12 July 2023 
Place: Hyderabad
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ANNEXURE – A”

To
The Members,
Re Sustainability Limited
(Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited)
Level 11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge 
City, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad - 500081, Telangana, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of RE Sustainability Limited (Formerly 
known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited and hereinafter referred as “the Company”). Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

1.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

3.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

4.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

5.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

6.  We have relied up on the information provided by the Management with respect to related party transactions for 
its compliance.

7.  The Company has recorded in its Minutes Books of the Board, Committee and General Meetings, wherever 
applicable, that the transactions with related parties under Section 188 are entered in its ordinary course of business 
and at arms’ length and accordingly we have relied on such confirmation with respect to compliance of applicable 
provisions for the related party transactions executed during the year under review.

For R&A Associates

R. Ramakrishna Gupta
Senior Partner 
FCS No.: 5523 
C P No.: 6696

UDIN: FO5523E000592120

Office No. T 202, Technopolis, 
1-10-74/B, Above Ratnadeep Super Market, 

Chikoti Gardens, Begumpet, Hyderabad - 500 016.
Date: 12 July 2023 
Place: Hyderabad
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ANNEXURE -IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES
For the Financial Year Commencing on 01.04.2022 and ending on 31.03.2023

1. BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY:
The main object of the CSR Policy is to lay down guidelines for the Company, in relation to its CSR activities. 
This Policy covers current as well as proposed CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company, in alignment 
with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), as amended from time to time as well as the modalities of 
execution of the same.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE AS ON 31 MARCH 2023:

S.
No. Name of the Director Designation / Nature of 

Directorship

Number of meeting of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of meeting of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year
1 B S Shantharaju Chairman 1 1

2 Hwee Hua Lim Member 1 1

3 M Goutham Reddy Member 1 1

4 Rohan Rakesh Suri Member 1 1

3.  PROVIDE THE WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND CSR 
PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY:

 https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_REEL-CSR-Policy-May-1_-2021- final-file.pdf

4.  PROVIDE THE DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSU-
ANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE (ATTACH THE REPORT):
As the average CSR obligation of the Company is less than INR 10 crore, this provision is not applicable for the 
financial year 2022-23.

5.  DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 
7 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND 
AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: NIL

S.
No.

Financial Year Amount available for set- off from 
preceding financial years (in Rs)

Amount required to be set-off for 
the financial year, if any (in Rs)

Nil

6. Average Net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 64,82,91,804

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 1,29,65,836

 (b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous finan-
cial years: 0

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 0

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): INR 1,29,65,836

https://resustainability.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Final_REEL-CSR-Policy-May-1_-2021-final-file.pdf
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(D) AMOUNT SPENT IN ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEADS: 0

(E)  AMOUNT SPENT ON IMPACT ASSESSMENT, IF APPLICABLE: As the average CSR obligation of the Com-
pany is less than INR 10 crore, this provision is not applicable for the financial year 2022-23.

(F) TOTAL AMOUNT SPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (8B+8C+8D+8E): INR 1,30,62,450

(G) EXCESS AMOUNT FOR SET OFF, IF ANY: 0

(H) S.
No.

Particular Amount (In INR)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 1,29,65,836

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,30,62,450.00

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 96,614

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the  
previous financial years, if any

0

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 96,614

9. (A) DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL YEARS: NIL

S.
no.

Preceding 
financial 
year

Amount 
transferred to 
unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135(6)  

(in INR)

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 

financial year 
(in INR)

Amount transferred to ant fund specified under 
Section VII as per Section 135 (6) if any

Amount remain-
ing to be sent 
in succeeding 
financial years  

(in INR)

Name of the 
fund

Amount  
(in INR)

Date of transfer

1 Nil

(B)  DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR FOR ONGOING PROJECTS OF THE 
PRECEDING FINANCIAL YEAR(S): NIL

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) (viii) (ix)

S. no. Project 
ID

Name 
of the 

project

Financial 
year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount  

allocated 
for the 
project  
(in INR)

Amount 
Spent on the 
project in the 

reporting
financial

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

financial

Status of 
the project- 
Completed/ 

ongoing

1 Nil

10.  IN CASE OF CREATION OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSET, FURNISH THE DETAILS RELATING 
TO THE ASSET SO CREATED OR ACQUIRED THROUGH CSR SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR:  
Not applicable

 (Asset-wise details).
 (a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

 (b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
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 (c)  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their 
address etc.

 (d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset).

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5).: Not applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Re Sustainability Limited

(Formerly Known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited

M. Goutham Reddy Shantharaju Bangalore Siddaiah
Managing Director Chairman - CSR Committee 
DIN: 00251461 DIN: 00068501
Date: 8 September 2023 Date: 8 September 2023
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of 
Re Sustainability Limited 
(Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial  
Statements

OPINION
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Re Sustainability Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then 
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31 March 2023, its profit including other 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the other information. The other information obtained 
at the date of this auditor’s report is Director’s report in 
the Annual report, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principle/s generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of 
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

Those charged with governance is also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT 
OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

  We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

  We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

2.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit;

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;
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 (c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account;

 (d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended specified 
under section 133 of the Act;

 (e)  On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31 March 
2023, taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on 31 March 2023, from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these 
standalone financial statements and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

 (g)  In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for 
the year ended 31 March 2023, has been paid 
/ provided by the Company to its directors in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act;

 (h)  With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

 i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements – refer note 32 
to the standalone financial statements; 

 ii.  The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;

 iii.  There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

 iv. a)  The management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

  b)  The management has represented that, to 
the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the Company 
from any persons or entities, including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

  c)  Based on such audit procedures 
performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (a) 
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

 v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during 
the year by the Company. 

 vi.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company only 
w.e.f 1 April 2023, reporting under this clause is 
not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 504777
Date: 26 May 2023 UDIN: xxxxxxxx
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us 
and given by the company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)  (A) The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.

 (a)  (B) The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars of intangibles 
assets.

 (b)  All Property, Plant and Equipment are physically 
verified by the management in accordance 
with aplanned programme of verifying them 
over a period of three years which is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, 
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were 
verified by the management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. 

 (c)  The title deeds of all the immovable properties 
(other than properties where the Company is 
the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favor of the lessee) are held in the 
name of the Company.

 (d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including Right of use 
assets) or intangible assets during the year 
ended 31 March 2023.

 (e)  There are no proceedings initiated or are 
pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and 
rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a)  The management has conducted physical 
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 
during the year. In our opinion the coverage 
and the procedure of such verification by 
the management is appropriate. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such physical 
verification.

Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Re Sustainability Limited (“the Company”)

 (b)  As disclosed in note 11A to the financial 
statements, the Company has been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five 
crores in aggregate from banks and financial 
institutions during the year on the basis of 
security of current assets of the Company. 
Based on the records examined by us in 
the normal course of audit of the financial 
statements, the quarterly returns/statements 
filed by the Company with such banks and 
financial institutions are in agreement with the 
books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) (a)  During the year the Company has provided 
loans and stood guarantee to companies as 
follows:

(Amount in Indian rupees lakhs)

Loans Guarantees
Aggregate 
amount granted/ 
provided during 
the year

- Subsidiaries 119,065 -

Balance 
outstanding as 
at balance sheet 
date in respect of 
above cases 
- Subsidiaries 107,788 144,363

 (b)  During the year the investments made, 
guarantees provided, security given and 
the terms and conditions of the grant of all 
loans and advances in the nature of loans, 
investments and guarantees to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties are not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest.

 (c)  The Company has granted loans during the 
year to companies where the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest 
has been stipulated and the repayment or 
receipts are regular except as disclosed in 
clause 3(iii)(e) and in respect of perpetual 
debt amounting to Rs. 34,068 lakhs granted to 
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Companies, where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated in 
the agreement. Hence we are unable to make a specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal 
and payment of in respect of such loan.

 (d)  There are no amounts of loans granted to companies which are overdue for more than ninety days except in 
case of perpetual debt amounting to Rs.67,448 lakhs granted to Companies where the schedule of repayment 
of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated in the agreement. Hence, we are unable to make 
a specific comment on whether such amounts are overdue.

 (e)  The Company had granted loans to companies which had fallen due during the year. The Company had 
renewed or extended the loans subsequent to the year to the respective parties which had fallen due during 
the year. 

  The aggregate amount of such dues renewed or extended and the percentage of the total loans granted during 
the year are as follows:

(Amount in Indian rupees lakhs)

Name of Parties

Aggregate amount 
of loans or advances 
in the nature of loans 

granted during  
the year

Aggregate overdue 
amount settled by 

renewal or extension or 
by fresh loans granted 

to same parties

Percentage of the 
aggregate to the total 

loans or advances in 
the nature of loans 

granted during the year
Mumbai Waste Management Limited 914 914 100%

Pro Enviro C&D Waste Private Limited 337 337 100%
Katni MSWM Private Limited 267 267 100%
Pro Enviro Recycling Private Limited 223 223 100%
Re Sustainability Solutions Private 
Limited

221 221 100%

Chennai MSW Private Limited 205 205 100%
Maridi Bio Industries Pvt Limited 104 104 100%
Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions 
Private Limited

72 72 100%

Chennai Enviro Solutions Private 
Limited

68 68 100%

Re Sustainability IWM Solutions 
Private Limited

44 44 100%

West Bengal Waste Management 
Limited

31 31 100%

REWA MSW Management Private 
Limited

22 22 100%

Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions 
Limited

20 20 100%

REWA Waste 2 Energy Private Limited 17 17 100%
Adityapur waste management Private 
Limited

11 11 100%

Medicare Environmental 
Management Private Limited

9 9 100%

Re Sustainability Urban Solutions 
Private Limited

3 3 100%

Saagar MSW Solutions Private Limited 2 2 100%

2,570 2,570
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 (f)  As disclosed in note 4A (v) to the financial 
statements, during the year the Company has 
granted loans without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment to companies. Of these 
following are the details of the aggregate 
amount of loans granted to promoters or 
related parties as defined in clause (76) of 
section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Amount in Indian rupees lakhs)

Particulars All Parties Promoters
Related 
parties

Aggregate 
amount of loans 
- without 
specifying any 
terms or period 
of repayment

- - 67,448

Percentage of 
loans to the 
total loans

63.46%

 (iv)  Loans, investments, guarantees and security in 
respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable 
have been complied with by the Company.

 (v)  The Company has neither accepted any 
deposits from the public nor accepted any 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the 
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, 
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (vi)  The Central Government has not specified the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the 
products/services of the Company.

 (vii)  (a) The Company is regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
dues including goods and services tax, 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and other statutory dues applicable 
to it though there has been slight delays in 
few cases. According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on audit 
procedures performed by us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of these statutory 
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a 
period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

 (b)  The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows: 

(Amount in Indian rupees lakhs)

Name of the statute Nature of 
the dues

Amount 
Demanded (Rs)

Amount paid 
under  

Protest (Rs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute 
is pending.

The Madhya 
Pradesh Value 
Added Tax Act, 2022

Value 
added tax

34 10 2014-15
Honorable M.P. 
Commercial Tax 
Appellate Board

The Delhi Value 
Added Tax Act, 
2004

469 - 2012-13
Department of Trade and 
Taxes Government of 
NCT Delhi.

The Telangana 
Value Added Tax 
Act, 2005

28 - 2013-14
Commercial Tax Appeals, 
Telangana

Goods and  
Service Tax 

GST 10 10 2019-20
Commissioner, Appeals, 
Commercial Tax 
Department, M.P.

Goods and Service 
Tax

GST 53 - 2020-21
Commissioner, Appeals, 
Commercial Tax 
Department, Bihar.
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(Amount in Indian rupees lakhs)

Name of the statute Nature of 
the dues

Amount 
Demanded (Rs)

Amount paid 
under  

Protest (Rs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum where the dispute 
is pending.

The Income Tax  
Act, 1961

Income 
Tax

200 200 2010-11
Join commissioner of 
State Tax, Patna West, 
Bihar

The Income Tax  
Act, 1961

Income 
Tax

333 73 2016-17
The Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal, 
Hyderabad.

The Income Tax  
Act, 1961

Income 
Tax

76 - 2018-19
The Commissioner of 
Income Tax Appeals.

(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any 
transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of 
account, in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, 
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)  (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender.

 (b)  The Company has not been declared wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority.

 (c)  Term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained.

 (d)  On an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, no funds raised on 
short-term basis have been used for long-term 
purposes by the Company.

 (e)  On an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, the Company has 
not taken any funds from any entity or person 
on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

 (f)  The Company has not raised loans during 
the year on the pledge of securities held in 
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. Hence, the requirement to report 
on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

(x) (a)  The Company has not raised any money during 
the year by way of initial public offer / further 
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, 
the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b)  The Company has complied with provisions 
of sections 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 
in respect of the private placement of fully 
convertible preference during the year.  The 
funds raised, have been used for the purposes 
for which the funds were raised.

(xi) (a)  No material fraud by the Company or no 
material fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year.

 (b)  During the year, no report under sub-section 
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us 
in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government.

 (c)  As represented to us by the management, there 
are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, 
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b), (c) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a)  The Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

 (b)  The internal audit reports of the Company 
issued till the date of the audit report, for the 
period under audit have been considered  
by us.
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(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with its directors and hence requirement to report 
on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(xvi) (a)  The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (b)  The Company is not engaged in any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

 (c)  The Company is not a Core Investment 
Company as defined in the regulations made 
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

 (d)  There is no Core Investment Company as a 
part of the Group, hence, the requirement to 
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the 
current year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors during the year and accordingly 
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 
41 to the financial statements, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements, our knowledge of 

the Board of Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

(xx) (a)  In respect of other than ongoing projects, there 
are no unspent amounts that are required to be 
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII 
of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance 
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 
135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in 
note 25(ii) to the financial statements.

 (b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of 
ongoing projects, that are required to be 
transferred to a special account in compliance 
of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of 
Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed 
in note 25(ii) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava
Partner

Place : Hyderabad Membership Number: 504777
Date: 26 May 2023 UDIN: xxxxxxx 
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We have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements of Re 
Sustainability Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTER-
NAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company’s Management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
these standalone financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to these standalone 
financial statements was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to these standalone financial 

statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to these 
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to these standalone financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
WITH REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial 

Annexure “2” to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the 
Standalone Financial Statement of Re Sustainability Limited 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)
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statements, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control with reference to 
standalone financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements and such internal financial 

controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023 based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 504777
Date: 26 May 2023 UDIN: xxxxxxxx 
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Notes As at  
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 11,774 11,243 
Capital work in progress 3B 10,351  7,547 
Intangible assets 3C 745 890 
Right-of-use assets 3D  1,447  1,678 
Financial assets
 (i) Investments 4A 99,687 76,204 
 (ii) Loans 4B 37,076 18,556 
 (iii) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent 4F 139  62 
 (iv) Other financial asset 4C  9,931  6,304 
Non-current tax assets 6  1,562  1,402 
Other assets 7A  1,205  1,631 

173,917 125,517 
Current assets
Inventories 5  1,965  1,031 
Financial assets
 (i) Loans 4B 601  3,328 
 (ii) Trade receivables 4D 15,482  9,676 
 (iii) Cash and cash equivalent 4E  1,253 33,654 
 (iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 4F 877  2,466 
 (v) Other financial asset 4C 630 173 
Other assets 7B  5,120  5,322 

 25,928  55,650 
Asset classified as held for sale 40 614 614 
Total assets 200,459 181,781 
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 8 423 418 
Other equity 9  155,688  137,818 
Total equity 156,111 138,236 
Non-current liabilities
Contract liabilities
Financial liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 10A  6,873 250 
 (ii) Lease liabilities 3D 976  1,133 
 (iii) Other financial liabilities 12  2,194 11,480 
Government grant 15  95 102 
Provisions 16  4,955  3,410 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13  3,167 479 
Other liabilities 17  1,047  1,210 

 19,307  18,064 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 10B  2,573  2,670 
 (ii) Lease liabilities 3D 222 237 
 (iii) Trade payables 11
  - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  1,453 695 
  - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  8,431 10,385 
 (iv) Other financial liabilities 12  5,592  5,909 
Liabilities for current tax (net) 14 204 226 
Provisions 16  2,811  2,820 
Other liabilities 17  3,755  2,539 

 25,041  25,481 
Total equity and liabilities 200,459 181,781 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Notes For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 45,361 38,029 
Other income 19 4,480 4,764 
Total income (I) 49,841 42,793 
Expenses
(Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods  (10) 1 
Cost of raw material and components consumed 20 3,355  2,255 
Construction expenses 21 3 4 
Employee benefits expense 22 7,267  7,204 
Finance costs 23 1,592 823 
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 3,119  2,645 
Other expenses 25 22,192 22,956 
Total expense (II) 37,518 35,888 
Profit before tax (III = I - II) 12,323  6,905 
Tax expense
Current tax 27  1,389  1,259 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 575 (2,183)
Deferred tax  2,029  3,024 
Total tax expense (IV)  3,993  2,100 
Profit for the year (V=III-IV)  8,330  4,805 
Other comprehensive income 26
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  71  (62)

Income tax effect  (18)  18 

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss 
in subsequent years  53 (44)

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VI)  53 (44)
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VII=V+VI)  8,383  4,761 
Earnings per equity share computed on the basis of profit attributable to 
equity holders of the parent

Basic earnings per share 28 199 115 
Diluted earnings per share 193 112 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 12,323 6,905 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense  3,119 2,645 
Provision for doubtful trade receivables and advances 2 952 
Profit on sale of fixed assets (23) (32)
Revenue from construction activity  (3)  (6)
Construction expenses 3  4 
Deferred income arising from government grant  (7)  (7)
Liabilities no longer required written back (62)  (345)
Bad debts/ advances written-off  - 430 
Net Gain on sale of investment (290)  (206)
Miscellaneous income  -  (236)
Unwinding Interest on Security deposit  76  -
Employee stock option expense  176 304 

Interest expense  1,464 707 
Interest income (3,979)  (3,091)
Operating profit before working capital changes 12,799  8,024 
Working Capital Adjustments

Inventories (934) 206 
Trade receivable (5,808) 600 
Other financial asset (4,010)  (655)
Other asset  278  7 
Trade payables (1,134) 2,469 
Other Financial Liabilities  49  (322)
Provisions for employee benefits (35)  83 
Other provisions  1,019  (768)
Other liabilities  1,215 1,116 

Cash generated from operating activities  3,439  10,760 
Income tax paid (net of refund) (1,187)  (1,847)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)  2,252  8,913 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Inter corporate deposit given (82,131)  (12,316)
Inter corporate deposits repaid 69,398  16,083 
Perpetual debt to subsidiaries (34,068)  (9,919)
Repayment of Perpetual debt by subsidiaries 10,539  32,602 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  38  2 
(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment (6,209)  (5,737)
Sale of investments  366 548 
Renewal of fixed deposits  1,512 1,653 
Investment made in Compulsory Convertible Debentures  -  (5,523)
Investments made in Equity shares  -  (1)
Interest received  289 373 

Net cash (used)/from investing activities (B)  (40,266)  17,765 
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Statement of Cash Flows (Contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings  8,945  -
Repayment of long term borrowings (579)  (301)
(Repayment) of/proceeds from short term borrowings (net) (1,840) 1,264 
Payment of lease liabilities (352)  (241)
Interest paid (560)  (124)

Net cash flow generated in financing activities (C)  5,614  598 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (32,400)  27,276 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33,653 6,377 
Cash and cash equivalents at year end  1,253  33,653 

a)  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

b)  Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of 
 Cash on hand 2  2 
Balances with banks: (Refer Note 4E)
 - Current Accounts  1,238 4,016 
 - Deposit with maturity of less than 3 months  13  29,635 
Cash and cash equivalent as per balance sheet  1,253 33,653 
 Refer note 4E for change in liabilities arising from financing activities.
Summary of significant accounting policies Note 2.2

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(A) SHARE CAPITAL

 

Class A - Equity Shares
Face Value of Rs. 10 each

Class B - Equity Shares
Face Value of Rs. 10 each #

Number of 
shares in Lakhs INR Lakhs Number of 

shares in Lakhs INR Lakhs

As at 1 April 2021 42 418  0  0 
Issued during the year - - - - 
Redeemed/ transferred during the year - - - - 
As at 31 March 2022 42 418  0  0 
Issued during the year  1  5 - - 
Redeemed/ transferred during the year - - - - 
As at 31 March 2023 42 423  0  0 

 # Nil due to rounding off

(B) OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and surplus
Other 

comprehensive 
income 

Total 
Equity

 Capital 
Reserve 

 Securities 
premium 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Share-based 
payment 

reserve (refer 
note 31)

 Deemed 
capital 

contribution 

 
Retained 
earnings 

Re-measurement 
of net defined 

benefit plan 

Balance as at 1 April 2021 17,924 - 1  2,141 71,162 41,472 - 132,700 
Profit for the year - - - - - 4,805 - 4,805 
Other comprehensive income 
(net of taxes) - - - - - -  (44)  (44)

Share-based payments  
(refer note 31) - - - 357 - - - 357 

Balance at 31 March 2022 17,924 - 1  2,498 71,162 46,277 (44) 137,818 
Profit for the year - - - - - 8,330 - 8,330 
Other comprehensive income 
(net of taxes) - - - - - -  53  53 

Share-based payments  
(refer note 31) - - - 206 - - - 206 

Add: Increase/ (decrease) 
during the year - 9,281 - - - - - 9,281 

Balance at 31 March 2023 17,924  9,281 1  2,704 71,162 54,607 9 155,688 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a public limited Company domiciled 
in India and is incorporated under the provisions 
of the Companies Act applicable in India. The 
registered office of the Company is located at Level 
11B, Aurobindo Galaxy, Hitech City Road, Hyderabad 
- 500081.

The Company is engaged in the business of 
Integrated waste management solutions for 
industrial (Hazardous) waste, municipal waste, 
electronic waste and providing other incidental 
services.

The interim standalone financial statements were 
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors on 26 May……………….. 2023.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of Preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company 
have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 34, Interim Financial 
Reporting notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended 
from time to time).

The interim standalone financial statements have 
been prepared on a historical cost basis, except 
for certain financial assets and liabilities which have 
been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy 
regarding financial instruments).

The interim standalone financial statements are 
presented in INR and all values are rounded to the 
nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
 a) Business combination

A common control business combination, 
involving entities or businesses in which all the 
combining entities or businesses are ultimately 
controlled by the same party or parties both 
before and after the business combination and 
where the control is not transitory, is accounted 
for using the pooling of interests method. The 
net assets of the transferor entity or business 

are accounted at their carrying amounts on the 
date of the acquisition subject to necessary 
adjustments required to harmonise the 
accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of 
the consideration paid over the share capital of 
the transferor entity or business is recognised 
as capital reserve under equity. 

Other business combinations are accounted 
using acquisition method.

 b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities 
in the balance sheet based on current / non-
current classification. An asset is treated as 
current when it is:

-  Expected to be realized or intended to 
be sold or consumed in normal operating 
cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

-  Expected to be realized within twelve 
months after the reporting period; or

-  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when:

-  It is expected to be settled in normal 
operating cycle;

-  It is held primarily for the purpose of 
trading;

-  It is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the reporting period; or

-  There is no unconditional right to defer 
the settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as 
non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 
as non-current assets and liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle.

 c) Foreign currencies
Theinterim standalone financial statements are 
presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the 
Company’s functional currency. 

  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on 
initial recognition in the functional currency 
using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. At each balance sheet, foreign 
currency monetary items are reported using 
the closing exchange rate.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement 
of monetary items or on reporting at each 
balance sheet of the Company’s monetary 
items at the closing rate are recognized as 
income or expenses in the period in which they 
arise.

Non-monetary items which are carried at 
historical cost denominated in a foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange rate 
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value is determined.

 d)  Investment in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures.
The Company has elected to recognize its 
investments in subsidiary and associate 
companies at cost in accordance with the 
option available in Ind AS 27 “Separate Financial 
Statements”. The details of such investments 
are given in note 4A.

 e) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, 
such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance 
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The 
fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

-  In the principal market for the asset or 
liability, or

-  In the absence of a principal market, in the 
most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market 
must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is 
measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset 
or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial 
asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use 
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that 
are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure 
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the interim standalone 
financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole:

-  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market 
prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities
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Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

-  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable

-  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for 
which the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised 
in the interim standalone financial statements 
on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management 
analyses the movements in the values of assets 
and liabilities which are required to be re- 
measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s 
accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Management verifies the major inputs 
applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the 
information in the valuation computation to 
contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change 
in the fair value of each asset and liability with 
relevant external sources to determine whether 
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Company has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair 
value. Other fair value related disclosures are 
given in the relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant 
estimates and assumptions (note 29)

 f) Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue is recognised when control of 
the goods or services are transferred to 
the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects 
to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
or services. The Company has generally 
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue 
arrangements, because it typically controls the 
goods or services before transferring them to 
the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting 
judgements, estimates and assumptions 
relating to revenue from contracts with 
customers are provided in note 29.

The specific recognition criteria described 
below must also be met before revenue is 
recognized.

  Revenue from waste disposal activities:

Revenue from user charges towards waste 
disposal is recognized as and when the related 
services are performed i.e. when the waste is 
collected, transported and is received at the 
dumping yards.

   Revenue from consultancy and maintenance 
contracts

Revenue from consultancy and maintenance 
contracts is recognized as and when the related 
services are performed.

  Revenue from turnkey contracts

Revenue from Turnkey contracts is recognized 
by reference to the stage of completion of the 
contract activity. The Group uses input method 
in measuring progress because there is a direct 
relationship between the Group’s effort and the 
transfer of goods and service to the customer. 
Future expected loss, if any, is recognised as 
and when assessed.

  Significant financing component

Generally, the Company receives short-term 
advances from its customers. Using the practical 
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Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not 
adjust the promised amount of consideration 
for the effects of a significant financing 
component if it expects, at contract inception, 
that the period between the transfer of the 
promised good or service to the customer 
and when the customer pays for that good or 
service will be one year or less.

The Company also receives long-term security 
deposits from customers. The transaction 
price for such contracts is discounted, using 
the rate that would be reflected in a separate 
financing transaction between the Company 
and its customers at contract inception, to take 
into consideration the significant financing 
component.

  Contract balances

  Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration 
in exchange for goods or services transferred 
to the customer. If the Company performs by 
transferring goods or services to a customer 
before the customer pays consideration or 
before payment is due, a contract asset is 
recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional.

  Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to 
an amount of consideration that is unconditional 
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before 
payment of the consideration is due).

  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer 
goods or services to a customer for which 
the Company has received consideration (or 
an amount of consideration is due) from the 
customer. If a customer pays consideration 
before the Company transfers goods or 
services to the customer, a contract liability is 
recognised when the payment is made or the 
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract 
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the 
Company performs under the contract.

  Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at 
amortised cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, interest income is 
recorded using the effective interest rate 
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts 
over the expected life of the financial instrument 
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the 
gross carrying amount of the financial asset 
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. 
When calculating the effective interest rate, the 
Company estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the 
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) but does not 
consider the expected credit losses. Interest 
income is included in finance income in the 
statement of profit and loss.

  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the 
Company’s right to receive the payment is 
established.

  Government grants

Government grants are recognised where 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attached conditions 
will be complied with. When the grant relates 
to an expense item, it is recognised as income 
on a systematic basis over the periods that 
the related costs, for which it is intended to 
compensate, are expensed. When the grant 
relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in 
equal amounts over the expected useful life of 
the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-
monetary assets, the asset and the grant are 
recorded at fair value amounts and released 
to profit or loss over the expected useful life 
in a pattern of consumption of the benefit 
of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual 
instalments. When loans or similar assistance 
are provided by governments or related 
institutions, with an interest rate below the 
current applicable market rate, the effect 
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of this favourable interest is regarded as a 
government grant. The loan or assistance is 
initially recognised and measured at fair value 
and the government grant is measured as the 
difference between the initial carrying value of 
the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is 
subsequently measured as per the accounting 
policy applicable to financial liabilities.

 g) Taxes 
  Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities 
are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date 
in the countries where the Company operates 
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity). Current tax items are 
recognized in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.

In cases, where the tax on dividend from a 
foreign subsidiary is allowed as a set off against 
the Company’s own dividend distribution tax 
(DDT) liability, then the amount of tax paid on 
foreign dividend is recognised in the statement 
of changes in equity.

In cases, where the tax on dividend from 
a subsidiary is allowed as a set off against 
the Company’s own dividend distribution 
tax (DDT) liability, the tax deducted by the 
domestic subsidiary is treated as withholding 
tax recognised in the statement of changes in 
equity.

The dividend income is recognised in the 
income statement at an amount including 

any withholding taxes (that is, gross of the 
withholding tax that has been deducted by the 
domestic subsidiary).

The Company recognises interest levied and 
penalties related to income tax assessments in 
interest expenses.

  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability 
method on temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused 
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward 
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to 
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets 
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realised or the liability is 
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
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profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

As the Company is entitled to a tax holiday 
under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India, 
no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized 
in respect of temporary differences which 
reverse during the tax holiday period, to the 
extent the Company’s gross total income is 
subject to the deduction during the tax holiday 
period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary 
differences which reverse after the tax holiday 
period is recognized in the year in which the 
temporary differences originate. However, the 
Company restricts recognition of deferred tax 
assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the 
temporary differences which originate first are 
considered to reverse first.

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per 
Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature 
of unused tax credit which can be carried 
forward and utilised when the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specified 
period. The deferred tax asset is recognised for 
MAT credit available only to the extent that it is 
probable that the concerned company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, 
i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed 
to be carried forward. In the year in which the 
company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it 
is created by way of credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as part of deferred 
tax asset. The company reviews the “MAT 
credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date 

and writes down the asset to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax 
during the specified period.

 h) Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and 
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the plant and equipment and 
borrowing costs for long-term construction 
projects if the recognition criteria are met. 
When significant parts of plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
Company depreciates them separately based 
on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when 
a major inspection is performed, its cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the 
plant and equipment as a replacement if the 
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair 
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred. The present value of the 
expected cost for the decommissioning of 
an asset after its use is included in the cost of 
the respective asset if the recognition criteria 
for a provision are met. Refer to note 29 
regarding significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions and provisions 
for further information about the recorded 
decommissioning provision.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets as follows:

- Building (refer below)

-  Roads and other civil infrastructures - 10 
years

- Land fill based on the actual usage

- Plant and machinery - 9 years

- Vehicles - 8 years

- Lab equipment - 10 years

- Computers - 3 years

  - Furniture and fixtures - 10 years

  - Office equipment - 5 years
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Landfill costs include costs such as landfill liner 
material and installation, excavation costs, 
leachate collection systems, gas collection 
systems, environmental monitoring equipment 
for groundwater and landfill gas, directly related 
engineering costs and other direct costs. The 
landfill capacity associated with each landfill is 
quantified and the landfill costs for each landfill 
are amortized over the capacity associated 
with the landfill as the capacity is utilized using 
units of consumption method.

The Company, based on technical assessment 
made by technical expert and management 
estimate, depreciates certain items of land 
development, building, plant and equipment 
over estimated useful lives which are different 
from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013. The management 
believes that these estimated useful lives are 
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the 
period over which the assets are likely to be 
used.

An item of property, plant and equipment 
and any significant part initially recognised 
is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the statement of profit and loss 
when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 i)  Basis of accounting of service concession 
agreement
The Company has determined that Appendix 
D to IND AS 115 on “Service Concession 
Arrangements (SCA)” is applicable to the 
concession agreement and hence has applied 
it in accounting for the same.

Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115, concession 
arrangements are accounted for based on the 
nature of the consideration. The intangible asset 
model is used to the extent that the Company 
receives a right to charge users of the public 
service. The financial asset model is used when 
the Company has an unconditional contractual 
right to receive cash or another financial asset 
from or at the direction of the grantor for the 
construction services.

The Company has determined that intangible 
asset model is applicable to the agreement as 
the Company is entitled to tipping fee towards 
waste disposed (intangible asset).

  Recognition and measurement

The Company has also received right to 
charge the users of a public service, such rights 
are recognised and classified as “Intangible 
Assets”. Such right is not an unconditional right 
to receive consideration because the amounts 
are contingent to the extent that the project 
receives waste and thus are recognised and 
classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible 
asset is recognised by the Company at cost 
(which is the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable for the construction 
services delivered) and is capitalized when 
each component of the project is complete in 
all respects. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
the intangible asset is measured at cost, less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

  Revenue recognition

Revenue for concession arrangements under 
intangible asset model is recognized as and 
when the related services are performed i.e. 
when the waste is collected, transported and 
processed at the processing facility.

  Revenue from construction contracts

The Company recognizes and measures revenue, 
costs and margin for providing construction 
services during the period of construction of 
the infrastructure in accordance with Ind AS 115 
‘Revenue from contracts with customers’.
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When the outcome of a construction contract 
can be estimated reliably and it is probable 
that it will be profitable, contract revenue and 
contract costs associated with the construction 
contract are recognised as revenue and 
expenses respectively by reference to the 
percentage of completion of the contract 
activity at the reporting date. The percentage 
of completion of a contract is determined 
considering the proportion that contract costs 
incurred for work performed up to the reporting 
date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

For the purposes of recognising revenue, 
contract revenue comprises the initial amount 
of revenue agreed in the contract, the variations 
in contract work, claims and incentive payments 
to the extent that it is probable that they will 
result in revenue and they are capable of being 
reliably measured.

Costs incurred for rendering the construction 
services, exchanged for the intangible asset 
and financial asset, include all costs that are 
directly related to the construction of the 
project and include all overheads other than 
those relating to general administration of the 
Company.

The percentage of completion method is applied 
on a cumulative basis in each accounting period 
to the current estimates of contract revenue 
and contract costs. The effect of a change in the 
estimate of contract revenue or contract costs, 
or the effect of a change in the estimate of the 
outcome of a contract, is accounted for as a 
change in accounting estimate and the effect of 
which are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which the change is 
made and in subsequent periods.

When the outcome of a construction contract 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of contract 
costs incurred of which recovery is probable 
and the related contract costs are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will 
exceed total contract revenue, the expected 
loss is recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which such probability occurs.

  Amortisation of Intangible asset under SCA

The intangible rights which are recognised in 
the form of right to collect tipping fee, except 
for landfill costs are amortized on a straight- 
line basis from the date of capitalization over 
the concession period. The landfill cost is 
amortized on the basis of capacity utilised by 
waste dumped in the landfills.

   Contractual obligation to restore the infrastruc-
ture to a specified level of serviceability

The Company has contractual obligation to 
maintain the infrastructure to a specified level 
of serviceability during the concession period 
and at the time of handover to the grantor of 
the SCA. Such obligations are measured at the 
best estimate of the expenditure that would be 
required to settle the obligation at the balance 
sheet date. The timing and amount of such cost 
are estimated and recognised on a discounted 
basis by creating a provision for replacement 
and capitalizing the costs to intangible assets 
and amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the concession period. The provision for 
replacement is unwound over its life using 
effective interest rate method.

 j)  Other than Service concession arrange-
ments
Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation 
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
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life are reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset are considered to modify the amortisation 
period or method, as appropriate, and are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets 
with finite lives is recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms 
part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition 
of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss 
when the asset is derecognised.

 k) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that an entity 
incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

 l) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception 
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 
is, if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration.

  Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition 
and measurement approach for all leases, 
except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises lease 
liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the 
underlying assets.

  i) Right-of-use assets

  The Company recognises right-of-use 
assets at the commencement date of the 
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset 
is available for use). For leases previously 
classified as operating leases under Ind 
AS 17, the Company has elected the 
option to recognise right-of-use asset at 
the date of initial application equal to the 
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of 
any prepaid or accrued lease payments 
relating to that lease recognised in the 
balance sheet immediately before the 
date of initial application as per paragraph 
C8(b)(ii) of Ind AS 116.

    Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, 
less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost 
of right-of-use assets includes the amount 
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct 
costs incurred, and lease payments made 
at or before the commencement date less 
any lease incentives received. Unless the 
Company is reasonably certain to obtain 
ownership of the leased asset at the end 
of the lease term, the recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of its estimated 
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use 
assets are subject to impairment.

  ii) Lease liabilities

  At the commencement date of the lease, 
the Group recognises lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of lease 
payments to be made over the lease 
term. For leases previously classified as an 
operating lease under Ind AS 17, the Group 
recognise a lease liability at the date of 
initial application. The Company measure 
that lease liability at the present value of 
the remaining lease payments, discounted 
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing 
rate at the date of initial application.



Re Sustainability Limited    |    Integrated Annual Report    2022-23 

26

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

  In calculating the present value of 
lease payments, the Company uses the 
incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date if the interest 
rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement 
date, the amount of lease liabilities 
is increased to reflect the accretion 
of interest and reduced for the lease 
payments made. In addition, the carrying 
amount of lease liabilities is re-measured 
if there is a modification, a change in the 
lease term, a change in the in-substance 
fixed lease payments or a change in the 
assessment to purchase the underlying 
asset.

  iii)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets

  The Company applies the short-term lease 
recognition exemption to its short-term 
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., 
those leases that have a lease term of 12 
months or less from the commencement 
date and do not contain a purchase 
option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to 
those items that are considered to be 
low value. Lease payments on short-term 
leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised as expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

  Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset are classified as 
operating leases. Rental income arising is 
accounted for on a straight-line basis over 
the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised over the lease term on 
the same basis as rental income. Contingent 
rents are recognised as revenue in the period 
in which they are earned.

 m) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, 
less estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 n) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, 
whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset 
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs 
of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable 
amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows 
that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or Company s of assets. When the 
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of 
disposal, recent market transactions are taken 
into account. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. These calculations are corroborated by 
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 
publicly traded companies or other available 
fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation 
on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, 
which are prepared separately for each of the 
Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets 
are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a period of five 
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years. For longer periods, a long-term growth 
rate is calculated and applied to project future 
cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash 
flow projections beyond periods covered 
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the 
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in 
the budget using a steady or declining growth 
rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing 
rate can be justified. In any case, this growth 
rate does not exceed the long-term average 
growth rate for the products, industries, 
or country or countries in which the entity 
operates, or for the market in which the asset 
is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on 
inventories, are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. An assessment is made at each 
reporting date to determine whether there 
is an indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses no longer exist or have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has 
been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. 
The reversal is limited so that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior years.

 o) Provisions 
  Provision for capping

The cost for final capping for each landfill is 
estimated based on the area to be capped and 
the capping materials and activities required. 
The estimate also considers when these 
costs are anticipated to be paid and factor in 
inflation and discount rates. These costs are 
reviewed annually, or more often if significant 
facts change. The total cost of capping is 
charged to the statement of profit or loss over 
the capacity associated with the landfill as the 
capacity is utilized. The provision for capping 

is unwound over its life using effective interest 
rate method. Changes in estimates, such as 
timing or cost of construction, for final capping 
are charged off to the statement of profit and 
loss prospectively.

  Provision for post closure

The estimates for post-closure costs are based 
on the regulatory and contractual requirements 
for post-closure monitoring and maintenance. 
The estimates for post-closure costs also 
considers when the costs are anticipated to be 
paid and factor in inflation and discount rates. 
The possibility of changing legal and regulatory 
requirements and the forward-looking nature 
of these types of costs make any estimation or 
assumption less certain. The total cost of post 
closure is charged to the statement of profit or 
loss over the quantity of waste estimated to 
be disposed in the specified site. The quantity 
of waste estimated to be disposed takes into 
consideration the remaining operating period 
of the site and the land available for waste 
disposal. These costs are reviewed annually, 
or more often if significant facts change. The 
provision for post closure is unwound over 
its life using effective interest rate method. 
Changes in estimates for closure and post-
closure events are charged off to the statement 
of profit and loss prospectively.

  General

Provisions are recognised when the Company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. 
When the Company expects some or all of a 
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under 
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset, but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The 
expense relating to a provision is presented 
in the statement of profit and loss net of any 
reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted using 
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost.

 p) Employee benefits 
  Post-employment benefits 
  Defined Contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident 
fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 
Company has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the provident fund. 
The Company recognizes contribution payable 
to the provident fund scheme as an expense, 
when an employee renders the related service. 
If the contribution payable to the scheme for 
service received before the balance sheet date 
exceeds the contribution already paid, the 
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized 
as a liability after deducting the contribution 
already paid. If the contribution already paid 
exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the balance sheet date, then 
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent 
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, 
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

  Defined benefit plan
Gratuity liability for eligible employees are 
defined benefit obligation and are provided 
for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
projected unit credit method made at the end 
of each financial year.

Obligation is measured at the present value of 
estimated future cash flows using discounted 
rate that is determined by reference to market 
yields at the balance sheet date on Government 
Securities where the currency and terms of the 
Government Securities are consistent with the 
currency and estimated terms of the defined 
benefit obligation.

Re measurements, comprising of actuarial 
gains and losses excluding amounts included in 

net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
are recognised immediately in the balance 
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through OCI in the period 
in which they occur. Re measurements are 
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or 
loss on the earlier of:

-  The date of the plan amendment or 
curtailment, and

-  The date that the Company recognises 
related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net defined benefit 
liability or asset. The Company recognises the 
following changes in the net defined benefit 
obligation as an expense in the statement of 
profit and loss:

-  Service costs comprising current service 
costs, past-service costs, gains and 
losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

  Compensated absences

The employees are entitled to accumulate 
leave subject to certain limits, for future 
encashment, as per policy of the company. 
Accrual towards compensated absences at 
the end of the financial year are based on last 
salary drawn and outstanding leave absence 
at the end of the financial year. The liability 
towards such unutilised leave at the end 
of each balance sheet date is determined 
based on independent actuarial valuation and 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 q) Share-based payments
Employees of the Company receive 
remuneration in the form of share-based 
payments, whereby employees render services 
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-
settled transactions).
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  Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is 
determined by the fair value at the date 
when the grant is made using an appropriate 
valuation model. Further details are given in 
Note 31.

That cost is recognised, together with a 
corresponding increase in share-based 
payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the 
period in which the performance and/or 
service conditions are fulfilled in employee 
benefits expense. The cumulative expense 
recognised for equity-settled transactions 
at each reporting date until the vesting date 
reflects the extent to which the vesting period 
has expired and the Company’s best estimate 
of the number of equity instruments that will 
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss 
expense or credit for a period represents the 
movement in cumulative expense recognised 
as at the beginning and end of that period and 
is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance 
conditions are not taken into account when 
determining the grant date fair value of awards, 
but the likelihood of the conditions being met 
is assessed as part of the Company’s best 
estimate of the number of equity instruments 
that will ultimately vest. Market performance 
conditions are reflected within the grant date 
fair value. Any other conditions attached to 
an award, but without an associated service 
requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are 
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead 
to an immediate expensing of an award unless 
there are also service and/or performance 
conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that 
do not ultimately vest because non-market 
performance and/or service conditions have 
not been met. Where awards include a market 
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are 
treated as vested irrespective of whether the 
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, 

provided that all other performance and/or 
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are 
modified, the minimum expense recognised 
is the expense had the terms had not been 
modified, if the original terms of the award are 
met. An additional expense is recognised for 
any modification that increases the total fair 
value of the share-based payment transaction, 
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as 
measured at the date of modification. Where 
an award is cancelled by the entity or by the 
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair 
value of the award is expensed immediately 
through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is 
reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of diluted earnings per share.

  Cash-settled transactions
A liability is recognised for the fair value of 
cash-settled transactions. The fair value is 
measured initially and at each reporting date 
up to and including the settlement date, with 
changes in fair value recognised in employee 
benefits expense. The fair value is expensed 
over the period until the vesting date with 
recognition of a corresponding liability. The 
fair value is determined using a binomial 
model, further details of which are given in 
Note 31. The approach used to account for 
vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled transactions also applies to cash-settled 
transactions.

 r) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that 
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

  Financial assets
  Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, 
as subsequently measured at amortised cost and 
fair value through profit or loss.
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The classification of financial assets at initial 
recognition depends on the financial asset’s 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the 
Company’s business model for managing 
them. With the exception of trade receivables 
that do not contain a significant financing 
component or for which the Company has 
applied the practical expedient, the Company 
initially measures a financial asset at its fair 
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain 
a significant financing component or for 
which the Company has applied the practical 
expedient are measured at the transaction 
price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the 
accounting policies in section - Revenue from 
contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and 
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give 
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is 
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at 
an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing 
financial assets refers to how it manages its 
financial assets in order to generate cash 
flows. The business model determines 
whether cash flows will result from collecting 
contractual cash flows, selling the financial 
assets, or both.

  Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, 
financial assets are classified in three categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

-  Debt instruments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

-  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity 
instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

  Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the 
amortised cost if both the following conditions 
are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and 
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the profit or 
loss. This category generally applies to trade 
and other receivables.

For more information on receivables, refer to 
Note 4D.

  Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI 
if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is 
achieved both by collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling the financial assets, 
and

b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows 
represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the 
FVTOCI category are measured initially as 
well as at each reporting date at fair value. 
Fair value movements are recognized in 
the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, the Company recognizes interest 
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income, impairment losses & reversals and 
foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On 
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst 
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as 
interest income using the EIR method.

   Debt instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt 
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does 
not meet the criteria for categorization as at 
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at 
FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the P&L.

  Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of 
a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. 
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) 
when:

-  The rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or

-  The Company has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from the asset 
or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) 
the Company has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
(b) the Company has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, 

it evaluates if and to what extent it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Company continues to recognise 
the transferred asset to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement. In 
that case, the Company also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and 
the associated liability are measured on a 
basis that reflects the rights and obligations 
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form 
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Company could be 
required to repay.

  Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company 
applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on the following financial assets and credit 
risk exposure:

a)  Financial assets that are debt instruments, 
and are measured at amortised cost e.g., 
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade 
receivables and bank balance.

b)  Trade receivables or any contractual right 
to receive cash or another financial asset 
that result from transactions that are within 
the scope of Ind AS 115.

c)  Financial guarantee contracts which are 
not measured as at FVTPL.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ 
for recognition of impairment loss allowance 
on: Trade receivables and Other receivables. 
The application of simplified approach does 
not require the Company to track changes in 
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment 
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loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 
each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on 
other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
Company determines that whether there has 
been a significant increase in the credit risk 
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12- month ECL is used to 
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit 
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is 
used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality 
of the instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognizing impairment loss allowance based 
on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses 
resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. 
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime 
ECL which results from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and all the 
cash flows that the entity expects to receive 
(i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original EIR.

  Investment in mutual funds

In respect of investments in mutual funds, the 
fair values represent net asset value as stated 
by the issuers of these mutual fund units in 
the published statements. Net asset values 
represent the price at which the issuer will issue 
further units in the mutual fund and the price at 
which issuers will redeem such units from the 
investors. Accordingly, such net asset values 
are analogous to fair market value with respect 
to these investments, as transactions of these 
mutual funds are carried out at such prices 

between investors and the issuers of these 
units of mutual funds.

  Financial liabilities

  i. Initial recognition and measurement

  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives, 
as appropriate.

  All financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value and, in the case of 
loans and borrowings and payables, net 
of directly attributable transaction costs.

  The Company’s financial liabilities include 
trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts, 
financial guarantee contracts and 
derivative financial instruments.

  ii. Subsequent measurement

  The measurement of financial liabilities 
depends on their classification, as 
described below:

   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities designated upon 
initial recognition as at fair value through profit 
or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss 
are designated as such at the initial date of 
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, 
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes 
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These 
gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to 
the statement of Profit & Loss. However, the 
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value 
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of such liability are recognized in the statement 
of profit or loss.

  Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and 
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are de recognized as well as through 
the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is 
included as finance costs in the statement of 
profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

  Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss.

  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

 s) Dividend
Final dividends on shares are recorded as 
a liability on the date of approval by the 

shareholders and interim dividends are 
recorded as a liability on the date of declaration 
by the company’s Board of Directors.

 t) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

 u) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by 
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to 
equity holder (after deducting preference 
dividends and attributable taxes) by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted 
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for 
the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 v) Segment policy
Operating segments are those components 
of the business whose operating results are 
regularly reviewed by the chief operating 
decision making body in the Company to 
make decisions for performance assessment 
and resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information is the 
same as provided to the management for the 
purpose of the performance assessment and 
resource allocation to the segments.

Segment accounting policies are in line with 
the accounting policies of the Company. In 
addition, the following specific accounting 
policies have been followed for segment 
reporting:
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i.  Segment revenue includes sales and 
other operational revenue directly 
identifiable with/allocable to the 
segment.

ii.  Expenses that are directly identifiable 
with/allocable to segments are 
considered for determining the segment 
profit.

iii.  Income and expenses which relates 
to the Company as a whole and not 
allocable to segments is included in 
“Others”.

iv.  Segment profit have been adjusted for 
the exceptional item attributable to the 
corresponding segment.

  Segment assets and liabilities include those 
directly identifiable with the respective 
segments. Unallocable corporate assets 

and liabilities represent the assets and 
liabilities that relate to the Company as a 
whole.

 w) Claims
Price escalation and other claims and/or 
variation in the contract work are included in 
contract revenue only when:

•  Negotiations have reached at an advanced 
stage (which is evidenced on receipt 
of favorable Dispute Resolution Board 
(DRB) order/first level of arbitration as per 
respective arbitration contract clauses, 
acceptance by customers, other probable 
assessments, etc.) such that it is probable 
that customer will accept the claim; and

•  The amount that is probable will be 
accepted by the customer can be 
measured reliably.
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3B. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP)
Friday,  

31 March 2023
Thursday,  

31 March 2022
Opening Balance  7,547  3,407 
Add: Additions during the year  5,956  7,047 
Less: Slump sale  -  (331)
Less: Capitalised during the year  (3,152)  (2,576)
Closing Balance  10,351  7,547 

 Ageing Schedule of Capital work in Progress:

Particulars
Amount in CWIP for a period of

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years Total

As at 31 March 2023
 - Projects in progress  3,907  4,649  457  194  9,207 
 - Projects temporarily suspended  296  646  192  10  1,144 
As at 31 March 2022
 - Projects in progress  6,515  779  63  191  7,547 
 - Projects temporarily suspended  -  -  -  -  -

 Completion schedule of Overdue Projects:

Particulars
To be completed in

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years Total

As at 31 March 2023
- Projects in progress

RESL-E-waste- Recycling Dundigal  2,046  -  -  -  2,046 
Orissa Waste Management Project  766  -  -  -  766 
Rajasthan Waste Management Project  719  -  -  -  719 
Punjab Waste Management Project  714  -  -  -  714 
Hyderabad Waste Management 
Project

 435  -  -  -  435 

Orissa Waste Management Project-
Bio Medical Waste

 212  -  -  -  212 

Karnataka Waste Management 
Project

 197  -  -  -  197 

Uttar Pradesh Waste Management 
Project

 176  -  -  -  176 

Others  35  -  -  -  35 
- Projects temporarily suspended

Arah waste management project  1,144  -  -  -  1,144 
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Particulars
To be completed in

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years Total

As at 31 March 2022
 - Projects in progress

Karnataka Waste Management Project  215  -  -  -  215 

Arah Waste Management Project  168  -  -  -  168 
Orissa Waste Management Project  149  -  -  -  149 
Rajasthan Waste Management Project  127  -  -  -  127 
Hyderabad Waste Management Project  76  -  -  -  76 
Uttar Pradesh Waste Management Project  74  -  -  -  74 
Punjab Waste Management Project  71  -  -  -  71 

Orissa Waste Management Project-Bio 
Medical Waste

 37  -  -  -  37 

Coastal Waste Management Project  36  -  -  -  36 

Arah Waste Management Project-Bihar  34  -  -  -  34 

Others  45  -  -  -  45 

3C. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Intangible assets under 
service concession 

arrangement
Computer software Total

Gross block
As at 1 April 2021 1,278 336 1,614 
Additions during the year 7  97 104 
Deletions/adjustments  - -  -
As at 31 March 2022 1,285 433 1,718 
Additions during the year 3 118 121 
Deletions/adjustments  - -  -
As at 31 March 2023 1,288 551 1,839 
Amortisation
As at 1 April 2021 553  37 590 
For the year 121 117 238 
Deletions/adjustments  - -  -
As at 31 March 2022 674 154 828 
For the year 103 163 266 
Deletions/adjustments  - -  -
As at 31 March 2023 777 317 1,094 
Net block
As at 31 March 2022 611 279 890 
As at 31 March 2023 511 234 745 
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3D. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Particulars Right-of-use assets
Building Lease Liabilities

Gross block
As at 1 April 2021  1,514 1,320 
Additions  1,265 1,194 
Deletions  (861)  (1,102)
Amortisation Expense (refer note 24)  (240)  -
Interest expense - 198 
Payments -  (240)
As at 31 March 2022  1,678 1,370 
Additions  62 62 
Deletions (45) (46)
Amortisation Expense (refer note 24)  (248)  -
Interest expense - 164 
Payments -  (352)
As at 31 March 2023  1,447 1,198 
Non-current 976 
Current 222 

 The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss:

Particulars Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Amortisation expense 248 240 

Interest expenses  (using the effective interest method) 164 198 

Rent expense (Short-term and low value leases) 155 88 

Total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss 567 526 

4. FINANCIAL ASSET
4A. Investments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
A. In associates and joint venture
 Trade (Unquoted) (At cost unless otherwise stated)
(i) Investment in equity shares
 (a)  1,25,000 (31 March 2022: 125,000) equity shares of OMR 1 

each of Al Ahlia Environmental Services Co LLC, Oman
146 146 

 (b)  4,90,000 (31 March 2022: 4,90,000) equity shares of SAR 1 
each of Ramky- AL-Turki Environmental Services Company 
Limited, Saudi Arabia 

 59  59 

Total aggregate investments in associates and joint venture 205 205 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022
B. In subsidiaries
 Trade (Unquoted) (At cost unless otherwise stated)
(i) Investment in equity shares - Indian entities
  3,692,600 (31 March 2022 - 3,692,600) equity shares of Rs.10/- 

each of Mumbai Waste Management Limited 
586 583 

  5,858,963 (31 March 2022 - 5,858,963) equity shares of Rs.10/- 
each of Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky IWM Private Limited)

646 642 

  16,604,096 (31 March 2022 - 16,604,096) equity shares of Rs.10/- 
each of Re Sustainability IWM Solutions Limited (formerly known 
as Tamilnadu Waste Management Limited)

1,667 1,666 

  23,106,417 (31 March 2022 - 23,106,417) equity shares of Rs.10/- 
each of Delhi MSW Solutions Limited (refer note (d) given below)

3,522 3,519 

  10,345,050 (31 March 2022 - 10,345,050) equity shares of Rs.10/- 
each of West Bengal Waste Management Limited

1,199 1,199 

  NIL (31 March 2022 - 765,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Visakha Solvents Limited (refer note (i))

-  77 

  500,000 (31 March 2022 -500,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 
of Hyderabad MSW Energy solutions Private Limited (net of 
provision of Rs.33.46(31 March 2021 - Rs.33.46)) (refer note (f) 
given below)

741 740 

  50,000 (31 March 2022 - 50,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited (refer note (b) & (c) given below)

779 777 

  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of 
Maridi Bio Industries Private Limited 

1 1 

  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Pithampur Industrial Waste Management Private Limited 

1 1 

  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Re Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as 
Ramky Enviro Services Private Limited)

1 1 

  1,000,000 (31 March 2022 - 1,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- 
each of Chennai MSW Private Limited

136 133 

  18,60,000 (31 March 2022 - 18,60,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each of Re Sustainability & Recycling Private Limited (formerly 
known as Ramky Reclamation and Recycling Private Limited) 
(refer note (h) given below)

263 257 

  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of 
Adityapur Waste Management Private Limited

1 1 

  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each of 
Dehradun Waste Management Private Limited

1 1 

  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Chennai Enviro Solutions Private Limited

1 1 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022
  10,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of IP 

MSW Solutions Limited
1 1 

9,546 9,600 
(ii) Investment in equity shares - Foreign entities
  10,938,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,938,000) equity shares of SGD 1 

each of Re Sustainability International (Singapore) Pte Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky International (Singapore) Pte Limited)

3,992 3,991 

  10,446 (31 March 2022 - 10,446) equity shares of AED 1,000 each 
of Re Sustainability Enviro Engineers Middle East FZ LLC (formerly 
known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Middle East FZ LLC)

1,698 1,691 

  1000 (31 March 2022- 1000) Equity shares of Bangladeshi Taka 100 
each, fully paid of Ramky Enviro Engineers Ltd- Bangladesh 

1 1 

5,691 5,683 

 (iii) Investment in preference shares

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

  4,550,000 (31 March 2022 - 4,550,000) 0.001%, cumulative 
convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Delhi MSW Solutions Limited 

455 455 

  51,912,570 (31 March 2022 - 51,912,570) 0.001%, cumulative 
convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited (refer note (b) given below)

5,191 5,191 

  15,780,000 (31 March 2022 - 15,780,000) 0.001%, cumulative 
convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs.10/- each of 
West Bengal Waste Management Limited 

1,578 1,578 

  4,46,518 (31 March 2022 - 4,46,518) 0.001%, cumulative convertible 
redeemable preference shares of Rs.10/- each of Re Sustainability 
& Recycling Private Limited (refer note (h) given below)

 45  45 

7,269 7,269 
(iv) Investment in debentures
  30,000,000 (31 March 2022 - 30,000,000) 0.001%, Compulsorily 

Convertible Debentures of Rs.10/- each of Re Sustainability 
Industrial Solutions Private Limited 

958 958 

  40,000,000 (31 March 2022 - 40,000,000) 0.001%, Compulsorily 
Convertible Debentures of Rs.10/- each of Delhi MSW Solutions 
Limited (refer note a)

2,944 2,944 

  5,52,30,000 (31 March 2022 - 5,52,30,000) 0.001%, Compulsorily 
Convertible Debentures of Rs.10/- each of Hyderabad MSW Energy 
Solutions Private Limited (refer note - (e(i)) & (g) given below)

5,523 5,523 

9,425 9,425 
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Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

(v) Investment in perpetual debt (refer note e(ii))
 Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited (refer note e(i)) 5,354 5,354 

 Delhi MSW Solutions Limited  17,000  17,000 

 Hyderabad C&D Waste Treatment Private Limited 2,659 1,364 

 Rewa MSW Management Solutions Limited 2,000 2,000 

 Saagar MSW Solutions Private Limited 2,000 2,000 

 Dhanbad Integrated MSW Limited 1,248 186 

 Katni MSW Management Private Limited 1,500 1,500 

 Dehradun Waste Management Private Limited 1,204 904 

 Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited 3,835 3,735 

 REWA MSW Energy Solutions Limited 8,381 2,614 

 Dundigal Waste 2 Energy Limited  20,170 7,263 

 IP MSW Solutions Pvt Limited 2,098 -

 67,449  43,920 
 Total aggregate investments in subsidiaries (B)  99,380  75,897 

C. In others
 Trade (Unquoted) (At cost)
(i) Investment in equity shares
  10,15,000 (31 March 2022 - 10,15,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- 

each of Pithampur Auto Cluster Limited 
102 102 

 Total aggregate investments in others (C) 102 102 
  Total aggregate investments in subsidiaries and other entities [B +C]  99,482  75,999 
 Grand total Non current [A+B+C]  99,687  76,204 
 Aggregate value of unquoted investments  99,687  76,204 

 Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 1,698 1,698 

 Notes:

 a)  24,000,000 (31 March 2022 - 24,000,000) 0.001%, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs.10/- each of 
Delhi MSW Solutions Limited have been pledged in favour of Power Finance Corporation Limited for loans 
availed by Delhi MSW Solutions Limited.

 b)  15,000 (31 March 2022 - 15,000) equity shares and 51,912,570 (31 March 2022 - 51,912,570) preference shares of 
Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited have been pledged in favour of State Bank of India for loans availed by 
Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited.

 c)  Non disposal undertaking (NDU) and power of attorney arrangement over 10,500 (31 March 2022 - 10,500) 
equity shares of Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited in favour of State Bank of India for loans availed by 
Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited.
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 d)  23,106,417 (31 March 2022 - 23,106,417) equity shares of Delhi MSW Solutions Limited have been pledged in 
favour of Power Finance Corporation Limited for loans availed by Delhi MSW Solutions Limited.

 e)  (i)) During the previous year, the terms of inter-corporate deposit (ICD) given to subsidiary of the Company 
had been changed to convert the same into Unsecured Perpetual Debt (“UPD”) to the extent of Rs.5,523. 
Further, the company has redeemed part of UPD amounting to Rs.2,46,646 during the previous year.

 e)  (ii)) UPD is perpetual in nature with no option towards voting rights, redemption, conversion into equity 
shares and are repayable at the option of the subsidiary company. The rate of interest payable shall be at 
the rate at which dividend has been declared by the subsidiary company to its equity shareholders for the 
financial year and the same shall be on non-cumulative basis. The interest accrued, if any, shall be payable 
at the option of the subsidiary company out of reserves available for dividend distribution. UPD shall be 
subordinated to the debt of lenders, if any, of the subsidiary company.

 f)  51,000 (31 March 2022 - 51,000) equity shares of Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Limited have been pledged 
in favour of Power Finance Corporation Limited for loans availed by Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private 
Limited.

 g)  2,81,67,300 (31 March 2022 - 2,81,67,300) Compulsory Convertible Debentures of Hyderabad MSW Energy 
Solutions Limited have been pledged in favour of Power Finance Corporation Limited for loans availed by 
Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited.

 h)  In FY 2021-22, Pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement (Scheme), the following wholly 
owned subsidiaries of the Company viz., (1) Ramky Reclamation and Recycling Limited (RRRL); (2) Deccan 
Recyclers Private Limited (DRPL); (3) Ramky e-waste Management Limited (REWML); and (4) Delhi Cleantech 
Services Limited (DCSPL) have merged into Jodhpur MSW Private Limited (JMPL) and the name of the merged 
entity was changed to “Re Sustainability & Recycling Private Limited”. The new entity allotted shares to the 
respective shareholders.

 i)  During the current year, the Company has sold its investment in Visakha Solvents Limited pursuant to share 
purchase agreement executed with Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Private Limited.

4B. Loans (Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Inter corporate deposit to related parties  36,834  18,311 
Inter corporate deposit to others  465  465 

 37,299  18,776 
Less: Allowance for doubtful assets  (223)  (220)

 37,076  18,556 
Current
Inter corporate deposits to related parties  601  3,328 

 601  3,328 

  Note-1: Inter corporate deposit to related parties are repayable in 2years/5 years and carries interest @ 10.50% (31 
March 2022:10.50% p.a). (refer note 33).
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  Note-2: Intercorporate deposit given to Delhi MSW Solutions Limited carries interest @ 9.35% p.a (31 March 2022: 10.50% p.a)

  All the Inter corporate deposit have issued between group companies in the normal course of business under the 
treasury activities. No money was advances or invested to entities outside the group.

4C. Other financial asset (Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non current

Security deposits  769  706 

Fixed Deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months*  9,162  5,112 

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Receivable on account of sale of asset  -  186 

Earnest money deposits  66  366 

Less: Provision for earnest money deposits  (66)  (66)

 9,931  6,304 

Current

Earnest money deposit  306  -

Unbilled revenue  1  -

Interest accrued  323  173 

 630  173 

 *  Includes Rs.6,627 (31 March 2022: Rs.4,580) deposited in escrow account as per terms of Hazardous Waste (Management, 
Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008.

4D. Trade receivables (Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current

Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 33)  1,774  3,447 

Trade receivables from others  16,139  12,297 

 17,913  15,744 

Impairment allowance

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  (2,431)  (6,068)

 15,482  9,676 

 Notes 4D-1: There are no trade receivables due from Companies/partnership firm in which group’s director is a director/partner.

  Notes 4D-2: Trade receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of less than 1 year as mutually 
agreed with the customers.



Re Sustainability Limited    |    Integrated Annual Report    2022-23 

44

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Ageing Schedule of Trade receivables:

Particulars Not Due

Outstanding for the following periods from the  
due date of payment

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years Total

As at 31 March 2023

Undisputed Trade receivables – 
Considered good

- Related parties 379 1,331  24  3 37 1,774 

- Others  7,096 6,500 600 266 1,074 15,536 

Undisputed Trade Receivables –
Credit Impaired

 -  -  - - 316 316 

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered good

 -  -  - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired

 -  -  - - 287 287 

As at 31 March 2022

Undisputed Trade receivables – 
Considered good

- Related parties 311 1,768 896 385 87  3,447 

- Others  3,262 3,593 347 592 557  8,351 

Undisputed Trade Receivables –
Credit Impaired

 - -  - - 316 316 

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered good

 - -  - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired

 - 271 151 770 2,438 3,630 

 Relationship with struck off companies

Name of the struck off 
company

Nature of 
transactions

Transactions during 
the year ended  
31 March 2022

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2022

Transactions during 
the year ended  
31 March 2023#

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2023
I.G.S. Chemicals  
Private Limited

Trade receivables  - - 1 1 

Sharman Woollen Mills 
Limited #

Trade receivables  -  1 0 2 

Zoheb Leather Finisher 
Private Limited #

Trade receivables  - - 0 0 

 # Nil due to Rounding Off
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4E. Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cash on hand  2  2 

Balances with banks:

 On current account  1,238  4,017 

 Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months  13  29,635 

 1,253  33,654 

 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Change in liabilities arising from financing 
activities 31 March 2022  Cash Flow Others 31 March 2023

Non-current borrowings 250 8,366 (1,743)  6,873 

Current borrowings  2,670 (1,840)  1,743  2,573 

Total liabilities from financing activities  2,920 6,526 -  9,446 

 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

31 March 2021  Cash Flow Others 31 March 2022

Non-current borrowings 428  (301)  123  250 

Current borrowings  1,529 1,264 (123)  2,670 

Total liabilities from financing activities  1,957 963 -  2,920 

4F. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non-current

Balance with banks:

On current accounts (escrow accounts)  139  62 

 139  62 

Current

Other Bank Balances

Deposit with remaining maturity less than 12 months  877  2,466 

 877  2,466 
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 Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Loans (current) (refer note 4B)  601  3,328 

Loans (non current) (refer note 4B)  37,076  18,556 

Other Financial asset (current) (refer note 4C)  630  173 

Other Financial asset (non- current) (refer note 4C)  9,931  6,304 

Trade receivables (current) (refer note 4D)  15,482  9,676 

Cash and cash equivalent (refer note 4E)  1,253  33,654 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (current)  
(refer note 4F)

 877  2,466 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (non current) 
(refer note 4F)

 139  62 

Total financial assets carried at amortised cost  65,989  74,219 

5.  INVENTORIES (VALUED AT LOWER OF COST AND NET REALISABLE VALUE)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw materials, tools and spares  1,954  1,023 

Finished goods  11  8 

 1,965  1,031 

6. TAX ASSETS

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non current

Advance income tax (net of provision for income tax)  1,562  1,402 

 1,562  1,402 

7. OTHER ASSETS (UNSECURED AND CONSIDERED GOOD UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
7A. Non-current

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Capital advances  768  1,118 

Balances with government authority (amount paid under protest)  437  459 

Prepayments  -  54 

 1,205  1,631 
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7B. Current

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract assets
 Retention Money receivable
 Unsecured - considered good  391  417 
 Unsecured - considered doubtful  31  31 
 Impairment allowance Doubtful receivable  (31)  (31)

 391  417 
Unbilled Revenue
 Unsecured - considered good  1,393  744 
 Unsecured - considered doubtful  38  38 
 Impairment allowance Doubtful asset  (38)  (38)

 1,393  744 
Advance to employees
 Considered good  70  64 
 Considered doubtful  47  47 
 Less: provision for doubtful advances  (47)  (47)

 70  64 
Advances to supplier and service providers  1,204  1,321 
Other advances  65  49 
Balances with government authority  1,229  2,155 
Prepaid expenses  768  572 

 5,120  5,322 

8. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Class A - Equity 
shares

Class B - Equity 
shares

0.001% Compulsory 
convertible 

preference Shares

0.00001% Optionally 
convertible 

redeemable 
preference shares 

Redeemable 
preference shares 

Face value of  
Rs. 10 each

Face value of 
Rs. 10 each

Face value of  
Rs. 100 each

Face value of  
Rs. 15 each

Face value of  
Rs. 100 each

Number of 
shares in 

Lakhs

INR 
Lakhs

Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs#

INR 
lakhs

Number 
of shares 

in lakhs
INR lakhs

Number 
of shares 

in lakhs
INR lakhs

Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs

INR 
lakhs

(i)  Authorised share capital

 As at 1 April 2021  2,025 20,252  -  0  1  100  13  202  1  71 

  Increase/ (decrease) 
during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

 As at 31 March 2022  2,025 20,252  -  0  1  100  13  202  1  71 

  Increase/ (decrease) 
during the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

 As at 31 March 2023  2,025 20,252  -  0  1  100  13  202  1  71 
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Class A - Equity 
shares

Class B - Equity 
shares

0.001% Compulsory 
convertible 

preference Shares

0.00001% Optionally 
convertible 

redeemable 
preference shares 

Redeemable 
preference shares 

Face value of  
Rs. 10 each

Face value of 
Rs. 10 each

Face value of  
Rs. 100 each

Face value of  
Rs. 15 each

Face value of  
Rs. 100 each

Number of 
shares in 

Lakhs

INR 
Lakhs

Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs#

INR 
lakhs

Number 
of shares 

in lakhs
INR lakhs

Number 
of shares 

in lakhs
INR lakhs

Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs

INR 
lakhs

ii)  Issued equity share 
capital  

 As at 1 April 2021  42  418  -  0 

 Issued during the year  -  -  -  -

  Redeemed/ transferred 
during the year  -  -  -  -

 As at 31 March 2022  42  418  -  0 

  Issued during the year 
(refer note iv(b))  1  5  -  -

  Redeemed/ transferred 
during the year  -  -  -  -

As at 31 March 2023  42  423  -  0 

 # Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

 (iii) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
   The Company have two classes of equity shares, i.e. Class A and Class B,  having par value of Rs. 10/- each. 

Each equity share holder is entitled to one vote per equity share held.  Both classes of equity shares have 
same voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by 
the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

   In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 (iv) Terms/ rights attached to preference shares
  a. Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares and Redeemable Preference Shares:
    Compulsory convertible preference Shares are convertible into equity shares and are entitled to 0.001% 

dividend. The terms of these preference shares have been amended and converted into redeemable 
preference shares. These shares were redeemed on 8 February 2019 but were extinguished from the 
records subsequent to the balance sheet.

  b. Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS):
   -  The face value of each OCRPS is Rs 15 each and carries dividend of 0.00001% which is cumulative and 

participative based on the formula specified in the Share Subscription and Share Purchase Agreement (SSPA).

   -  OCRPS shall be redeemed for cash on the twentieth anniversary of their issuance, unless converted or 
redeemed earlier.
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   -  The existing shareholders have agreed to indemnify the investor / the Company along with its 
subsidiaries on the happening of certain events specified the SSPA. It also specifies the nature of 
indemnity along with indemnified amount and period of such indemnity after closing date.

   -  These preference shares are convertible into equity shares or redeemed based on agreed indemnity 
events and mechanism specified in SSPA.

   -  The Company shall automatically convert all the remaining OCRPS (that have not been converted/
redeemed) into equity shares representing 1 equity share i.e. after nineteen years from the date of 
allotment.

   - During current year, the Company has been converted 11,10,909 OCRPS into 52,217 equity shares.

 (v)  The details of shares held by shareholder holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the 
Company.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares  

in lakhs % of holding Number of shares  
in lakhs % of holding

Class A equity shares:
A Ishaan  14 34%  14 34%
Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

 25 60%  25 60%

Class B equity shares:
Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

 0* 100%  0* 100%

Optionally Convertible 
Redeemable Preference Shares:
Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

 2 100%  13 100%

  * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

 (vi) The details of shares held by Promoters
  As at 31 March 2023

Promoter Name
Class of 
Equity Shares

Face value
No. of shares at 

the beginning 
of the year

Change 
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of 
Total 

Shares

% change 
during the 

year

A Ishaan
Class A equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each  1,424,851  -  1,424,851 34% 0%

Metropolis 
Investments Holdings 
PTE Limited

Class A equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each  2,485,488  52,217  2,537,705 60% 2%

Metropolis 
Investments Holdings 
PTE Limited

Class B equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each  100  -  100 100% 0%

Metropolis 
Investments Holdings 
PTE Limited

OCRPS  1,339,472  (1,110,909)  228,563 100% -83%
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 As at 31 March 2022

Promoter Name
Class of 
Equity Shares

Face value

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
of the year

Change 
during the 

year

No. of 
shares at the 

end of the 
year

% of 
Total 

Shares

% change 
during the 

year

A Ayodhya rami Reddy **
Class A equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each 1,608,399  (1,424,850)  183,549 4% -89%

A Ishaan
Class A equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each 1  1,424,850  1,424,851 34% 142485000%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings PTE Limited

Class A equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each 2,485,488  -  2,485,488 60% 0%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings PTE Limited

Class B equity 
shares

Rs. 10 each 100  -  100 100.00% 0%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings PTE Limited

OCRPS 1,339,472  -  1,339,472 100.00% 0%

 **  Mr. A Ayodhya Rami Reddy ceases to be a promoter with effect from 31 March 2022 on transfer of significant stake to  
Mr. A Ishaan.

9. OTHER EQUITY

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Capital reserve
 Opening balance 17,924 17,924 

 Add: Increase during the year - - 

 Closing balance (A) 17,924 17,924 
b) Share-based payment Reserve
 Opening balance  2,498  2,142 

  Add: Shares based compensation to employees for the year 
(refer note 31)

206 356 

 Closing balance (B)  2,704  2,498 
c) Equity component of compound financial instruments 
 Opening balance 71,162 71,162 

 Issue of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares - - 

 Closing balance (C) 71,162 71,162 
d) Retained earning
 Opening balance 46,233 41,472 

 Add: Profit for the year  8,330  4,805 

 Other comprehensive Income:

 Remeasurement Losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 53 (44)

 Add: Received / (transfer) during the year - - 

 Closing balance (D) 54,616 46,233 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

e) Capital redemption reserve
 Opening balance 1 1 

 Add: Received / (transfer) during the year - - 

 Closing balance (E) 1 1 
f) Securities premium 
 Opening Balance - - 

 Add: Premium on redemption of preference shares 9,281 - 

 Closing balance (F) 9,281 - 
 Total other equity (G=A+B+C+D+E+F) 155,688 137,818 

 Nature and purpose of reserves:
 (i) Retained earnings
   Retained earnings are the profits/losses (net of appropriations) of the company earned till date, including 

items of other comprehensive income.

 (ii) Securities premium
   Securities premium represents the premium received on issue of shares over and above the face value of 

equity shares. The reserve is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies  
Act, 2013.

 (iii) Share-based payment reserve
   The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to 

employees under Employee stock option plan.

 (iv) Equity component of compound financial instruments
   The Company has issued Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) during the year 

ended 31 March 2019. Considering the accounting principles to be followed in line with Indian Accounting 
Standards, the Company has computed the liability portion of OCRPS as the present value of the contractual 
obligations associated with the instrument. The difference between the issue amount of the OCRPS and the 
liability so computed has been treated as the “Equity component of compound financial instruments” and 
grouped under other equity.

 (v) Capital reserve
   During F.Y 2018-19, pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation (the ‘scheme’) sanctioned by the Hyderabad 

bench of National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) vide its order dated 14 March 2019, Bhubaneswar Industrial 
Waste Management (Orissa) Private Limited (‘transferor company’), a subsidiary of the Company, merged with 
the Company with effect from 1 April 2018 (the ‘appointed date’). The amalgamation qualifies as a common 
control business combination and is accounted under ‘pooling of interest’ method specified in Ind AS 103 
Business Combinations notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 
The amalgamation had resulted in transfer of assets and liabilities in accordance with the terms of the Scheme 
at the following summarised values. Capital reserve represents the difference the net assets transferred and 
purchase consideration.
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 (vi) Capital Redemption Reserve
   This is a statutory requirement to be create in case the company redeemed the preference share capital or 

Buy-back of equity share capital. The same is created by the company on redemption of OCRPS.

10. BORROWINGS
10A. Borrowings

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non Current Current* Non Current Current*

Non-current borrowings
Secured (at amortized cost)
(a)  Term loans from banks-IDFC First 

Bank  6,723  1,802  -  -

Term loans from others
(b) Pithampur Autocluster Limited  150  100  250  100 

 6,873  1,902  250  100 
Vehicle loans from banks
(c)  ICICI Bank Limited  -  -  -  26 

 -  -  -  26 
Vehicle loans from others
(d)  Cholamandalam Investment and 

Finance Company Limited  -  -  -  13 

(e)  Mahindra & Mahindra Financial 
Services Limited  -  -  -  20 

 -  -  -  33 
 6,873  1,902  250  159 

10B. Current borrowings
 Secured (at amortized cost)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash credit
(a) State Bank of India  671  2,511 

(b) Current maturities of long term borrowings  1,902  159 

 2,573  2,670 

 Security details of borrowings:
 (i) borrowing mentioned in (a) is hypothecated as and by way of:

  -  ‘First pari passu charge on Movable Fixed Assets (other than vehicles under hire purchase) of the 
borrower both present and future.

  - Second pari passu charge on Current Assets of the borrower both present and future.

  - Negative lien on the properties (land and building) as below:

   1) 13.759 Acre at Kumbi Tahsil, Akbarpoor Dt, UP - UPWMP (Kanpur)
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   2) 1 Acre at Kumbi Tahsil, Akbarpoor Dt, UP- UPWMP (Kanpur)

   3) 1 Acre at Mauja-Madui, Patna, Bihar - Arah, Patna

   4) 12.25 Acre at Mouja-Pabaya, Saltora Thana- Saltora WB

   5) 2.4 Acre Imarath Kancha of Ravirayala, Maheshwaram, Ranga Reddy- E-Waste

  - Building owned by the company as below:
   - Balotra Waste Management Project Vill-Kher, Tehsil - Pachpadara, 344022,Barmer, Rajasthan

   - Belgaum MSW Project- P&D Vengurla Road, 591153, Belgaum Karnataka 

   - Coastal Waste Management, JNPC E-Bonangi Village, 531021 Vizag, Andhra Pradesh 

   - E-waste Recycling Sery. No 684/1, Dundigal Villa 500043, Medchal District, Telangana

   - Hyderabad Waste Management Project, Survey No 684/1, Dundigal, 500043 Ranga Reddy, Telangana

   - Karnataka Waste Management Project KIADB industrial Area, 562111, Bangalore, Karnataka

   - Koyambedu MSW project- Integrity Survey No. 90/2600092, Chennai, Tamil Nadu

   - Madhya Pradesh Waste Management Project, Madhya Pradesh Waste Mgmt., 104, 454775 DHAR

   - Orissa Waste Management Project, Plot No-420/648/1, Kalinga Naga, 755018 Jajapur, Odisha

   - Punjab Waste Management Project, opp. Vardhaman Chemicals 140507, Mohali, Punjab

   - Rajasthan Waste Management Project, Survey No. 1018/13, 313024, Udaipur, Rajasthan

   - Re Sustainability Limited - UPWMP BMW, Plot No: 672, on NH-2, Sikandra 209101, Uttar Pradesh

   - Shimoga MSW Project-P&D Survey No. 290-293, 577204, Shimoga, Karnataka

   - Uttar Pradesh Waste Management Project Plot No : 672, On NH-2, Sikandra, 209101, Uttar Pradesh”

 (ii) borrowing mentioned in (b) is secured by:

  -  Corporate Guarantee for the full, prompt and punctual payment of the principle and interest.

  -  Underatking that Re Sustainability Limited will not demand the redemption of its preference shares till 
the repayment of the entire term loan granted by Pithampur Auto Cluster Limited.

 (iii) Loans mentioned in (c) to (e) are secured by hypothecation of respective assets for which loans were availed.

 (iv) Loan mentioned in 11B (a) is secured by 

   Cash credit amounting to Rs.671 (31 March 2022: Rs. 2511) obtained from State Bank of India is secured by way 
of

  -  Pari passu first charge by way of Hypothecation on all current assets of the copmany along with Axis 
Bank, the other working capital lender under MBA.
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  -  Exclusive first charge on the fixed assets of Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions Limited (formerly 
known as Ramky Energy and Environment Limited) including equitable mortgage of the following

  a)  1 Acre 20 cents together with ACC building of super build-up area of 6482 Sq from Edapadi Sangagiri 
Main Road in Survey NO.10/1A at Thangayur Village, EdappadiTaluk, Salem District, State of Tamil Nadu

  b)  All that piece and parcel of land situated at Thangayur village, EdappadiTaluk, Salem District with S No. 
10/1A land measuring 9 acres 16 cents at Thangayur village, EdappadiTaluk, Salem District, State of Tamil 
Nadu.

  c)  All that the land in S No. 136/I admeasuring Acres 0.47 Cents and the land in survey NO. 136/4C 
admeasuring acres 1.28 Cents and the land in S No 137/4B admeasuring Acres 3-10 Cents total Land 
admeasuring 4.85 Cents situated in Undurumikidakutam Village, Mukkulam Mandikutam Panchayat and 
Narikudi Panchayat Union, Sivagangai District and Subdistrict and Subdistrict of Thiruppuvanam of Tamil 
Nadu.

  d)  All that piece and parcel of commercial land together with Undurumikidakutam Village, Thiuruchuli Taluk, 
Virundhunagar District of Tamil Nadu with S No. 136/3 B admeasuring an extent of 2 acres and 32 cents.

  - Second charge on Fixed Assets of Mumbai Waste Management Ltd.

  -  Second charge on Pari passu basis along with other working capital lenders on the fixed assets of Re 
Sustainability Limited (Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Ltd.)

  - Pari passu second charge on all chargeable current assets of the company.

  - Corporate Guarantee of Mumbai Waste Management Limited

  -  Corporate Guarantee of Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions Limited (formerly known as Ramky Energy 
and Environment Ltd.)

 Term of Interest

 i)  The rate of interest for term loan from Pithampur Auto cluster limited is 8% p.a on daily outstanding balance 
with six monthly reset by end of 31 March and 30 September, every year.

 ii)  The rate of interest for vehicle loans from Banks is in range of 8.99% to 10.25% p.a and on others ranges from 
8.09% p.a to 10.50%

 iii)  The rate of interest for term loan from IDFC is 9.10% p.a.p.m and the loan shall be repaid 10 % in year 1 and 30 
% every year from year 2 to year 4.

Terms of repayment
Financial Year

F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2025-26 F.Y. 2026-27
Non Current Borrowings
Secured at Amortized cost
Term loans from banks
(a) IDFC First Bank 1,802 2,703 2,703 1,317 

(b) Pithampur Auto cluster limited 100 100 50  -

1,902 2,803 2,753 1,317 
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11. TRADE PAYABLES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

-  Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(refer note 34)

 1,453  695 

-  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises.

 8,171  9,502 

- Dues to related parties (refer note 33)  260  883 

 9,884  11,080 

 Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
 - Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within credit terms.

 Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables: 

Particulars Provision for 
expenses Not Due

Outstanding for the following periods from the  
due date of payment*

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years Total

As at 31 March 2023
Micro Small Medium 
Enterprises

- Undisputed Dues -  -    -   - - - -
- Related Parties -  -    -   - - - -
- Others -  552  720 105  50 26 1,453 
- Disputed dues -  -    -   - - - -

Other than Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises

- Undisputed Dues -  -    -   - - - -
- Related Parties -  123  13  61  62 1 260 
- Others 4,496  1,228  1,555 143 140 609 8,171 
- Disputed dues -  -    -   - - - -

As at 31 March 2022
Micro Small Medium 
Enterprises

- Undisputed Dues -  -    -   - - - -
- Related Parties -  -    -   - - - -
- Others -  283  313 76  16  7 695 
- Disputed dues -  -    -   - - - -

Other than Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises

-  -    -   - - - -

- Undisputed Dues -
- Related parties -  189  661  26  6 - 883 
- Others  5,487  2,199  1,127 204 102  383 9,502 
- Disputed dues -  -    -   - - - -
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 Relationship with struck off companies

Name of the struck off company Nature of transactions Transactions during 
the year ended  
31 March 2023

Outstanding  
as at 31 March 2023

Divyanka Engineers # Trade Payables 0 0 

Pawan Envion And Aqua Engineering Trade Payables 2 2 

Ronni Facilities Management Pvt Ltd Trade Payables 5 5 

Solvics Facilities Management Trade Payables 5 5 

 # Nil due to Rounding Off

12. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non Current 

At fair value through profit and loss

0.00001% Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares 
(refer note 8)

 2,194  11,480 

Total non-current other financial liabilities  2,194  11,480 

Current 

At amortised cost

Capital Creditors#  1,193  1,675 

Security deposit payable**  3,769  3,700 

Interest accrued and due  2  1 

Retention money payable  486  506 

Interest on micro and small enterprises payable (refer note 34)  142  27 

 5,592  5,909 

 #Includes payable to related parties amounting to Rs.64 (31 March 2022: Rs.367) (refer note 33)
 **  Security deposits received from customers are repayable on demand, Since the Company does not have an unconditional 

right to defer the payment, these deposits have been classified as current balances.

 Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings (Non current) (refer note 10A)  6,873  250 

Borrowings (Current) (refer note 10B)  2,573  2,670 

Trade payables (Current) (refer note 11)  9,884  11,080 

Other financial liabilities (Non current) (refer note 12)  2,194  11,480 

Other financial liabilities (Current) (refer note 12)  5,592  5,909 

Total of financial liabilities carried at amortized cost  27,116  31,389 
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13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
 Deferred tax liabilities (net)  8,020  5,927 

 MAT credit entitlement (refer note 27)  (4,853)  (5,448)

 3,167  479 

14. LIABILITIES FOR CURRENT TAX (NET)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for taxes (net of advance tax)  204  226 

 204  226 

15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non current
Opening balance  102  109 
Less: Recognised in statement of profit and loss  (7)  (7)
Closing balance  95  102 

16. PROVISIONS
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non current
Provision for employee benefits 
- Gratuity (refer note 30)  200  285 
- Compensated absences  207  194 
Other provisions
- Provision for replacement of assets under service concession  29  20 
- Provision for capping  1,803  706 
- Provision for post closure  2,716  2,205 

 4,955  3,410 
Current
Provision for employee benefits 
- Gratuity (refer note 30)  135  168 
- Compensated absences  109  110 
Other provisions
- Provision for capping obligation  2,118  2,118 
- Provision for incineration  99  74 
- Provision for replacement of assets under service concession  350  350 

 2,811  2,820 
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 Movement in provisions for the year ended 31 March 2023:

Replacement 
of assets Capping Post closure Incineration

At the beginning of the year  370  2,824  2,205  74 

Add: Provision made during the year  -  634  261  831 

Add: Interest expenses (using the effective 
interest rate method)

 9  361  254  -

Less: Provision reversed/utilized/transferred 
during the year

 (0)  102  (4)  (806)

At the end of the year  379  3,921  2,716  99 
Short-term provision  350  2,118  -  99 

Long-term provision  29  1,803  2,716  -

 Movement in provisions for the year ended 31 March 2022:

Replacement 
of assets Capping Post closure Incineration

At the beginning of the year  359  3,335  2,073  89 

Add: Provision made during the year  -  429  210  781 

Add: Interest expenses (using the effective 
interest rate method)

 12  144  228  -

Less: Provision reversed/utilized during the year  (1)  (1,084)  (306)  (796)

At the end of the year  370  2,824  2,205  74 
Short-term provision  350  2,118  -  74 

Long-term provision  20  706  2,205  -

17. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Contract Liability

 - Deferred income  1,047  1,210 

 1,047  1,210 
Current
Contract Liability

 - Advances from customers#  3,313  1,381 

 - Deferred income  162  162 

 - Unearned revenue  10  10 

Statutory dues payables  270  986 

 3,755  2,539 

 # Includes advance received from related parties amounting to Rs. 2,381 (31 March 2022 : Rs. 838) (refer note.33)
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18. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rendering of services
- Revenue from waste disposal activities  41,160  33,903 

- Revenue from turnkey contracts  792  219 

- Revenue from consultancy and other services  3,367  3,845 

- Revenue from service concession activity  3  6 

Sale of goods
- Revenue from sale of goods  39  56 

 45,361  38,029 

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Contract balances
Trade receivables  15,482  9,676 

Contract assets  1,784  1,161 

Contract liabilities  3,323  1,391 

  Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. Contract assets include 
retention money receivable from customers and unbilled revenue. Contract liabilities include advacne from 
customers, deferred income and unearned revenue.

  Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue as per contracted price  45,552  38,425 

Adjustments

Performance Penalties  (191)  (396)

Revenue from contracts with customers  45,361  38,029 

19. OTHER INCOME

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on

- Loan to related party  3,184  2,240 

- Bank and other deposits  438  418 

- Interest income (using the effective interest method)  356  395 

- Others  1  38 

Liabilities no longer required written back  62  346 

Foreign exchange gain (net)  4  49 

Gain on slump sale of an undertaking  -  777 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  23  32 

Apportionment of government grants  7  7 

Profit on sale of investments  290  206 

Dividend income  -  1 

Insurance claims  1  5 

Other non-operating income  114  250 

 4,480  4,764 

20. COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,023  1,228 

Add: Purchases during the year  4,286  2,050 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  (1,954)  (1,023)

 3,355  2,255 

21. CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Construction cost on service concession activity  3  4 

 3  4 

22. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries, allowances and wages  6,382  6,126 

Contribution to provident fund and other funds  314  359 
Staff welfare expenses  295  304 
Gratuity expense  100  111 
Share-based payment expenses (refer note 31)  176  304 

 7,267  7,204 

23. FINANCE COSTS

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on debt and borrowings  542  88 
Interest expenses (using the effective interest method)  623  384 
Interest others  299  235 
Bank charges  128  116 

 1,592  823 
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24. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (note 3A)  2,605  2,167 

Amortization of intangible assets (note 3C)  266  238 

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (note 3E)  248  240 

 3,119  2,645 

25. OTHER EXPENSES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sub contract expenses  3,174  3,446 

Labour contract charges  2,853  2,852 
Power and fuel  1,783  2,011 
Transport charges  2,884  2,212 
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery  515  484 
- Others  2,432  1,807 
Hire charges  1,175  956 
Capping for land fill (refer note 16)  634  429 
Post closure maintenance expenses (refer note 16)  261  210 
Incineration expenses (refer note 16)  831  781 
Security charges  306  285 
Rates and taxes  375  276 
Legal and professional charges  1,632  3,277 

Travelling and conveyance  1,065  399 

Rent  155  88 

Insurance  1,129  1,025 

Donations  -  2 

CSR Expenditure  131  269 

Advertisement and business promotion  143  270 

Communication expenses  92  92 

Printing and stationary  33  30 

Office maintenance  161  152 

Membership & subscription  106  33 

Bad debts / advances written off  -  430 
Provision for doubtful trade receivables and advances  2  952 
Payment to auditors (refer details below)  108  108 

Miscellaneous expenses  212  80 

 22,192  22,956 
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(i) Payment to auditors (excluding indirect taxes as applicable)

As auditor: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Audit fee  97  97 

Other services (certification fees)  10  10 

Reimbursement of expenses  1  1 

 108  108 

(ii) Details of CSR expenditure

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  130  132 

b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year  131  269 

c)  Amount spent during the year ending on  
31 March 2023

In Cash Yet to be paid  
in Cash Total 

 i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset  -  -  -

 ii) On purposes other than (i) above  131  -  131 

d)  Amount spent during the year ending on  
31 March 2022

 i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset  -  -  -

 ii) On purposes other than (i) above  269  -  269 

e) Details related to spent / unspent obligations: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
 i) Contribution to Public Trust  -  -

 ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust  131  269 

 iii) Unspent amount in relation to:

  - Ongoing project  -  -

  - Other than ongoing project  -  -

26. COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  71  (62)

Deferred tax on remeasured (loss)/gain  (18)  18 

 53  (44)
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27. INCOME TAX
  The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as 

follows:

 Profit or loss section

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax expense  1,389  1,259 

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  575  (2,183)

Mat credit entitlemet of previous years  -  (3,166)
Less: MAT credit entitlement  (47)  (990)

Deferred tax  2,076  7,180 

Total income tax expense recognised in statement of Profit & Loss  3,993  2,100 

 OCI section

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tax Effect on remeasurement of defined benefit plans  18  (18)

Income tax charged to OCI  18  (18)

  Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for  
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax  12,323  6,905 

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (31 March 2022: 33.38%)  3,588  2,305 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years  575  (5,349)
Adjustments
Items which are not tax deductible for computing taxable income  (63)  45 
Effect of change in income tax rate for deferred tax recognised  99  96 
Effect of items which are not taxable for computing taxable income  264  (983)
Items on which deferred tax not created in earlier years  (265)  5,916 
Effect of items which are disallowed in earlier years and allowed in 
current year

 (218)  184 

Others  13  (114)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  3,993  2,100 

 Deferred tax

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liability (net)  (8,020)  (5,927)

MAT credit entitlement  4,853  5,448 

Deferred tax asset (net)  (3,167)  (479)
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2022-23
Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in

profit or loss

Recognised in
other

comprehensive
income

MAT Credit
availed/

(utilization)

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets in 
relation to:
MAT credit 5,447 - - (594) 4,853 

Timing difference on: - - - -  - 
- Property, plant and equipment 1,560 (135) - - 1,425 
-  Disallowances under Income  

Tax Act, 1961, allowed on payment 
basis

 428 (343) - - 85 

-  Provision for doubtful debts and 
advances

1,931  (1,467) - -  464 

-  Provision for Post closure, 
Capping and employee benefits

 (9,665) (794) - - (10,459)

- Other liabilities (217)  663 - - 446 
-  Remeasurement of defined 

benefit plans
37 -  (18) - 19 

(479) (2,076)  (18) (594)  (3,167)

2021-22

Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in

profit or loss

Recognised in
other

comprehensive
income

MAT Credit
availed/

(utilization)

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets  
in relation to:

MAT credit 1,291 - - 4,156 5,447 

Timing difference on: - - - -  - 

- Property, plant and equipment 1,529 31 - - 1,560 

-  Disallowances under Income  
Tax Act, 1961, allowed on payment 
basis

 371 57 - -  428 

-  Provision for doubtful debts and 
advances

1,756  175 - - 1,931 

-  Provision for Post closure, 
Capping and employee benefits

 (2,484)  (7,181) - - (9,665)

- Other liabilities 45 (262) - -  (217)

-  Remeasurement of defined 
benefit plans

19 - 18 - 37 

 2,527 (7,180)  18  4,156 (479)
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28. EARNINGS PER SHARE
  Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted 

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

  Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting 
for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding 
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the 
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Profit for the year  8,330  4,805 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS  42  42 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS  43  43 

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.10 each

Basic earnings per share  199  115 

Diluted earnings per share  193  112 

29. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
  The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

 Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 a. Revenue from contracts with customers
  The Company provides waste management services to its customers and has certain performance obligations 

attached to their services such as capping and post closure obligations. The Company believes that these 
obligations are not separate performance obligations as they are required to be performed due to laws 
governing waste management and are not capable of being distinct from the waste management service.

 b. Recognition of Concession Agreement as an Intangible Asset and Financial Asset
  (i) Basis of accounting for the service concession

  Management has assessed the applicability of Appendix D to Ind AS 115 “Service Concession 
Arrangements” to the concession agreement and hence has applied it in accounting for the concession. 
As per the agreement with the municipal authorities, the construction and operations of facility shall 
be recovered by the Company in form of tipping fees received from municipal authorities (Intangible 
asset). Disclosures for Service Concession Arrangement as prescribed under Appendix D to Ind AS 115. 
Disclosure have been incorporated into the financial statements.
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  (ii) Significant assumptions in accounting for the intangible asset
  The Company has recognised intangible asset with a construction margin based on sensitivity analysis 

of companies with business in similar waste management activities.

 c. Leases (Ind AS 116)
   The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods 

covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered 
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

   The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company 
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to 
renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to 
exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease 
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability 
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold 
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

   The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of building with shorter non-
cancellable period. The Company typically exercises its option to renew for these leases because there will 
be a significant negative effect on production if a replacement asset is not readily available. The renewal 
periods for leases of building with longer non-cancellable periods are not included as part of the lease term 
as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options 
are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

   Refer to Note 3D for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise 
date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term.

  estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are 
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

  (i) Provision for capping and post closure
  Provision for capping requires an evaluation of the cost of protective capping of the active landfills in 

which waste is dumped. The provision recorded in the statement of financial statement at year-end is 
derived on the basis of estimated cost for capping the landfill, proportionate to the capacity of landfill 
utilised till the end of the year. The significant estimates involved include capping cost in respect of 
the total expected waste capacity of the landfill that requires, the time period during which these cost 
would actually be paid, inflation rate and the discount rate applied.

  Further, to ensure that there is no negative impact on the environment due to waste disposal, the Company 
is required to perform certain post closure monitoring activities for a period ranging from 15-25 years after 
the estimated operating period (15-25 years). The provision for post closure monitoring at the end of each 
year is calculated based on the estimated aggregate costs to be incurred during the post closure period 
proportionate to the capacity of site utilized till the end of the year. The significant estimates involved 
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include post monitoring cost in respect of the total expected waste during the operating period, the 
time period during which these cost would actually be paid, inflation rate and the discount rate applied. 
The estimates for projected capping and post closure monitoring are developed using inputs from the 
Company’s engineers, accountants and are reviewed by management at regular intervals.

  (ii) Estimates related to service concession arrangement
    The Company has recognised construction margin on intangible assets under service concession 

arrangement based on sensitivity analysis of similar contracts.

    The Company has estimated provision for replacement using assumptions which include the cost to 
be incurred for replacing assets, their useful life, inflation rate, discount rate etc., and are reviewed by 
management at regular intervals.

  (iii) Estimates of outcomes of indemnity events
  The Company has estimated the outcomes of each of the indemnity events specified in Share Subscription 

and Share Purchase Agreement (SSPA) taking into account the probability of their occurrence and 
underlying factors.

  (iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
  When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot 

be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

  (v) Share-based payments
  Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate 

valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires 
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the 
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For the measurement of 
the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Company uses Black 
Scholes Option valuation model for time based options and Binomial option model for performance 
based options. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment 
transactions are disclosed in Note 31.

30. GRATUITY AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS
(a) Defined contribution plan
  The following amount recognised as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and 

other funds. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Contribution to provident fund recognised as expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss

 314  359 
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(b) Defined benefit plan
  The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of 

continuous service gets a gratuity on retirement at 15 days last drawn basic salary for each completed year of 
service. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

  The following table’s summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

 Statement of profit and loss

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost
Current service cost 72 90 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 40 31 

Return on plan assets (interest income) (12) (11)

Net benefit expense 100 110 
Re measurement during the period/year due to :

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (3) (13)

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in demographic 
assumptions

(0) (1)

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising on account of experience changes (68) 80 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income  0 (4)

Amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss statement (71) 62 
Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of net liability / asset
Closing Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 515 623 

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets (181)  (170)

Closing net defined benefit liability 334 453 
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are 
as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 623 481 

Current service cost 72 90 

Interest cost 40 31 

Re measurement during the period due to: -

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (3) (13)

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in demographic 
assumptions

 - (1)

Actuarial (gain) arising on account of experience changes (69) 80 

Benefits paid (148) (45)

Closing defined benefit obligation 515 623 
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Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Net liability is bifurcated as follows:
Current 134 168 

Non-current 200 285 

Net liability (net of plan assets) 334 453 
Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 170 157 

Contributions paid by the employer 147 45 

Return on plan assets (Excluding interest income) 12 11 

Benefits paid (147) (45)

Interest income on Plan Assets (0)  4 

Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses) (1) (2)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 181 170 

  The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown 
below:

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Discount rate (p.a.) 8% 7%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 8% 8%

Mortality rate (as % of IALM (2012-14) (Mod.) Ult. Mortality Table) 100% 100%

Disability rate 0% 0%

Withdrawal rate 24% 24%

Normal retirement age (in years) 60 60

Adjusted average future service 24 21

 A quantitative analysis for significant assumptions is as shown below:

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Assumptions - Discount rate
Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase/(decrease) by)

Impact of Increase in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 499 602 

Impact of Decrease in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 533 645 

Assumptions - Salary Escalation rate
Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase/(decrease) by)

Impact of Increase in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 533 645 

Impact of Decrease in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 499 601 
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 Assumptions - Withdrawal rates

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase/(decrease) by)

Impact of Increase in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 515 621 

Impact of Decrease in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 517 624 

  The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

 Expected future benefit payments

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 136 167 

Between 2 and 5 years 302 350 

Between 6 and 10 years 176 216 

  The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period (based 
on discounted cash flows) is 4.18 (31 March 2022: 4.31) years.

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
 Share Option Plan for Key Employees 

Under the 2019 Share Option Plan for Key employees, the management has authorised the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee to grant share options to directors and certain identified eligible employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. This scheme is further divided into Plan I and Plan II.

 The vesting of the share options under Plan I and Plan II is based on below:
 Plan I
 a.  Time based vesting for 40% of the total options with 20% options vesting each year for 5 years - on  

1 May 2020 (for the first tranche 20% of the time options), and subsequently, on 1 April each year, for the 
remaining four tranches of 20% of the time options.

 b.  Performance based vesting for 60% of the total options and 20% of such options vest each year (over 5 years) 
on achievement of agreed Profit Before Tax (“PBT”) performance of the Company, on a consolidated basis, with 
opportunity to catch up in 2 (two) subsequent years, if the performance target is not met in any given year.

   In all cases, no option will vest prior to (i) the first anniversary of the grant date or (ii) 1 May 2020, whichever 
is later.
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 Plan II
The share options under Plan II shall vest on the completion of 1 (one) Year from the Grant Date.

The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant date using Black Scholes Option valuation 
model for time based options and Binomial option model for performance based options, taking into account the 
terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted. However, the above performance condition is 
only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

Exercise price per Share of an option under Plan II shall mean the face value of the Shares on the Grant Date. 

  The contractual term of the share options is five years and there are no cash settlement alternatives for the 
employees. 

 The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions  176  304 

Total  176  304 

 There were no cancellations or modifications to the options awarded in current year.

 Movements during the year
  The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, 

share options during the year:

 Plan I

Particulars Friday,  
31 March 2023

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Number WAEP Number WAEP

Outstanding at the beginning 
of the financial year

 66,890  0.14  66,890  0.14 

Granted during the year  -  -  -  -

Forfeited during the year  -  -  -  -

Exercised during the year  -  -  -  -

Expired during the year  -  -  -  -

Outstanding at the end of 
financial year

 66,890  0.14  66,890  0.14 

Exercisable at year end date  -  -  -  -

  The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2023 was 2 years 
(31 March 2022: 3 years).
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 Plan II

Particulars Friday,  
31 March 2023

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Number WAEP* Number WAEP*
Outstanding at the beginning 
of the financial year

 4,893  -  4,893  -

Granted during the year  -  -  -  -
Forfeited during the year  -  -  -  -
Exercised during the year  -  -  -  -
Expired during the year  -  -  -  -
Outstanding at the end of 
financial year

 4,893  -  4,893  -

Exercisable at year end date  -  -  -  -

 * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

  The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2023 is 2 years 
(31 March 2022: 3 years).

 The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs. 0.12 (31 March 2022: INR 0.12).

  The following tables list the inputs to the models used for plan I for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 
2022, respectively:

Particulars

Friday, 31 March 2023 Thursday, 31 March 2022

Plan I 
(Tranche 
1)- Time 

based

Plan I 
(Tranche 
2)- Time 

based

Plan I 
(Tranche 3)- 
Time based

Plan I (Tranche 
1 and 2)

(Performance 
based)

Plan I 
(Tranche 3)

(Performance 
based)

Plan I 
(Tranche 
1)- Time 

based

Plan I 
(Tranche 
2)- Time 

based

Plan I 
(Performance 

based)

Dividend yield 
(%) - - - - - -

Expected 
volatility (%) 38% 37% 45% 38% 45% 38% 37% 38%

Risk–free 
interest rate (%) 7% 6% 5% 7% 5% 7% 6% 7%

Expected life of 
share options/
SARs (years)

 5  5  4  5 4 5  5  5 

Weighted 
average share 
price (INR)

0  0  0  0 0 0  0  0 

Model used

Black-
Scholes 
option-
pricing 
Model

Black-
Scholes 
option-
pricing 
Model

Black-
Scholes 
option-
pricing 
Model

Binomial 
option-pricing 

model

Binomial 
option-
pricing 
model

Black-
Scholes 
option-
pricing 
Model

 Black-
Scholes 
option-
pricing 
Model 

Binomial 
option-
pricing 
model
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  The following tables list the inputs to the models used for plan II for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 
2022, respectively:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plan II Plan II

Dividend yield (%)  -  -

Expected volatility (%) 38% 38%

Risk–free interest rate (%) 7% 7%

Expected life of share options/SARs (years)  5  5 

Weighted average share price (INR)  0  0 

Model used Black-Scholes Option-Pricing Model

32. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Commitments:

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

(a) Commitments:

 i)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 
on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

2,974 1,974 

 ii)  Company has an approval to invest to the extent of Rs. 
60,948 (PY 84,477) towards investment in companies. 
The same will be infused as and when required for the 
subsidiaries

(b) Contingent liabilities

 Performance Guarantees issued by banks:

 -  On behalf of the subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries and an 
associate

14,570 13,612 

  Corporate guarantees to banks against credit facilities 
extended to:

 -  Subsidiaries, step-down subsidiary and jointly controlled 
entity

70,184 79,969 

(c)  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in  
respect of:*

 i) Sales tax and GST matters 1,312 531 

 ii) Income tax matters 276 200 

 iii) other matters 435 318 

 *Excluding interest not ascertainable from the date of order, if any.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Nature of relationship and names of related parties

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
(i) Holding Company Metropolis Investments Holdings Pte Limited 

(ii) Subsidiary Companies
Re Sustainability IWM Solutions Limited (formerly known as Tamilnadu 
Waste Management Limited)

West Bengal Waste Management Limited

Mumbai Waste Management Limited

Re Sustainability and Recycling Private Limited (formerly known as Ramky 
Reclamation and Recyling Private Limited)

Re Sustainability International (Singapore) Pte Limited (formerly known as 
Ramky International (Singapore) Pte Limited)

Re Sustainability Urban Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Ramky 
MSW Private Limited)

Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as 
Ramky IWM Private Limited)

Visakha Solvents Limited (upto 17 June 2022)

Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited

Delhi MSW Solutions Limited

Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited 

Maridi Bio Industries Private Limited 

Pithampur Industrial Waste Management Private Limited 

Re Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Ramky Enviro 
Services Private Limited)

Chhattisgarh Energy Consortium (India) Private Limited (refer note 40)

Re Sustainability Enviro Engineers Middle East FZ LLC (formerly known as 
Ramky Enviro Engineers Middle East FZ LLC)

Chennai MSW Private Limited

Re Sustainability & Recycling Private Limited (formerly known as Ramky 
Reclamation and Recyling Private Limited)

Dehradun Waste Management Private Limited 

Adityapur Waste Management Private Limited

REWA MSW Holdings Limited*

Pro Enviro Recycling Private Limited*

Saagar MSW Solutions Private Limited*

Katni MSW Management Private Limited*

Hyderabad C&D Waste Private Limited*

Bio Medical Waste Treatment Plant Private Limited* (upto 12 August 2022)

REWA MSW Management Solutions Limited*
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Nature of relationship Name of related parties

REWA Waste 2 Energy Project Limited*

Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions Limited (formerly known as Ramky 
Energy and Environment Limited)*

Ramky International (India) Pte. Ltd
Re Sustainability Cleantech Services Pte Limited (Formerly known as Ramky 
Cleantech Services Pte Limited)*
Ramky Cleantech Services (Philippines) Pte. Ltd
Ramky Cleantech Services (China) Pte. Ltd.*
RVAC Private Limited*
Ramky Environmental Technology (Shenzen) Co Ltd, China
PT Ramky Indonesia*
Medicare Environmental Management Private Limited*
Pro Enviro C&D Waste Management Private Limited**
Re Sustainability Reldan Refining Pvt Ltd (Formerly known as Ramky ARM 
Recycling Private Limited)*
Dhanbad Integrated MSW Limited *
Chennai Enviro Solutions Private Limited
Ramky-Royal Building Maintenance and Services Inc
Dhanbad Integrated Waste 2 Energy Private Limited
REWA MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited
Dundigal Waste 2 Energy Private Limited
Alliance Envirocare Company Private Limited
Ramky Enviro Engineers Bangladesh Limited
B & G Solar Private Limited (Upto 20 August 2021)
Ramky North America LLC 
Nature Environmental & Marine Services LLC
IP MSW Solutions Limited
Kesda Waste Management Limited
Hyderabad RDF WTE Private Limited (w.e.f. 4 July 2022)

Pashamylaram CETP Private Limited (w.e.f. 10 February 2022)

Saidpura Envirotech Private Limited (w.e.f. 26 May 2022)

(iii) Jointly Controlled Entity Al Ahlia Environmental Services co LLC, Oman

(iv) Associates
Ramky- AL-Turki Environmental Services Company Limited (Formerly known 
as Ramky Risal Environmental Services Saudi Arabia Limited)

Al Ahlia Waste Treatment LLC

FARZ LLC
* Holding through subsidiary companies

**  The Company holds 49% shareholding through Delhi MSW Solutions Limited and exercises control over the board, 
accordingly the entity is considered as subsidiary.
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Nature of relationship Name of related parties

(v)  Entities controlled by persons 
having control / significant 
influence over company

Ramky Infrastructure Limited

Ramky Estates and Farms Limited

Visakha Pharmacity Limited (Formerly known as Ramky Pharma City (India) 
Limited)

Ramky Foundation

Ramky Integrated Township Limited

KKR Capstone India Operations Advisory Private Limited

(vi) Key Management Person

 Managing Director M. Goutham Reddy 

 Joint Managing Director Anil Khandelwal 

 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Masood Alam Mallick (w.e.f. 24 August.2022)

 Independent Director Narayan Keelveedhi Seshadri

 Independent Director Shantharaju Bangalore Siddaiah

 Independent Director Hwee Hua Lim

 Independent Director Vaishali Nigam Sinha

 Nominee Director Rohan Rakesh Suri

 Nominee Director Suveer Kumar Sinha (w.e.f. 24 August 2022)

 Nominee Director Simrun Mehta (w.e.f. 24 August 2022)

 Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Pankaj Maharaj (w.e.f. 24 August 2022)

 Company secretary Govind Singh

(vii)  Promoter/relatives of 
promoter

Alla Ayodhya Rami Reddy

Alla Dakshayani

Alla Veeraraghavamma

Alla Sharan

Alla Ishaan
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(b) Transactions with the related parties during the year

Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

i)
Re Sustainability IWM 
Solutions Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 1,320 1,756 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

1,370 2,013 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 20  70 

Revenue from sale of goods  96 269 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 - 2 

Purchase of Material  28  -

Purchase of Asset  18  -

Performance guarantees 
given 

 - 153 

Employee stock options 
expense

 - 1 

Corporate Guarantee given  - 130 

ii)
West Bengal Waste 
Management Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 338 189 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

330 297 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 5  11 

Revenue from sale of goods  68 107 

Revenue from sale of Plant & 
Equipment

 1  -

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 11  -

Performance guarantees 
given 

31  24 

Financial guarantee premium  0 1 

Reimbursement of Expenses  22  -

iii)
Mumbai Waste 
Management Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 5,317 159 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

4,487 165 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 23 5 

Revenue from sale of goods 152 261 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 22  -

Performance guarantees 
given

66  40 

Employee stock options 
expense

 3 4 

iv)
Re Sustainability Healthcare 
Solutions Limited

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 31  28 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 - 1 

Employee stock options 
expense

 1 2 

Inter corporate deposit given 201  65 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

199  92 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 3 2 

v)
Re Sustainability 
International (Singapore) 
Pte Ltd.

Employee stock options 
expense

 1  -

vi)
Re Sustainability Urban 
Solutions Private Limited 

Inter corporate deposit given  8  55 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

 70  50 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 3 5 

vii)
Re Sustainability Industrial 
Solutions Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  45 296 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

 - 301 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 3  23 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 100  -

Redemption of Perpetual 
Debt

 - 465 

viii) Visakha Solvents Limited
Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 - 1 

Inter corporate deposit given  - 175 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Inter corporate deposits 
received

131  -

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 2  18 

ix)
Hyderabad Integarted 
MSW Limited

Revenue from sale of goods 290  73 

Inter corporate deposit given  16,061 9,416 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

3,091 5,498 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

1,179 492 

Purchase of Material  29  -

Corporate guarantee given/
(Cancelled)

 -  26,562 

Financial guarantee premium  51 270 

Performance guarantees 
given

 1,113 380 

Employee stock options 
expense

 2 4 

x)
Delhi MSW Solutions 
Limited

Revenue from sale of goods  - 134 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 6 3 

Inter corporate deposit given 1,886 1,309 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

7,578 1,000 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

260 541 

Unwinding of Interest Income 230 242 

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled) / given 

 (25)  (120)

Financial guarantee premium  60  61 

Employee stock options 
expense

 2 4 

Corporate guarantee given/
(Cancelled)

 (2,400)  -

xi)
Hyderabad MSW Energy 
Solutions Private Limited

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 - 510 

Inter corporate deposit given  14,235 9,288 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Inter corporate deposits 
received

7,052  10,326 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

235 243 

Redemption of Perpetual 
Debt

 -  24,646 

Performance guarantees 
given 

86  45 

Employee stock options 
expense

 1 2 

Financial guarantee premium  50  -

xii)
Maridi Bio Industries Private 
Limited

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

457 379 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 - 1 

Inter corporate deposit given 508 279 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

544 670 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 8  23 

xiii)
Pithampur Industrial Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 831 1,070 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

913 959 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 15  10 

Revenue from sale of goods  23  89 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 11 3 

Revenue from Lease Rentals 110  -

xiv)
Re Sustainability Solutions 
Private Limited 

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 2 1 

Revenue from sale of goods 104 144 

Inter corporate deposit given 3,803 5,515 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

3,792 8,316 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 54 317 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled) / given 

 (397) 923 

xv)
Re Sustainability Middle 
East FZ-LLC

Investment in equity 
shares (conversion of share 
application money)

 -  (1,383)

Investment in equity shares  - 1,383 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

953 1,033 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 13  68 

Employee stock options 
expense

 7  -

xvi)
Chennai MSW Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 1,928 1,477 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

2,019 1,961 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 72 104 

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled) / given 

-  (954)

Employee stock options 
expense

 3 5 

Purchase of Property Plant 
and Equipment

 1  -

Corporate Guarantee given  -  50,406 

xvii)
Pro Enviro Recycling Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  20 1 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 -  19 

Corporate guarantee given/
(Cancelled)

 -  -

xviii)
Al Ahlia Environmental 
Services Co LLC

Corporate guarantee given/
(Cancelled)

 (4,407) 2,308 

xix)
Ramky Infrastructure 
Limited

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

1,699 1,398 

Revenue from slae of Goods 452  17 

Capping expenses  - 596 

Capital works 234 1,861 

xx) Visakha Pharmacity Limited
Repairs and Maintenance - 
Others

3,211  26 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Power and fuel expenses  72  -

Cost of Material Consumed 
(Water Charges)

 49  -

Rent expense  13  -

Rates and taxes  30  -

xxi) Smilax Laboratories Limited
Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 82  45 

xxii) Ramky Foundation CSR Expenditure 124 258 

xxiii)
Re Sustainability & 
Recycling Private Limited 

Inter corporate deposit given  29,999  89 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

 31,278  99 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

1,161  27 

Investment in Perpetual Debt  - 3,541 

Redemption of Perpetual 
Debt

 - 6,504 

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

362 198 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 3 7 

Revenue from sale of goods  0  14 

Revenue from sale of Plant & 
Equipment

 36  -

Sale of Scrap materials  1  -

Employee stock options 
expense

 7  11 

xxiv)
Dehradun Waste 
Management Private 
Limited 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 300  42 

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled) / given 

 (6) 125 

Revenue from sale of goods  15 2 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 1  -

xxv)
Katni MSW Management 
Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 318 252 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Inter corporate deposits 
received

200 180 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 4  15 

Revenue from sale of Goods  - 1 

Revenue from sale of Plant & 
Equipment

 4  -

Corporate Guarantee  
(Cancelled) /given 

(24)  -

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled) / given 

 - 231 

xxvi)
Saagar MSW Solutions 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 111 103 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

201 200 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 9  10 

Revenue from sale of goods  17 1 

Financial guarantee premium  - 0 

Performance guarantees 
given 

 - 350 

Corporate Guarantee  
(Cancelled) /given 

(54)  -

xxvii)
Adityapur Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 224 263 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

321 276 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 3 6 

Revenue from sale of Goods  19  77 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 11  -

xxviii)
Hyderabad C&D Waste 
Private Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt 1,295 1,111 

Redemption of Perpetual 
Debt

 - 3,126 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 1  -

Purchase of Material  9  -

Performance guarantees 
given 

 219  -

Reimbursement of Expenses  7  -

xxix)
Rewa Msw Management 
Solutions Limited.

Inter corporate deposit given 190 160 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

185 220 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 6 7 

Revenue from sale of goods  - 2 

Corporate guarantee given/
(Cancelled)

(824)  -

Financial guarantee premium  0 1 

xxx)
Medicare Environmental 
Management Private 
Limited 

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

144 307 

Revenue from consultancy 
and other services

 0 1 

Revenue from sale of goods  - 1 

Inter corporate deposit given 846 145 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

864 175 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 6 5 

Advance from customers  - 2 

Employee stock options 
expense

 3 5 

Performance guarantees 
given 

25 0 

xxxi) B & G Solar Private Limited
Inter corporate deposits 
received

 -  26 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 - 1 

Dividend income received  - 1 

xxxii)
Re Sustainability Reldan 
Refining Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  - 184 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Inter corporate deposits 
received

 - 257 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 - 9 

Reimbursement of expenses 
taken

271  20 

xxxiii)
Madhya Pradesh Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

Rent expense  5  56 

Repairs & Maintenance - 
Buildings

 4  46 

xxxiv)
Pro Enviro C&D Waste 
Management Pvt Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  23 199 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

 -  18 

Performance guarantees 
given 

 - 100 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 32  23 

xxxv)
Dhanbad Integrated MSW 
Limited.

Investment in Perpetual Debt 1,063 587 

Redemption of Perpetual 
Debt

 - 3,100 

Revenue from sale of goods  19  -

Revenue from sale of Plant & 
Equipment

 0  -

xxxvi)
Rewa Msw Holding Private 
Limited.

Expenses incurred on behalf 
of the Company

 1 0 

xxxvii)
Rewa Waste 2 Energy 
Project Limited.

Revenue from sale of goods  6  -

Inter corporate deposit given  58  32 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

115 325 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 6  21 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

xxxviii)
Chennai Enviro Solutions 
Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 2,876 4,774 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

3,270 7,030 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 18 161 

Revenue from sale of goods  - 1 

xxxix)
Bio Medical Waste 
Treatment Plant Pvt Limited

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 6 4 

xl)
KKR Capstone India 
Operations Advisory Private 
Limited

Consultancy charges  - 322 

xli)
Alliance Envirocare 
Company Private Limited

Revenue from waste disposal 
activities

 9 9 

xlii)
Ramky Enviro Engineers - 
Bangladesh

Inter corporate deposit given  24  23 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 2 1 

Investment in equity shares  - 1 

xliii)
Kesda Waste Management 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  98 117 

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 22 5 

xliv) IP MSW Solutions Limited Inter corporate deposit given 542 136 

Inter corporate deposits 
received

436  -

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 10 0 

Performance guarantees 
given 

 - 350 

Investment in equity shares  - 1 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 2,098  -

xlv)
Rewa MSW Energy 
Solutions Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt 5,767 2,614 

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled)

(43)  -

xlvi)
Dundigal Waste 2 Energy 
Pvt Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt  23,446 7,263 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Redemption of Perpetual 
Debt

 10,539  -

Revenue from sale of goods  27  -

Performance guarantees 
(Cancelled)

 (215)  -

xlvii)
Dhanbad Integrated Waste 
2 Energy Private Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses  0 0 

xlviii)
Pashamylaram CETP Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  4  -

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 0  -

Performance guarantees 
given 

190  -

xlix)
Saidpura Envirotech Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 316  -

Interest income on inter 
corporate deposit

 9  -

L) M. Goutham Reddy Remuneration# 356 253 

Li) Masood Alam Mallick Remuneration# 454 439 

Lii) Anil Khandelwal Remuneration# 343 343 

Liii)
Shantharaju Bangalore 
Siddaiah

Sitting Fee##  75  50 

Liv)
Narayan Keelveedhi 
Seshadri

Sitting Fee##  75  50 

Lv) Hwee Hua Lim Sitting Fee##  75  50 

Lvi) Vaishali Nigam Sinha Sitting Fee##  75  50 

Lvii) Pankaj Maharaj Remuneration# 124  -

Lviii) Govind Singh Remuneration#  21  18 

 -  The above remuneration does not include the provision made for Gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on 
valuation basis for the Company as a whole. 

 #  Includes ESOP expense for the year amounting to Rs. 160 (31 March 2022: 240) to M.Goutham Reddy: Rs. 62 (31 March 2022: Rs. 
107), Masood Alam Mallick: Rs.44 (31 March 2022: Rs. 76), Anil Khandelwal: Rs.32 (31 March 2022: Rs.56), Pankaj Maharaj : Rs. 21 
(31 March 2022: Rs. Nil) and Govind Singh: Rs. 1 (31 March 2022: Rs. 1).

 ##  Amounts paid during the year pertaining to the total amount paid and provision created towards sitting fee and commission 
for the respective years
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(c) Balance outstanding at the end of the year

Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

i)
Re Sustainability IWM 
Solutions Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 44 76 

Trade receivables 18  3 

Investment in equity shares 1,667 1,666 

Performance guarantees given  253 253 

Corporate guarantee  130 130 

ii)
West Bengal Waste 
Management Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 31 19 

Trade Receivables  -  2 

Trade Payables  - 50 

Performance guarantees given 83 52 

Reimbursement of expenses 
Payable

 - 50 

Corporate guarantee  300 300 

Investment in preference shares 1,578 1,578 

Investment in equity shares 1,199 1,199 

iii)
Mumbai Waste 
Management Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  915 64 

Trade Payables  2  1 

Trade receivables  5 19 

Performance guarantees given  124 59 

Corporate guarantee 4,109 4,109 

Investment in equity shares  586 583 

iv)
Re Sustainability 
Healthcare Solutions 
Limited

Trade receivables  1  0 

Inter corporate deposit given 20 16 

v)
Re Sustainability 
International (Singapore) 
Pte Limited

Investment in equity shares 3,992 3,992 

Investment in equity shares  - - 

Capital creditors  - - 

Advances received from 
Customers

 - - 

Reimbursement of expenses 
Payable

 - - 

Trade receivables  - - 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

vi)
Re Sustainability Urban 
Solutions Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  3 62 

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

Investment in preference shares 1,663 1,663 

vii)
Re Sustainability 
Industrial Solutions 
Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 72 24 

Investment in equity shares  646 642 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 3,835 3,735 

Investment in Compulsory 
Convertible Debentures

 958 958 

viii) Visakha Solvents Limited Trade receivables  - 10 

Trade payables  -  0 

Investment in equity shares  - 77 

Inter corporate deposit given  - 129 

Reimbursement of expenses  -  1 

Security deposit received  -  1 

ix)
Hyderabad Integrated 
MSW Limited

Trade receivables  - 30 

Trade payables  3  3 

Capital creditors  - 55 

Inter corporate deposit given  22,369 8,338 

Corporate guarantee  26,562 26,562 

Investment in equity shares  779 777 

Investment in preference shares 5,191 5,191 

Performance guarantees given 1,525 413 

Deferred income  208 260 

x)
Delhi MSW Solutions 
Limited

Trade receivables  3 78 

Investment in equity shares 3,522 3,519 

Investment in preference shares  455 455 

Inter corporate deposit given 3,143 8,406 

Investment in Perpetual Debt  17,000 17,000 

Investment in Compulsory 
Convertible Debentures

2,944 2,944 

Performance guarantees given 1,010 1,035 

Corporate guarantee  29,214 31,614 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Deferred income  321 381 

xi)
Hyderabad MSW Energy 
Solutions Private Limited

Investment in equity shares  775 774 

Inter corporate deposit given 8,429 1,034 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 5,354 5,354 

Performance guarantees given  352 266 

Investment in Compulsory 
Convertible Debentures

5,523 5,523 

Deferred income  680 730 

Corporate guarantee  32,780 32,780 

xii)
Maridi Bio Industries 
Private Limited

Trade receivables 34 37 

Investment in equity shares  1  1 
Inter corporate deposit given  104 133 

xiii)
Pithampur Industrial 
Waste Management 
Private Limited

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

Inter corporate deposit given 50 120 
Trade receivables 55  1 

xiv)
Re Sustainability 
Solutions Private Limited

Trade receivables  7 17 

Inter corporate deposit given  221 161 
Performance guarantees given  629 1,026 
Investment in equity shares  1  1 

xv)
Chhattisgarh Energy 
Consortium (India) 
Private Limited

Asset held for sale  614 614 

xvi)
Re Sustainability Middle 
Easte FZ-LLC

Investment in equity shares 1,698 1,691 

Inter corporate deposit given  - 940 
Performance guarantees given 11 10 

xvii)
Chennai MSW Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  205 230 

Investment in equity shares  136 133 
Trade receivables  0  0 
Performance guarantees given 5,600 5,600 
Corporate guarantee  50,406 50,406 

xviii)
Pro Enviro Recycling 
Private Limited

Advances paid to suppliers  2  2 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Inter corporate deposit given  223 203 

Performance guarantees given  - - 

Trade receivables 14 14 

xix)
Al Ahlia Environmental 
Services Co LLC

Investment in equity shares  146 146 

Corporate guarantee  - 4,407 

xx)
Ramky Infrastructure 
Limited

Trade receivables 1,409 3,050 

Sub Contract Advance given  237 163 

Capital creditors 64 168 

Retention money Payable 73 73 

Trade payables  5 498 

xxi)
Ramky Estates and Farms 
Limited

Trade receivables  6  6 

Advances given  3  3 

xxii)
Visakha Pharmacity 
Limited

Trade payables  115 - 

xxiii)
Smilax Laboratories 
Limited

Trade receivables 87 42 

Security deposit received  5  5 

Advances received from 
Customers

 -  2 

xxiv)
Medicare Environmental 
Management Private 
Limited

Trade receivables 22 13 

Trade Payables  0  5 

Inter corporate deposit given  9 22 

Advances received from 
Customers

 2  2 

Performance guarantees given 42 17 

xxv)
Re Sustainability and 
Recycling Private Limited

Investment in equity shares  264 257 

Investment in preference shares 45 45 

Capital creditors  - 137 

Inter corporate deposit given  - 229 

Receivable on account of  
slump sale

 - 186 

Trade receivables  101 120 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Trade payables  0 12 

Advances received from 
Customers

21 21 

Performance guarantees given 50 50 

Advances received from 
Customers

38 38 

Reimbursement of expenses 
Payable

 -  1 

xxvi)
Dehradun Waste 
Management Private 
Limited 

Performance guarantees given  125 131 

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 1,204 904 

Trade receivables  1 - 

xxvii)
Katni MSW Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  267 146 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 1,500 1,500 

Trade receivables  0  0 

Corporate guarantee  - 24 

Performance guarantees given  231 231 

xxviii)
Saagar MSW Solutions 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  2 84 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 2,000 2,000 

Corporate guarantee  - 54 

Performance guarantees given  350 350 

xxix)
Adityapur Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 11 105 

Trade receivables  0  0 

Performance guarantees given  5  5 

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

xxx)
Hyderabad C&D Waste 
Private Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt 2,658 1,364 

Trade receivables  1  0 

Performance guarantees given  419 200 

Trade Payables  3  7 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Deccan Recyclers Private 
Limited

Trade Payables  - - 

Inter corporate deposit given  - - 

xxxi)
Maridi Eco Industries 
Private Limited

Trade receivables  0  0 

xxxii)
Pro Enviro C&D Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

Trade receivables  -  2 

Inter corporate deposit given  337 285 

Performance guarantees given  - - 

xxxiii)
Re Sustainability Reldan 
Refining Private Limited

Security Deposit Received  809 809 

Advances received from 
Customers

1,640 160 

xxxiv)
Dhanbad Integrated 
MSW Limited.

Capital creditors  -  7 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 1,248 186 

xxxv)
Madhya Pradesh Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

Advances received from 
Customers

 614 614 

Trade Payables  128 127 

xxxvi)
Rewa Msw Management 
Solutions Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt 2,000 2,000 

Inter corporate deposit given 22 11 

Corporate guarantee  362 1,186 

Deferred income  0  0 

xxxvii)
Rewa Msw Holding 
Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses  8  7 

xxxviii)
Rewa Waste 2 Energy 
Project Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 17 68 

Performance guarantees given 45 45 

xxxix)
Chennai Enviro Solutions 
Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given 68 446 

Trade receivables  -  1 

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

Performance guarantees given 3,040 3,040 

xl)
Bio Medical Waste 
Treatment Plant Pvt 
Limited

Trade receivables  1  1 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

xli)
REWA MSW Energy 
Solutions Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt 8,381 2,614 

Performance guarantees given 56 99 

xlii)
Dundigal Waste 2 Energy 
Project Limited

Investment in Perpetual Debt  20,170 7,263 

Performance guarantees given 44 259 

Trade receivables  7 - 

xliii)
Ramky- AL-Turki 
Environmental Services 
Company Limited

Investment in equity shares 59 59 

xliv)
Ramky Enviro Engineers - 
Bangladesh

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

Inter corporate deposit given 52 23 

Trade receivables  5 - 

xlv)
Kesda Waste 
Management Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  239 121 

Investment in equity shares  0  0 

xlvi) IP MSW Solutions Limited Inter corporate deposit given  256 141 

Performance guarantees given  350 350 

Investment in Perpetual Debt 2,098 - 

Investment in equity shares  1  1 

xlvii)
Pashamylaram CETP 
Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  5 - 

Performance guarantees given  190 - 

xlviii)
Saidpura Envirotech Pvt 
Limited

Inter corporate deposit given  324 - 

xlix)
Dhanbad Integrated 
Waste 2 Energy Private 
Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses  0  0 

L)
Abington Reldan Metals 
LLC

Advances received from 
Customers

66 - 

Li) RVAC Pte. Ltd Performance guarantees given 35 32 

Lii)
KKR Capstone India 
Operations Advisory 
Private Limited

Trade payables  - 177 

Liii)
Alliance Envirocare 
Company Private Limited

Trade receivables  3  3 

Liv) Govind Singh Salary payable  -  1 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Lv) M. Goutham Reddy Salary payable  -  6 

Lvi) Anil Khandelwal Salary payable  -  8 

Lvii) Masood Mallick Salary payable  -  9 

Lviii)
Narayan Keelveedhi 
Seshadri

Sitting Fee payable 61 33 

Lix)
Shantharaju Bangalore 
Siddaiah

Sitting Fee payable 62 31 

Lx) Hwee Hua Lim Sitting Fee payable 75 50 

Lxi) Vaishali Nigam Sinha Sitting Fee payable 69 41 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:
Note-1: During the current financial year, company has given loan of Rs 250 crore to Re Sustainability Recycling 
Private Limited to enable it to acquire land from Ramky Integrated Township Limited (RITL) to set up an integrated 
recycling facility. Re Sustainability Recycling Private Limited has subsequently repaid the loan to company.

Note-2: Sale and purchase transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 
arms length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement 
occurs in cash.

34.  THE FOLLOWING DETAILS RELATING TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES SHALL BE 
DISCLOSED IN THE NOTES

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

a)
the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year;

1,453 695 

b)

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 
2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

- - 

c)

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

- - 

d)
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and the amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest 

142  27 

e)
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose 
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

- - 

1,595  722 
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35.  DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND AS) 108 “OPERATING 
SEGMENTS” 

  For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products and services and 
has three reportable segments, as follows:

  Waste Management : Comprises of collection, transportation, treatment of waste and maintenance of waste 
treatment facilities.

 Turnkey Projects : Comprises of EPC projects.

 Others : Comprises of Consultancy and other miscellaneous services.

 Identifications of Segments
  The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments separately for the 

purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the standalone financial 
statements.

 Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Waste Management 
Division

Turnkey Projects 
division Others Total 

Revenue
External customers 41,202 792 3,367 45,361 

Inter-segment - - - -

Total revenue 41,202  792  3,367 45,361 
Income/(Expenses)
Depreciation and amortisation 2,465 1 653 3,119 

Segment profit 16,408 321 2,231 18,960 

Interest income - - - 3,979 

Other income - - -  501 

Interest expense - - - 1,592 

Unallocated expense - - - 9,525 

Profit before Tax - - - 12,323 

Tax expense - - - 3,993 

Profit After Tax - - - 8,330 

Segment assets 52,100 1,788 1,084 54,972 

Unallocable assets - - - 145,487 

Segment liabilities 18,081 1,329 838 20,248 

Unallocable Liabilities - - - 24,100 

Other disclosures
Non cash expense other than 
Depreciation

- - -  181 

Capital expenditure 5,508 - 408 5,916 
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 Year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Waste Management 
Division

Turnkey Projects 
division Others Total 

Revenue

External customers 33,965 219 3,845 38,029 

Inter-segment - - - -

Total revenue 33,965  219  3,845 38,029 

Income/(Expenses)

Depreciation and amortisation 2,084 1 560 2,645 

Segment profit 11,294 (425) 2,828 13,697 

Interest income - - - 3,091 

Other income - - - 1,673 

Interest expense - - -  823 

Unallocated expense - - - 10,733 

Profit before Tax before exceptional 
items

- - - 6,905 

Exceptional items - - - -

Profit before Tax after exceptional 
items

- - - 6,905 

Tax expense - - - 2,100 

Profit After Tax - - - 4,805 

Segment assets 41,902 1,390 880 44,172 

Unallocable assets - - - 137,610 

Segment liabilities 20,544 1,489 622 22,655 

Unallocable Liabilities - - - 20,890 

Other disclosures

Non cash expense other than 
Depreciation

- - - 1,260 

Capital expenditure 5,698 - 530 6,228 

 Information about major customers 
  The Company has large number of customers and no single customer contributes more than 10% of total revenue 

of the Company. Hence, there are no major customers details to be reported by the Company. 

 Geographical Information
 The companies operations are confined within India and as such there are no reportable geographical segments.
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36. FAIR VALUES INCLUDING FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The management assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, other financial 
assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts as fair value 
except for investment in mutual funds. The fair value for investments in mutual funds (FVTPL) are valued using Level 
1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The fair value for OCRPS 
(FVTPL) are valued using Level 3.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
 The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The 
Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, 
loans, trade receivables and other receivables.

 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed 
to the Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

 i) Market risk
   Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the 
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company’s 
exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market 
risk include loans, borrowings and deposits.

 ii) Interest rate risk
    Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates 
relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates and investment in 
mutual funds debt schemes.

  Interest rate sensitivity
  The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that 

portion of investments, loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s 
profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings and investments, as follows:

Effect on profit before tax

Increase/decrease in 
basis points

Financial liability 
instrument

Financial asset 
instrument

31 March 2023 INR 100 (94) - 

(100) 94 - 

31 March 2022 INR 100 (29) - 

(100) 29 - 



99

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 iii) Foreign Currency Sensitivity
   The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with 

all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair 
value of monetary assets and liabilities.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Change in USD rate

- 5% increase  6  (0)

- 5% decrease  (6)  0 

 iv) Credit Risk
   Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 

contract, leading to a financial loss.

   The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions 
and other financial instruments.

  Trade receivables
   Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited, based on our historical experience of collecting 

receivables, supported by the level of default.

  Financial instruments and cash deposits
   Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s top management 

in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved 
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed 
by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval 
of the Company’s board of directors. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and therefore 
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

 v) Liquidity Risk
   Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 

associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk 
may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

   The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium 
term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity 
risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company 
manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also 
has adequate credit facilities agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal 
operating commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.
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   The table below analyses derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant 
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the  reporting date to the contractual maturity 
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 3 
months

3 to 12 
months 1 to 5 years > 5 years

As at 31 March 2023
Borrowings  9,446  671  225  1,677  6,873  - 

Other financial liabilities  7,786  -  312  579  861  6,034 

Trade payables  9,884  -  8,401  1,483  -  - 

As at 31 March 2022
Borrowings  2,920  2,511  15  144  250  - 

Other financial liabilities  17,389  -  696  1,294  1,923  13,476 

Trade payables  11,080  -  9,418  1,662  -  - 

   At present, the Company does expects to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet 
such cash commitments, the operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows.

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company endeavours to maintain sufficient levels of working capital, current assets, and current liabilities 
which helps the company to meet its expense obligations while also maintaining sufficient cash flow. The capital 
structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the 
Company (comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings). The capital structure of the Company is 
reviewed by the management on a periodic basis.

Gearing ratio 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings (non-current and current, including current maturities of 
non-current borrowings, interest accrued and due, Interest accrued 
but not due)

 9,446  2,920 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (including balances at bank other 
than cash and cash equivalents) and Liquid investments in Mutual 
Funds

 (2,130)  (36,119)

Net debt (A)  7,316  -33,200 
Equity  156,111  138,236 

Total capital (B)  156,111  138,236 
Gearing ratio (%) {A/(A+B)} 4% 0%

 Gearing ratio:
  The company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 

company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio within 50%. 

  In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company makes adjustments in light of changes in economic 
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company aims to ensure that it meets the financial 
covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 
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Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. 
There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current 
year, other than those reported.

39.  Management post detailed evaluation of compliance of Foreign Exchange Management Act (FEMA) regulations 
in F.Y. 2018-19 and had submitted all pending reports with Authorized Dealer Bank,  addressed  observations and 
compounded the non-compliances for two of its overseas JV/Subsidiaries and is in process of filing the 
compounding applications for other two JV/Subsidiaries. Based on legal advice obtained and other documentary 
evidence available with the Company, the management is of the view that there would be no material impact on 
the financial statements and accordingly, no adjustments for the possible effect of such non-compliance have 
been made to the standalone financials.

40.  In the earlier years, the Company had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with the other shareholder of 
Chhattisgarh Energy Consortium India Private Limited (CECIPL) and purchased 51% stake in CECIPL and entered into 
an agreement to sell its investment in CECIPL to one of the shareholder’s entity (buyer) and had received advance 
of Rs. 614 for such sale from the buyer. During earlier years, the Beneficial Ownership of the said subsidiary had 
been transferred to the buyer. However, the control over the subsidiary could not be transferred on account of 
dispute between the shareholders of CECIPL and hence the Company has continued to disclose the assets of the 
subsidiary of Rs. 614 as Asset Held for Sale. The Financial Statement of CECIPL have not been audited after the year 
ending 31 March 2014 till current year. Pending transfer of control as on balance sheet date, ReSL has continued to 
consolidate CECIPL based on financial statements certified by management.

41. RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS

Ratio Numerator Denominator Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022 % change Reason for 

variance

Current ratio
Current 
Assets

Current 
Liabilities

1.04 2.18 -52.59%

Due to decrease 
in cash balances 
on account of 
Maturity of Fixed 
Deposits

Debt- Equity 
Ratio

Total Debt
Shareholder’s 
Equity

0.06 0.02 186.45%

Due to increase 
in Borrowings 
on account of 
IDFC Term Loan 
availed during 
the year.

Debt Service 
Coverage 
ratio

Earnings 
for debt 
service = 
Net profit 
after taxes 
+ Non-cash 
operating 
expenses

Debt service 
= Interest 
& Lease 
Payments 
+ Principal 
Repayments

8.75 12.41 -29.52%

Due to increase 
in Borrowings on 
account of IDFC 
Term Loan
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Ratio Numerator Denominator Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022 % change Reason for 

variance

Return on 
Equity ratio

Net Profits 
after 
taxes – 
Preference 
Dividend

Average 
Shareholder’s 
Equity

0.06 0.04 59.81%
Due to increase 
in Profits

Inventory 
Turnover ratio

Cost of 
goods sold

Average 
Inventory

3.89 4.31 -9.86% -

Trade 
Receivable 
Turnover 
Ratio

Net credit 
sales = 
Gross credit 
sales - sales 
return

Average 
Trade 
Receivable

2.70 2.21 21.84% -

Trade Payable 
Turnover 
Ratio

Net credit 
purchases = 
Gross credit 
purchases 
- purchase 
return

Average 
Trade 
Payables

3.05 2.90 5.19% -

Net Capital 
Turnover 
Ratio

Net sales = 
Total sales - 
sales return

Working 
capital = 
Current assets 
– Current 
liabilities

51.14 1.26 3957.04%

Due to decrease 
in working capital 
on account of 
Maturity of Fixed 
Deposits

Net Profit 
ratio

Net Profit
Net sales = 
Total sales - 
sales return

0.18 0.13 45.33%

Due to increase 
in Revenue from 
Operations and 
Profit

Return on 
Capital 
Employed

Earnings 
before 
interest and 
taxes

Capital 
Employed 
= Tangible 
Net Worth + 
Total Debt + 
Deferred Tax 
Liability

11.10% 6.74% 64.72%
Due to increase 
in Profits

Return on 
Investment

Interest 
(Finance 
Income)

Investment 8.40% 10.13% -17.10% -
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42.  The Income tax department has conducted a search operation on the Company’s registered office during FY 
2021-22. No order consequent to such operation has so far been received by the Company. Reassessment notices 
were received from the Income Tax Department during the year and subsequent to balance sheet date, company 
received notice seeking information for reassessment. Management believes that there would be no implication 
of the aforesaid search operations on the financial statements of the Company.

43. OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
 (i)  The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against 

the Company for holding any Benami property.

 (ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

 (iii)  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period,

 (iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

 (v)  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

  (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

 (vi)  The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

  (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

 (vii)  The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961”

44. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 
dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 1 April 2023. 

 (i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
  The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting 

policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and 
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

 The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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 (ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
  The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing 

the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose 
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in 
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. 

  The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with 
the amended requirements.

 (iii)  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amend-
ments to Ind AS 12

  The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no 
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. 
The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest 
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a 
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be 
recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning 
obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. 

 The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.

45. Previous year figures have been reclassified/ regrouped to confirm to those of current year.

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of  
Re Sustainability Limited  
(Formerly known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial  
Statements

OPINION
We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of Re Sustainability Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its 
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”) its associates and 
joint ventures comprising of the consolidated Balance 
sheet as at 31 March 2023, the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based 
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on 
separate financial statements and on the other financial 
information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates 
and joint ventures as at 31 March 2023, their consolidated 
profitand their consolidated cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group, associates and 
joint ventures in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the other information. The other information obtained 
at the date of this auditor’s report is Director’s report in 
the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation and presentation of 
these consolidated financial statements in terms of the 
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view 
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of 
the Group including its associates and joint ventures in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 specified under section 133 of 
the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
(as amended). The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associates 
and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
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the Group and of its associates and joint ventures and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the Companies included 
in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures 
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group 
and of its associates and joint ventures to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates and joint 
ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group and of its associates and 
joint ventures.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT 
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE-
MENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding 
Company has adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
ability of the Group and its associates and joint 
ventures to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group and its associates 
and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

•  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group and its associates 
and joint ventures of which we are the independent 
auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the 
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direction, supervision and performance of the audit 
of the financial statements of such entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements, 
which have been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried 
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.

  We communicate with those charged with 
governance of the Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

  We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

OTHER MATTER
(a)  We did not audit the financial statements and other 

financial information, in respect of 31 subsidiaries, 
whose financial statements include total assets 
of Rs 139,321 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, and total 
revenues of Rs 93,756 lakhs and net cash inflows of 
Rs 305 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These 
financial statement and other financial information 
have been audited by other auditors, whose 
financial statements, other financial information 
and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by 
the management. Our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of 
these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, 
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiaries is based solely on the report(s) of such 
other auditors.

  Of the above 8 subsidiaries are located outside 
India whose financial statements and other financial 
information have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in their 
respective countries and which have been audited 
by other auditors under generally accepted auditing 

standards applicable in their respective countries. 
The Holding Company’s management has converted 
the financial statements of such subsidiaries located 
outside India from accounting principles generally 
accepted in their respective countries to accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. We have 
audited these conversion adjustments made by 
the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion 
in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of 
such subsidiaries located outside India is based on 
the report of other auditors and the conversion 
adjustments prepared by the management of the 
Holding Company and audited by us.

(b)  The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements include unaudited financial statements 
and other unaudited financial information in respect 
of 8 subsidiaries whose financial statements and 
other financial information reflect total assets 
of Rs 4,665 lakhs as at 31 March 2023, and total 
revenues of Rs 4,746 lakhs and net cash inflows of 
Rs 40 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These 
unaudited financial statements and other unaudited 
financial information have been furnished to us 
by the management. The consolidated financial 
statements also include the Group’s share of net loss 
of Rs. 928 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements, 
in respect of 3 associates and 1 joint venture, whose 
financial statements, other financial information have 
not been audited and whose unaudited financial 
statements, other unaudited financial information 
have been furnished to us by the Management. 
Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates, and our report in 
terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in 
so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates, is based solely on such 
unaudited financial statement and other unaudited 
financial information. In our opinion and according 
to the information and explanations given to us by 
the Management, these financial statements and 
other financial information are not material to the 
Group.

  Our opinion above on the consolidated financial 
statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified 
in respect of the above matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports 
of the other auditors and the financial statements 
and other financial information certified by the 
Management.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on 
the consideration of report of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements and the other 
financial information of the subsidiary companies, 
associate companies and joint ventures companies, 
incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ 
paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement 
on the matters specified inparagraphs 3(xxi) of the 
Order.

2.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of report of 
the other auditors on separate financial statements 
and the other financial information of subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures, as noted in the 
‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent 
applicable, that:

 (a)  We/the other auditors whose report we have 
relied upon have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements;

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of 
the aforesaid consolidation of the financial 
statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books and 
reports of the other auditors;

 (c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and 
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account maintained for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements;

 (d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended 
specified under section 133 of the Act;

 (e)  On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31 March 2023 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory 

auditors who are appointed under Section 
139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, 
associate companies and joint ventures, none 
of the directors of the Group’s companies, its 
associates and joint ventures incorporated in 
India is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies, associate 
companies and joint ventures incorporated 
in India, and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure 2” to this report;

 (g)  In our opinion and based on the consideration 
of reports of other statutory auditors of the 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 
incorporated in India, the managerial 
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 
2023 has been paid / provided by the Holding 
Company, its subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures incorporated in India to their directors 
in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

 (h)  With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of the report of the other auditors 
on separate financial statements as also the 
other financial information of the subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures, as noted in the 
‘Other matter’ paragraph:

  i.  The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on its consolidated financial position of 
the Group, its associates and joint ventures 
in its consolidated financial statements 
– Refer Note 36(iii) to the consolidated 
financial statements; 

  ii.  The Group, its associates and joint 
ventures did not have any material 
foreseeable losses in long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts during the 
year ended 31 March2023;
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 iii.  There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, 
its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 
March 2023.

 iv. a)  The respective managements of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
which are companies incorporated 
in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act have 
represented to us and the other auditors 
of such subsidiaries respectively that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the note 51 to 
the consolidated financial statements, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Holding Company 
or any of such subsidiaries to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the respective Holding 
Company or any of such subsidiaries 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

  b)  The respective managements of the 
Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
which are companies incorporated in India 
whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act have represented 
to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries respectively that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the note 51 to the consolidated 
financial statements, no fundshave been 
received by the respective Holding 

Company or any of such subsidiaries from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding 
Company or any of such subsidiaries 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

  c)  Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances 
performed by us and that performed by 
the auditors of the subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the Act, nothing has come to our 
or other auditor’s notice that has caused 
us or the other auditors to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and 
(b) contain any material mis-statement.

 v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during 
the year by the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries companies, incorporated in India.

 vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.e.f. 
April 1, 2023 for the Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries companies incorporated in 
India, hence reporting under this clause is not 
applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava
Partner

Place : Hyderabad Membership Number: 504777
Date: 26 May 2023 UDIN: xxxxxxxxx
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:
3 (xxi) Remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies 
included in the consolidated financial statements are:

S. 
No.

Name CIN
Holding company/ 

subsidiary
Clause number of 
the CARO report

1 Re Sustainability Limited U74140TG1994PLC018833 Holding Company 3(iii)(e)

2 West Bengal Waste Management Limited U90002WB2004PLC098219 Subsidiary 3(iii)(e)

3 Mumbai Waste Management Limited U90001TG2001PLC037829 Subsidiary 3(iii)(e)

4 Maridi Bio Industries Private Limited U90001TG2011PTC072453 Subsidiary 3(iii)(e)

5 Hyderabad C&D Waste Private Limited U74999TG2015PTC100867 Subsidiary 3(iii)(e)

6 Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions Limited U40105TG2006PLC049237 Subsidiary 3(iii)(e)

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 504777
Date: 26 May 2023 UDIN: xxxxxxxxxxxx

Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Re Sustainability Limited (the ‘Company’)



Re Sustainability Limited    |    Integrated Annual Report    2022-23 

08

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of Re Sustainability Limited as of 
and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of Re Sustainability Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, 
its associate companies and joint ventures, which are 
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTER-
NAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, 
its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and 
joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in 
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Holding Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) 
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to these 
consolidated financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these consolidated 
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to these 
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
and audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms 
of their reports referred to in Other Matters paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CON-
TROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THESE CONSOLI-
DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of Re Sustainability Limited 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINAN-
CIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CON-
SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control with reference 
to consolidated financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies, its associate companies and joint ventures, 
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all 
material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements 
and such internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2023, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

OTHER MATTERS
Our report under Section 143(3)(i)of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these consolidated 
financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far 
as it relates to these 29 subsidiary companies which 
are companies incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries 
and associates incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava
Partner

Place: Hyderabad Membership Number: 504777
Date: 26 May 2023 UDIN: xxxxxxxxxxx
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Notes As at  
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 45,301 36,333 
Capital work in progress 3B 23,685 16,770 
Investment property 4 20 8 
Goodwill 5A 3,771 3,925 
Intangible assets 5B 159,130 163,609 
Intangible assets under development 5C 53,631 28,170 
Right-of-use assets 5D 8,016 6,679 
Investment in an associate and a joint venture 36,37 6,734 6,097 
Financial assets
 (i) Investments 6A 121 121 
 (ii) Loans 6B 4,330 3,977 
 (iii) Other financial asset 6C 32,579 28,397 
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 19,144 15,244 
Non-current tax assets 9 6,658 6,124 
Other assets 10 49,953 24,656 

413,073 340,110 
Current assets
Inventories 7 7,876 4,896 
Financial assets
 (i) Trade receivables 6D 134,958 100,092 
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalent 6E 14,490 48,717 
 (iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 6F 2,194 4,033 
 (iv) Other financial asset 6C 3,705 2,747 
Other assets 10 33,881 20,185 

197,104 180,670 
Asset classified as held for sale 43 614 614 
Total assets 610,791 521,394 
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 11 423 418 
Other equity 12 333,292 274,126 
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 333,715 274,544 
Non-controlling interests 4,559 1,915 
Total equity 338,274 276,459 
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 13A 66,896 70,682 
 (ii) Lease liabilities 5D 3,759 3,064 
 (iii) Other financial liabilities 13C 2,197 11,483 
Government grant 17 1,085 1,223 
Provisions 16 61,992 53,365 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 14,085 3,252 

150,014 143,069 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 (i) Borrowings 13A 15,037 13,460 
 (ii) Lease liabilities 5D 691 628 
 (iii) Trade payables 13B
  - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4,469 2,098 
  - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 38,802 29,791 
 (iv) Other financial liabilities 13C 24,595 23,538 
Liabilities for current tax (net) 15 5,723 2,079 
Provisions 16 17,315 15,264 
Other liabilities 18 15,871 15,008 

122,503 101,866 
Total equity and liabilities 610,791 521,394 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Notes  For the year ended  
Friday, 31 March 2023

 For the year ended  
Thursday, 31 March 2022

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 19 363,280 299,691 
Other income 20 2,730 2,782 
Total income(I) 366,010 302,473 
Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 21 17,994 11,321 
(Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods (170) (151)
Construction expenses 22 42,254 36,839 
Employee benefits expense 23 40,262 36,410 
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 30,206 27,988 
Finance costs 24 16,013 11,414 
Other expenses 26 151,419 121,262 
Total expense (II) 297,978 245,083 
Profit before share of loss of associates and a joint venture and 
tax (III=I-II)

68,032 57,390 

Share of loss of an associate and a joint venture (IV) 36,37  (928) (1,256)
Profit before tax (V=III+IV) 67,104 56,134 
Tax expense 28
Current tax 14,931 12,168 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (3) (3,317)
Deferred tax 5,202 1,383 
Income tax expense(VI) 20,130 10,234 
Profit for the year(VII=V-VI) 46,974 45,900 
Other comprehensive income 27
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 2,353 938 
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods

2,353  938 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 180 34 
Income tax effect (42) (12)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit 
or loss in subsequent periods

 138 22 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VIII) 2,491  960 
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 
(IX=VII+VIII)

49,465 46,860 

Profit for the year is attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 47,188 46,072 
Non-Controlling interest (214) (172)
Other comprehensive income is attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 2,491 960 
Non-Controlling interest - -
Total comprehensive income is attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 49,679 47,032 
Non-Controlling interest (214) (172)
Earnings per equity share computed on the basis of profit 
attributable to equity holders of the parent
Basic earnings per share 29 1,129 1,103 
Diluted earnings per share 1,094 1,069 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 67,104 56,134 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30,206 27,988 
Provision for doubtful receivables, advances and other assets (net)  2,501  4,120 
Bad debts/ advances written-off 208 481 
Impairment of assets on account of termination of contracts 848 -
Liabilities no longer required written back - (118)
Deferred income arising from government grant (111) (132)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - (95)
Revenue from construction activity (43,584) (37,929)
Construction expenses 42,254 36,839 
Impairment of CWIP 253 
(Gain)/loss on sale of investment (78) 81 
Share-based Payment expense 206 357 
Interest expense 15,633 11,035 
Interest income (2,014) (1,785)
Share of loss of an associate and a joint venture 928  1,256 
Working Capital Adjustments
Other financial asset (3,667) 161 
Other asset (12,593) (6,046)
Inventories (2,980) (1,125)
Trade receivables (37,575) (33,159)
Provisions  3,452 501 
Trade payables 11,194  5,179 
Other liabilities 253  2,321 
Other financial liabilities  2,716 998 
Cash generated from operating activities 74,901 67,315 
Income tax paid (net of refund) (10,428) (14,499)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 64,473 52,816 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and CWIP (46,328) (21,583)
Purchase of intangible assets (46,642) (33,430)
Investment in Associates/Joint Ventures (1,565) (1,757)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary 616 548 
Proceeds from receivable from service concession 
arrangement

 3,515  4,726 

Inter corporate deposits (net) (353) (761)
Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalent  1,839  1,086 
Interest received  1,060 841 
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (87,858) (50,330)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Contd.)
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from non-controlling interests  2,432  1,241 
Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings (net) (1,522)  1,945 
Proceeds from long term borrowings  8,979 41,010 
Repayment oflong term borrowings (9,666) (7,058)
Payment of lease liabilities (2,980) (3,744)
Interest paid (8,085) (4,946)
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) (10,842) 28,448 
Net (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C) (34,227) 30,934 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 48,717 17,783 
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 14,490 48,717 

Refer Note 6F for change in liabilities arising from financing activities
a)  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian 

Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of 
 Cash on hand 19 24 
 Balances with banks: (Refer Note 6E)
 - Current Accounts 13,094 17,689 
 - Deposit with maturity of less than 3 months  1,377 31,004 
Cash and cash equivalent as per balance sheet 14,490 48,717 

Summary of significant accounting policies Note 2.3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(A) SHARE CAPITAL
 Class A - Equity Shares Class B - Equity Shares

No. of shares 
in Lakhs

INR Lakhs No. of shares 
in Lakhs*

INR Lakhs

Issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 1 April 2021 42 418  0 0 
Issued / (redeemed) during the year  - - - - 
As at 31 March 2022 42 418  0 0 
Issued / (redeemed) during the year 1 5 - - 
As at 31 March 2023 42 423  0 0 

 * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

(B) OTHER EQUITY
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Reserves and surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI)

 Non-
controlling 

interests

Total 
equity 

Retained 
earnings 

 Capital 
reserve 

 Share-based 
payment 

reserve (refer 
note 32) 

General 
Reserve 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

Equity 
Component 

of Compound 
Financial 

Instruments

Securities 
Premium# Total

Re-
measurement 

of net defined 
benefit plan 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve

Balance at  
1 April 2021 148,384  3,396  2,148 87 1  71,162 -  225,177  (368) 1,986  1,381 228,177 

Profit for the year 46,072 - - - - - -  46,072 - - (172) 45,900 
Other comprehensive 
income (net of taxes)  - - - - - - - - 22 938 - 960 

Share issue 
expenses (58) - - - - - - (58) - - - (58)

Share-based payments 
(refer note 32)  - -  356 - - - - 356 - - - 356 

Add: Increase/ 
(decrease) during 
the year

 - - - - - - - - - - 706 706 

Balance at  
31 March 2022 194,399  3,396  2,504 87 1  71,162 -  271,548  (346) 2,924  1,915 276,041 

Profit for the year 47,188 - - - - -  47,188 - - (214) 46,974 
Other comprehensive 
income (net of taxes)  - - - - - - - 138 2,353 -  2,491 

Share-based payments 
(refer note 32)  - -  206 - - - - 206 - - - 206 

Add: Increase/ 
(decrease) during 
the year

 - - - - - - 9,281  9,281 - -  2,858 12,139 

Balance at  
31 March 2023 241,587  3,396  2,710 87 1  71,162 9,281 328,223  (208) 5,277  4,559 337,851 

 #  Securities premium represent the difference between the issue price and face value on conversion of optionally convertible redeemable preference share 
into equity share. (refer note 11).

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants Re Sustainability Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

per Atin Bhargava M Goutham Reddy Masood Alam Mallick
Partner Managing Director Whole time Director & CEO
Membership No: 504777 DIN: 00251461 DIN: 01059902

Pankaj Maharaj Govind Singh
Chief Financial Officer Company secretary

Membership No: F12380
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
The consolidated financial statements comprise 
financial statements of Re Sustainability Limited 
(“RSL” or “the parent” or “the company”) and 
its subsidiaries, associates and joint venture 
(collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 
2023. The group is a public group domiciled in India 
and is incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered 
office of the group is located at Level 11B, Aurobindo 
Galaxy, Hyderabad Knowledge City, Hitech City 
Road, Hyderabad, Telangana – 500081.

The Group is principally engaged in the business 
of integrated waste management solutions for 
industrial (hazardous) waste, municipal waste, 
biomedical waste, electronic waste, car park 
services, commercial cleaning services, conservancy 
services and providing other incidental services. 
Information on the group’s structure is provided in 
note 33, and information on the other related party 
relationships of the group is provided in note 34. 

The consolidated financial statements were 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors on 26 May 2023.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group 
have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and 
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 
III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant 
Schedule III), as applicable to the CFS.

The Group prepared its financial statements in 
accordance accounting standards notified under the 
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together 
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have been 
measured at fair value:

-  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value or amortized cost depending upon 
classification (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments), and

- Derivative financial instruments.

2.2. Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries 
as at 31 March 2023. Control is achieved when the 
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power over 
the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an 
investee if and only if the Group has:

-  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that 
give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee)

-  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee, and

-  The ability to use its power over the investee 
to affect its returns. Generally, there is a 
presumption that a majority of voting rights 
result in control. To support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a majority 
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, 
the Group considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee, including:

 -  The contractual arrangement with the other 
vote holders of the investee

 -  Rights arising from other contractual arrange-
ments

-  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting 
rights

-  The size of the Group’s holding of voting 
rights relative to the size and dispersion of the 
holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls 
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three 
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary 
begins when the Group obtains control over the 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control 
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date the Group gains 
control until the date the Group ceases to control 
the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using 
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and 
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of 
the group uses accounting policies other than those 
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for 
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, 
appropriate adjustments are made to that group 
member’s financial statements in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements to ensure 
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for 
the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to 
same reporting date as that of the parent Group, 
i.e., year ended on 31 March 2023. When the end 
of the reporting period of the parent is different 
from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, 
for consolidation purposes, additional financial 
information as of the same date as the financial 
statements of the parent to enable the parent 
to consolidate the financial information of the 
subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

 Consolidation procedure:
(a)  Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 

income, expenses and cash flows of the parent 
with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, 
income and expenses of the subsidiary are 
based on the amounts of the assets and 
liabilities recognised in the consolidated 
financial statements at the acquisition date. 
(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the 
parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the 
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

(c)  Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, 
equity, income, expenses and cash flows 
relating to transactions between entities of the 
group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup 
transactions that are recognised in assets, such 
as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated 

in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an 
impairment that requires recognition in the 
consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 
Income Taxes applies to temporary differences 
that arise from the elimination of profits and 
losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

 (d)  As the financial assets and intangible assets 
recognized under service concession arrange-
ment are acquired in exchange for infrastruc-
ture construction / upgrading services, gains / 
losses on intra group transactions are treated as 
realized and not eliminated on consolidation.

   Profit or loss and each component of other 
comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to 
the equity holders of the parent of the Group 
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this 
results in the non-controlling interests having a 
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments 
are made to the financial statements of sub-
sidiaries to bring their accounting policies into 
line with the Group’s accounting policies. All in-
tra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, 
expenses and cash flows relating to transac-
tions between members of the Group are elim-
inated in full on consolidation.

   A change in the ownership interest of a sub-
sidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted 
for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses 
control over a subsidiary, it:

  -  Derecognises the assets (including good-
will) and liabilities of the subsidiary

  -  Derecognises the carrying amount of any 
non-controlling interests

  -  Derecognises the cumulative translation 
differences recorded in Equity

  -  Recognises the fair value of the consider-
ation received

  -  Recognises the fair value of any invest-
ment retained

  -  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit 
or loss
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  -  Reclassifies the parent’s share of com-
ponents previously recognised in OCI 
to profit or loss or retained earnings, as 
appropriate, as would be required if the 
group had directly disposed of the related 
assets or liabilities.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
 (a) Business combinations and goodwill
   A common control business combination, in-

volving entities or businesses in which all the 
combining entities or businesses are ultimately 
controlled by the same party or parties both 
before and after the business combination and 
where the control is not transitory, is accounted 
for using the pooling of interests method. The 
net assets of the transferor entity or business 
are accounted at their carrying amounts on the 
date of the acquisition subject to necessary 
adjustments required to harmonise accounting 
policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consid-
eration paid over the share capital of the trans-
feror entity or business is recognised as capital 
reserve under equity. Other business combina-
tions are accounted using acquisition method.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the 
excess of the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred and the amount recognised for 
non-controlling interests, and any previous in-
terest held, over the net identifiable assets ac-
quired and liabilities assumed. 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured 
at cost less any accumulated impairment loss-
es. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, 
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of 
the Group’s cash-generating units that are ex-
pected to benefit from the combination, irre-
spective of whether other assets or liabilities of 
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

 (b) Investment in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the group 
has significant influence. Significant influence 
is the power to participate in the financial and 
operating policy decisions of the investee, but 

is not control or joint control over those poli-
cies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement 
whereby the parties that have joint control of 
the arrangement have rights to the net assets 
of the joint venture. Joint control is the contrac-
tually agreed sharing of control of an arrange-
ment, which exists only when decisions about 
the relevant activities require unanimous con-
sent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining 
whether significant influence or joint control 
are similar to those necessary to determine 
control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and 
joint venture are accounted for using the equity 
method. Under the equity method, the invest-
ment in an associate or a joint venture is initially 
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the 
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in 
the group’s share of net assets of the associ-
ate or joint venture since the acquisition date. 
Goodwill relating to the associate or joint ven-
ture is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment and is not tested for impairment 
individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the 
Group’s share of the results of operations of the 
associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI 
of those investees is presented as part of the 
group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a 
change recognised directly in the equity of the 
associate or joint venture, the group recognises 
its share of any changes, when applicable, in 
the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised 
gains and losses resulting from transactions be-
tween the group and the associate or joint ven-
ture are eliminated to the extent of the interest 
in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or 
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in 
the associate or joint venture (which includes 
any long term interest that, in substance, form 
part of the group’s net investment in the asso-
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ciate or joint venture), the entity discontinues 
recognising its share of further losses. Addi-
tional losses are recognised only to the extent 
that the group has incurred legal or construc-
tive obligations or made payments on behalf of 
the associate or joint venture. If the associate or 
joint venture subsequently reports profits, the 
entity resumes recognising its share of those 
profits only after its share of the profits equals 
the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or 
loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown 
on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or 
joint venture are prepared for the same re-
porting period as the group. When necessary, 
adjustments are made to bring the accounting 
policies in line with those of the group.

After application of the equity method, the 
group determines whether it is necessary to 
recognise an impairment loss on its investment 
in its associate or joint venture. At each report-
ing date, the group determines whether there 
is objective evidence that the investment in the 
associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is 
such evidence, the group calculates the amount 
of impairment as the difference between the re-
coverable amount of the associate or joint ven-
ture and its carrying value, and then recognises 
the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a 
joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the asso-
ciate or joint control over the joint venture, the 
group measures and recognises any retained 
investment at its fair value. Any difference be-
tween the carrying amount of the associate or 
joint venture upon loss of significant influence 
or joint control and the fair value of the retained 
investment and proceeds from disposal is rec-
ognised in profit or loss.

 (c) Current versus non-current classification
The group presents assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet based on current/ non-current 

classification. An asset is treated as current 
when it is:

  -  Expected to be realised or intended to be 
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

  - Held primarily for the purpose of trading

  -  Expected to be realised within twelve 
months after the reporting period, or

  -  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period.

  All other assets are classified as non-current.

  A liability is current when:

  -  It is expected to be settled in normal op-
erating cycle

  -  It is held primarily for the purpose of trad-
ing

  -  It is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

  -  There is no unconditional right to defer 
the settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period

  The group classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 
as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 
group has identified twelve months as its op-
erating cycle.

 (d) Foreign currencies
The Group’s consolidated financial statements 
are presented in INR, which is also the parent 
group’s functional currency. For each entity the 
Group determines the functional currency and 
items included in the financial statements of 
each entity are measured using that function-
al currency. The Group uses the direct method 
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of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign 
operation the gain or loss that is reclassified 
to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises 
from using this method.

 Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially 
recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective 
functional currency spot rates at the date the 
transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, 
for practical reasons, the group uses an average rate 
if the average approximates the actual rate at the 
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated at the functional 
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting 
date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or 
translation of monetary items are recognised in 
profit or loss with the exception of the following:

-  Exchange differences arising on monetary 
items that forms part of a reporting entity’s 
net investment in a foreign operation are 
recognised in profit or loss in the separate 
financial statements of the reporting entity or 
the individual financial statements of the foreign 
operation, AS appropriate. in the financial 
statements that include the foreign operation 
and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated 
financial statements when the foreign operation 
is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are 
recognised initially in OCI. These Exchange 
differences are reclassified from equity to profit 
or loss on disposal of the net investment.

-  Tax charges and credits attributable to 
exchange differences on those monetary items 
are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation 

of non-monetary items measured at fair value is 
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or 
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., 
translation differences on items whose fair value 
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are 
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

 Group companies
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign 
operations are translated into INR at the rate of 
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their 
statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For 
practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to 
translate income and expense items, if the average 
rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. The exchange differences arising 
on translation for consolidation are recognised 
in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the 
component of OCI relating to that particular foreign 
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business 
combination of a foreign operation on or after 1 
April 2016 and any fair value adjustments to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on 
the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of 
the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate 
of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising 
in business combinations/ acquisitions, which 
occurred before the date of transition to Ind AS 
(1 April 2016), are treated as assets and liabilities 
of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of 
the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and 
liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed 
in the functional currency of the parent and no 
further translation differences occur.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all 
foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the 
date of transition, viz., 1 April 2016. Gain or loss on 
a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation 
excludes translation differences that arose before 
the date of transition but includes only translation 
differences arising after the transition date.
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 (e) Fair value measurement
The group measures financial instruments, such 
as, derivatives at fair value at each balance 
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market partic-
ipants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:

  -  In the principal market for the asset or 
liability, or

  -  In the absence of a principal market, in the 
most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market 
must be accessible by the group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is mea-
sured using the assumptions that market par-
ticipants would use when pricing the asset or 
liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial 
asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by sell-
ing it to another market participant that would 
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair val-
ue, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable 
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial state-
ments are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

-  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market 
prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities 

-  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable

-  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which 
the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobserv-
able

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in 
the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the group determines whether transfers have 
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
re-assessing categorisation (based on the low-
est level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of 
significant liabilities, such as contingent con-
sideration. Involvement of external valuers 
is decided by the Group’s Audit Committee. 
Selection criteria include market knowledge, 
reputation, independence and whether pro-
fessional standards are maintained. Valuers are 
normally rotated every three years. The Audit 
committee decides, after discussions with the 
Group’s external valuers, which valuation tech-
niques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Management anal-
yses the movements in the values of assets and 
liabilities which are required to be re-measured 
or re-assessed as per the group’s accounting 
policies. For this analysis, the Management 
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest 
valuation by agreeing the information in the 
valuation computation to contracts and other 
relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in 
the fair value of each asset and liability with rel-
evant external sources to determine whether 
the change is reasonable.
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On an interim basis, the Management present 
the valuation results to the Audit Committee 
and the group’s independent auditors. This in-
cludes a discussion of the major assumptions 
used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
group has determined classes of assets and lia-
bilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics 
and risks of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

 This note summarises accounting policy for fair 
value. Other fair value related disclosures are 
given in the relevant notes.

-  Disclosures for valuation methods, signifi-
cant estimates and assumptions (note 30)

-  Quantitative disclosures of fair value mea-
surement hierarchy.

-  Financial instruments (including those car-
ried at amortised cost).

 (f) Revenue from contract with customer
 Revenue is recognised when control of the 
goods or services are transferred to the cus-
tomer at an amount that reflects the consider-
ation to which the Group expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services. The 
Group has generally concluded that it is the 
principal in its revenue arrangements, because 
it typically controls the goods or services be-
fore transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting 
judgements, estimates and assumptions relat-
ing to revenue from contracts with customers 
are provided in Note 30.

The specific recognition criteria described below 
must also be met before revenue is recognised.

  Revenue from waste disposal activities:
Revenue from user charges towards waste dis-
posal is recognised as and when the related 
services are performed i.e. when the waste is 
collected, transported and is received at the 
dumping yards.

 Sale of Power
Revenue from supply of power generated from 
waste to energy plant is recognized on the supply 
of units generated from the plant to the grid, as per 
the terms of the Power Purchased Agreement (PPA) 
entered into with the customers.

 Revenue from turnkey contracts
Revenue from Turnkey contracts is recognised by 
reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity. The Group uses input method in measuring 
progress because there is a direct relationship 
between the Group’s effort and the transfer of 
goods and service to the customer. Future expected 
loss, if any, is recognised as and when assessed.

 Revenue from construction contracts
The Group recognizes and measures revenue, 
costs and margin for providing construction 
services during the period of construction of the 
infrastructure in accordance with Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue 
from contracts with customers’. 

When the outcome of a construction contract can 
be estimated reliably and it is probable that it will 
be profitable, contract revenue and contract costs 
associated with the construction contract are 
recognised as revenue and expenses respectively 
by reference to the percentage of completion 
of the contract activity at the reporting date. The 
percentage of completion of a contract is determined 
considering the proportion that contract costs 
incurred for work performed up to the reporting 
date bear to the estimated total contract costs. 

For the purposes of recognising revenue, contract 
revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue 
agreed in the contract, the variations in contract 
work, claims and incentive payments to the extent 
that it is probable that they will result in revenue and 
they are capable of being reliably measured.

Costs incurred for rendering the construction 
services, exchanged for the intangible asset and 
financial asset, include all costs that are directly 
related to the construction of the project and include 
all overheads other than those relating to general 
administration of the Group.
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The percentage of completion method is applied on 
a cumulative basis in each accounting period to the 
current estimates of contract revenue and contract 
costs. The effect of a change in the estimate of 
contract revenue or contract costs, or the effect of a 
change in the estimate of the outcome of a contract, 
is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate 
and the effect of which are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
the change is made and in subsequent periods.

When the outcome of a construction contract 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of contract costs incurred of which 
recovery is probable and the related contract costs 
are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will 
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is 
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which such probability 
occurs.

 Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when 
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery 
of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, 
trade discounts and volume rebates.

 Car park and cleaning business:
Revenue is recognised when services are rendered 
to the customers and the customers have accepted 
the services. Revenue is not recognised to the extent 
where there are significant uncertainties regarding 
recovery of the consideration due, associated costs 
or the possible return of goods.

 Significant financing component
Generally, the Group receives short-term advances 
from its customers. Using the practical expedient 
in Ind AS 115, the Group does not adjust the 
promised amount of consideration for the effects 
of a significant financing component if it expects, 
at contract inception, that the period between the 

transfer of the promised good or service to the 
customer and when the customer pays for that 
good or service will be one year or less.

The Group also receives long-term security deposits 
from customers. The transaction price for such 
contracts is discounted, using the rate that would 
be reflected in a separate financing transaction 
between the Group and its customers at contract 
inception, to take into consideration the significant 
financing component.

 Contract balances
 Contract assets 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in 
exchange for goods or services transferred to the 
customer. If the Group performs by transferring 
goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is 
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned 
consideration that is conditional.

 Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an 
amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., 
only the passage of time is required before payment 
of the consideration is due).

 Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer 
goods or services to a customer for which the 
Group has received consideration (or an amount 
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a 
customer pays consideration before the Group 
transfers goods or services to the customer, a 
contract liability is recognised when the payment is 
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when 
the Group performs under the contract.

 Interest income
For all debt instruments measured either at 
amortised cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded 
using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate 
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments or receipts over the expected life of 
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where 
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appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Group estimates the expected cash flows by 
considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, 
call and similar options) but does not consider the 
expected credit losses. Interest income is included 
in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

 Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s 
right to receive the payment is established.

 Rental Income
Rental income arising from operating leases on 
investment properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in 
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its 
operating nature.

 (g) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attached conditions 
will be complied with. When the grant relates 
to an expense item, it is recognised as income 
on a systematic basis over the periods that the 
related costs, for which it is intended to com-
pensate, are expensed. When the grant relates 
to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal 
amounts over the expected useful life of the 
related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-mone-
tary assets, the asset and the grant are record-
ed at fair value amounts and released to profit 
or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern 
of consumption of the benefit of the underly-
ing asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When 
loans or similar assistance are provided by gov-
ernments or related institutions, with an interest 
rate below the current applicable market rate, 
the effect of this favourable interest is regarded 
as a government grant. The loan or assistance is 
initially recognised and measured at fair value 
and the government grant is measured as the 
difference between the initial carrying value of 

the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is 
subsequently measured as per the accounting 
policy applicable to financial liabilities.

 (h) Taxes
  Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the amount expected to be re-
covered from or paid to the taxation authori-
ties. The tax rates and tax laws used to com-
pute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in 
the countries where the group operates and 
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity). Current tax items are rec-
ognised in correlation to the underlying trans-
action either in OCI or directly in equity. Man-
agement periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

In cases, where the tax on dividend from a for-
eign subsidiary is allowed as a set off against 
the Group’s own dividend distribution tax 
(DDT) liability, then the amount of tax paid on 
foreign dividend is recognised in the statement 
of changes in equity.

In cases, where the tax on dividend from a 
subsidiary is allowed as a set off against the 
Group’s own dividend distribution tax (DDT) 
liability, the tax deducted by the domestic sub-
sidiary is treated as withholding tax recognised 
in the statement of changes in equity.

The dividend income is recognised in the in-
come statement at an amount including any 
withholding taxes (that is, gross of the with-
holding tax that has been deducted by the do-
mestic subsidiary).



Re Sustainability Limited    |    Integrated Annual Report    2022-23 

24

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

The Group recognises interest levied and pen-
alties related to income tax assessments in in-
terest expenses.

  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability 
method on temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting pur-
poses at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all de-
ductible temporary differences, the carry for-
ward of unused tax credits and any unused tax 
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward 
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised, except:

-  When the deferred tax asset relating to the 
deductible temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a busi-
ness combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to al-
low all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
re-assessed at each reporting date and are rec-
ognised to the extent that it has become prob-
able that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realised or the liabil-
ity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enact-
ed at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised out-
side profit or loss is recognised outside profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income 
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction ei-
ther in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation au-
thority.

In case of tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 
1961 enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset or 
liability) is recognized in respect of temporary 
differences which reverse during the tax holi-
day period, to the extent the Group’s gross to-
tal income is subject to the deduction during 
the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect 
of temporary differences which reverse after 
the tax holiday period is recognized in the year 
in which the temporary differences originate. 
However, the Group restricts recognition of de-
ferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that 
sufficient future taxable income will be avail-
able against which such deferred tax assets can 
be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, 
the temporary differences which originate first 
are considered to reverse first.

  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indi-
an Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of un-
used tax credit which can be carried forward 
and utilised when the Group will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period. The 
deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit 
available only to the extent that it is probable 
that the concerned Group will pay normal in-
come tax during the specified period, i.e., the 
period for which MAT credit is allowed to be 
carried forward. In the year in which the Group 
recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created 
by way of credit to the statement of profit and 
loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. 
The Group reviews the “MAT credit entitle-



25

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

ment” asset at each reporting date and writes 
down the asset to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that it will pay normal tax during the 
specified period.

 (i) Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net 
of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant 
and equipment is stated at cost, net of accu-
mulated depreciation and accumulated impair-
ment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost 
of replacing part of the plant and equipment 
and borrowing costs for long-term construc-
tion projects if the recognition criteria are met. 
When significant parts of plant and equip-
ment are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the group depreciates them separately based 
on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a 
major inspection is performed, its cost is rec-
ognised in the carrying amount of the plant 
and equipment as a replacement if the recog-
nition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or 
loss as incurred. The present value of the ex-
pected cost for the decommissioning of an as-
set after its use is included in the cost of the 
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a 
provision are met. Refer to note 31 regarding 
significant accounting judgements, estimates 
and assumptions and provisions for further in-
formation about the recorded decommission-
ing provision.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line ba-
sis over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
as follows:

- Building (refer below)

-  Roads and other civil infrastructures  
10 years

- Land fill based on the actual usage

- Plant and machinery 9 years

- Vehicles 8 years

- Lab equipment 10 years

- Computers 3 years

  - Furniture and fixtures 10 years

  - Office equipment 5 years

Landfill costs include costs such as landfill lin-
er material and installation, excavation costs, 
leachate collection systems, gas collection sys-
tems, environmental monitoring equipment for 
groundwater and landfill gas, directly related 
engineering costs and other direct costs. The 
landfill capacity associated with each landfill is 
quantified and the landfill costs for each land-
fill are amortized over the capacity associated 
with the landfill as the capacity is utilized using 
units of consumption method.

The Group, based on technical assessment 
made by technical expert and management 
estimate, depreciates certain items of land de-
velopment, building, plant and equipment over 
estimated useful lives which are different from 
the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The management be-
lieves that these estimated useful lives are real-
istic and reflect fair approximation of the peri-
od over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment 
and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecog-
nition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and ad-
justed prospectively, if appropriate.

 (j) Investment properties
Investment properties are measured initially at 
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, investment properties 
are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion and accumulated impairment loss, if any. 
The cost includes the cost of replacing parts 
and borrowing costs for long-term construc-
tion projects if the recognition criteria are met. 
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When significant parts of the investment prop-
erty are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the Group depreciates them separately based 
on their specific useful lives. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or 
loss as incurred. Though the Group measures 
investment property using cost based mea-
surement, the fair value of investment prop-
erty is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are 
determined based on an annual evaluation 
performed by an internal/external indepen-
dent valuer. 

Investment properties are de-recognized ei-
ther when they have been disposed of or when 
they are permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future economic benefit is expected from 
their disposal. The difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the 
period of de-recognition.

 (k)  Intangible assets and Intangible assets 
under development
Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115, concession 
arrangements are accounted for based on the 
nature of the consideration. The intangible as-
set model is used to the extent that the Group 
receives a right to charge users of the public 
service. The financial asset model is used when 
the Group has an unconditional contractual 
right to receive cash or another financial asset 
from or at the direction of the grantor for the 
construction services.

The group has determined that both intangi-
ble asset model and financial asset model are 
applicable to the agreement as the group is 
entitled to receive grant (financial asset) which 
falls due based on the construction activity 
completed by the group, which is certified by 
an independent engineer appointed as per the 
terms of the contract and is also entitled to tip-
ping fee towards waste disposed (intangible 
asset).

Any asset carried under concession agreement 
is derecognised on disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its future 
use or disposal or when the contractual rights 
to the financial asset expire.

  Recognition and measurement

Under the SCA, where the group has received 
the right to charge the user of the public ser-
vice, acquired contractual rights to receive 
specified determinable amounts, such rights 
are recognised and classified as “Financial As-
sets”, even though payments are contingent 
on the group ensuring that the infrastructure 
meets the specified quality or efficiency re-
quirements. Such financial assets are classified 
as “Receivables against Service Concession Ar-
rangement”.

In addition to above mentioned amounts the 
group has also received the right to charge the 
users of a public service, such rights are rec-
ognised and classified as “Intangible Assets”. 
Such right is not an unconditional right to re-
ceive consideration because the amounts are 
contingent to the extent that the project re-
ceives waste and thus are recognised and clas-
sified as intangible assets. Such an intangible 
asset is recognised by the Group at cost (which 
is the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable for the construction services de-
livered) and is capitalized when each compo-
nent of the project is complete in all respects. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible 
asset is measured at cost, less any accumulat-
ed amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses.

  Revenue from construction contracts

The group recognizes and measures revenue, 
costs and margin for providing construction 
services during the period of construction of 
the infrastructure in accordance with Ind AS 115 
‘Revenue from contracts with customers’.

When the outcome of a construction contract 
can be estimated reliably and it is probable 
that it will be profitable, contract revenue and 
contract costs associated with the construc-
tion contract are recognised as revenue and 
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expenses respectively by reference to the per-
centage of completion of the contract activity 
at the reporting date. The percentage of com-
pletion of a contract is determined considering 
the proportion that contract costs incurred for 
work performed up to the reporting date bear 
to the estimated total contract costs.

For the purposes of recognising revenue, con-
tract revenue comprises the initial amount of 
revenue agreed in the contract, the variations 
in contract work, claims and incentive pay-
ments to the extent that it is probable that they 
will result in revenue and they are capable of 
being reliably measured.

Costs incurred for rendering the construction 
services, exchanged for the intangible as-
set and financial asset, include all costs that 
are directly related to the construction of the 
project and include all overheads other than 
those relating to general administration of the 
group.

The percentage of completion method is ap-
plied on a cumulative basis in each accounting 
period to the current estimates of contract rev-
enue and contract costs. The effect of a change 
in the estimate of contract revenue or contract 
costs, or the effect of a change in the estimate 
of the outcome of a contract, is accounted for 
as a change in accounting estimate and the ef-
fect of which are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 
change is made and in subsequent periods.

When the outcome of a construction contract 
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is rec-
ognised only to the extent of contract costs 
incurred of which recovery is probable and 
the related contract costs are recognised as 
an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will 
exceed total contract revenue, the expected 
loss is recognised as an expense in the State-
ment of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
such probability occurs.

  Claims
Price escalation and other claims and/or vari-
ation in the contract work are included in con-
tract revenue only when:

•  Negotiations have reached at an ad-
vanced stage (which is evidenced on 
receipt of favorable Dispute Resolution 
Board (DRB) order/first level of arbitra-
tion as per respective arbitration contract 
clauses, acceptance by customers, other 
probable assessments, etc.) such that it 
is probable that customer will accept the 
claim; and

•  The amount that is probable will be ac-
cepted by the customer can be measured 
reliably.

  Borrowing costs
Project specific borrowing costs are capitalized 
to the extent that they relate to the intangible 
asset until the capitalization of intangible asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that an en-
tity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. Where funds are temporarily invested 
pending their expenditures on the intangible 
asset, any investment income earned, to the 
extent that it relates to the intangible asset are 
reduced from the borrowing cost capitalized.

  Amortisation of Intangible asset under SCA
The intangible rights which are recognised in 
the form of right to collect tipping fee, except 
for landfill costs are amortized on a straight-line 
basis from the date of capitalization over the 
concession period. The landfill cost is amor-
tized on the basis of capacity utilised by waste 
dumped in the landfills.

   Contractual obligation to restore the infrastruc-
ture to a specified level of serviceability
The group has contractual obligation to main-
tain the infrastructure to a specified level of 
serviceability during the concession period 
and at the time of handover to the grantor of 
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the SCA. Such obligations are measured at the 
best estimate of the expenditure that would be 
required to settle the obligation at the balance 
sheet date. The timing and amount of such cost 
are estimated and recognised on a discounted 
basis by creating a provision for replacement 
and capitalizing the costs to intangible assets 
and amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
concession period. The provision for replace-
ment is unwound over its life using effective 
interest rate method.

 (l)  Other than Service concession arrange-
ments
Intangible assets acquired separately are mea-
sured on initial recognition at cost. Following 
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the intangible asset may be impaired. The am-
ortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or 
the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortisation period 
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. The amorti-
sation expense on intangible assets with finite 
lives is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss unless such expenditure forms part of 
carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of 
an intangible asset are measured as the differ-
ence between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset and are rec-
ognised in the statement of profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

 (m) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the ac-
quisition, construction or production of an as-

set that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that an en-
tity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjust-
ment to the borrowing costs.

 (n) Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception 
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 
is, if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration.

  Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and 
measurement approach for all leases, except 
for short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to 
make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying 
assets.

  (i) Right-of-use assets

  The Group recognises right-of-use assets at 
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., 
the date the underlying asset is available 
for use). For leases previously classified as 
operating leases under Ind AS 17, the Com-
pany has elected the option to recognise 
right-of-use asset at the date of initial appli-
cation equal to the lease liability, adjusted 
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued 
lease payments relating to that lease rec-
ognised in the balance sheet immediately 
before the date of initial application as per 
paragraph C8(b)(ii) of Ind AS 116.

  Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, 
less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
re-measurement of lease liabilities. The 
cost of right-of-use assets includes the 
amount of lease liabilities recognised, 
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initial direct costs incurred, and lease 
payments made at or before the com-
mencement date less any lease incentives 
received. Unless the Company is reason-
ably certain to obtain ownership of the 
leased asset at the end of the lease term, 
the recognised right-of-use assets are de-
preciated on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of its estimated useful life and the 
lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject 
to impairment.

  (ii) Lease liabilities

  At the commencement date of the lease, 
the Group recognises lease liabilities mea-
sured at the present value of lease pay-
ments to be made over the lease term. The 
lease payments include fixed payments 
(including in substance fixed payments) 
less any lease incentives receivable, vari-
able lease payments that depend on an 
index or a rate, and amounts expected to 
be paid under residual value guarantees. 
The lease payments also include the exer-
cise price of a purchase option reasonably 
certain to be exercised by the Group and 
payments of penalties for terminating the 
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group 
exercising the option to terminate. Vari-
able lease payments that do not depend 
on an index or a rate are recognised as 
expenses (unless they are incurred to pro-
duce inventories) in the period in which 
the event or condition that triggers the 
payment occurs.

  In calculating the present value of lease 
payments, the Group uses its incremental 
borrowing rate at the lease commence-
ment date because the interest rate im-
plicit in the lease is not readily determin-
able. After the commencement date, the 
amount of lease liabilities is increased to 
reflect the accretion of interest and re-
duced for the lease payments made. In 
addition, the carrying amount of lease lia-
bilities is remeasured if there is a modifica-
tion, a change in the lease term, a change 

in the lease payments (e.g., changes to 
future payments resulting from a change 
in an index or rate used to determine such 
lease payments) or a change in the assess-
ment of an option to purchase the under-
lying asset. The Group’s lease liabilities 
are included in Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings (see Note 13)

  (iii)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets

  The Grouop applies the short-term lease 
recognition exemption to its short-term 
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., 
those leases that have a lease term of 12 
months or less from the commencement 
date and do not contain a purchase op-
tion). It also applies the lease of low-val-
ue assets recognition exemption to those 
items that are considered to be low value. 
Lease payments on short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets are recognised 
as expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

   Group as a lessor

  Leases in which the Company does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and re-
wards incidental to ownership of an asset 
are classified as operating leases. Rent-
al income arising is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are add-
ed to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised over the lease term 
on the same basis as rental income. Con-
tingent rents are recognised as revenue in 
the period in which they are earned.

 (o) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, less es-
timated costs of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.



Re Sustainability Limited    |    Integrated Annual Report    2022-23 

30

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its 
present location and condition are accounted 
for as follows:

-  Raw materials: cost includes cost of pur-
chase and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location 
and condition. cost is determined on first 
in, first out basis.

-  Finished goods and work in progress: 
cost includes cost of direct materials and 
labour and a proportion of manufacturing 
overheads based on the normal operating 
capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. 
cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

-  Traded goods: cost includes cost of pur-
chase and other costs incurred in bring-
ing the inventories to their present loca-
tion and condition. cost is determined on 
weighted average basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer 
of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow 
hedges, recognised in OCI, in respect of the 
purchases of raw materials.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, less es-
timated costs of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.

 (p) Impairment of non-financial assets
The group assesses, at each reporting date, 
whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is re-
quired, the group estimates the asset’s recov-
erable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. Recoverable amount is deter-
mined for an individual asset, unless the asset 
does not generate cash inflows that are large-
ly independent of those from other assets or 
groups of assets. When the carrying amount 
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted 
share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators.

The group bases its impairment calculation on 
detailed budgets and forecast calculations, 
which are prepared separately for each of the 
group CGUs to which the individual assets are 
allocated. These budgets and forecast calcu-
lations generally cover a period of five years. 
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash 
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow 
projections beyond periods covered by the 
most recent budgets/forecasts, the group ex-
trapolates cash flow projections in the budget 
using a steady or declining growth rate for sub-
sequent years, unless an increasing rate can be 
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not 
exceed the long-term average growth rate for 
the products, industries, or country or countries 
in which the entity operates, or for the market 
in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on 
inventories, are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. For assets excluding good-
will, an assessment is made at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is an indica-
tion that previously recognised impairment 
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If 
such indication exists, the group estimates the 
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previ-
ously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been a change in the assump-
tions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was rec-
ognised. The reversal is limited so that the car-
rying amount of the asset does not exceed its 



31

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as 
at each reporting date and when circumstanc-
es indicate that the carrying value may be im-
paired.

 (q) Provisions 
  General

Provisions are recognised when the group has 
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an out-
flow of resources embodying economic bene-
fits will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. When the group expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for 
example, under an insurance contract, the re-
imbursement is recognised as a separate asset, 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss 
net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is ma-
terial, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the 
risks specific to the liability. When discounting 
is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

  Provision for capping

The cost for final capping for each landfill is esti-
mated based on the area to be capped and the 
capping materials and activities required. The 
estimate also considers when these costs are 
anticipated to be paid and factor in inflation and 
discount rates. These costs are reviewed annual-
ly, or more often if significant facts change. The 
total cost of capping is charged to the statement 
of profit or loss over the capacity associated 
with the landfill as the capacity is utilized. The 
provision for capping is unwound over its life 
using effective interest rate method. Changes in 
estimates, such as timing or cost of construction, 

for final capping are charged off to the state-
ment of profit and loss prospectively.

  Provision for post closure 

The estimates for post-closure costs are based 
on the regulatory and contractual requirements 
for post-closure monitoring and maintenance. 
The estimates for post-closure costs also con-
siders when the costs are anticipated to be 
paid and factor in inflation and discount rates. 
The possibility of changing legal and regulatory 
requirements and the forward-looking nature 
of these types of costs make any estimation or 
assumption less certain. The total cost of post 
closure is charged to the statement of profit or 
loss over the quantity of waste estimated to 
be disposed in the specified site. The quantity 
of waste estimated to be disposed takes into 
consideration the remaining operating period 
of the site and the land available for waste dis-
posal. These costs are reviewed annually, or 
more often if significant facts change. The pro-
vision for post closure is unwound over its life 
using effective interest rate method. Changes 
in estimates for closure and post-closure events 
are charged off to the statement of profit and 
loss prospectively.

  Provision for Incineration

Provision for incinerations recorded in the fi-
nancial statement as at the year-end is derived 
on the basis of estimated cost of treating the in-
cinerable waste in the facility. Such an estimate 
is made based on the average actual per ton 
cost incurred by the Group. 

 (r) Employee benefits
  Post employment benefits

  Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident 
fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 
group has no obligation, other than the con-
tribution payable to the provident fund. The 
group recognizes contribution payable to the 
provident fund scheme as an expense, when 
an employee renders the related service. If the 
contribution payable to the scheme for service 
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received before the balance sheet date ex-
ceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 
payable to the scheme is recognized as a lia-
bility after deducting the contribution already 
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds 
the contribution due for services received 
before the balance sheet date, then excess is 
recognized as an asset to the extent that the 
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduc-
tion in future payment or a cash refund.

  Defined benefit plan
Gratuity liability for eligible employees are de-
fined benefit obligation and are provided for 
on the basis of an actuarial valuation on pro-
jected unit credit method made at the end of 
each financial year. 

Obligation is measured at the present value of 
estimated future cash flows using discounted 
rate that is determined by reference to market 
yields at the balance sheet date on Govern-
ment Securities where the currency and terms 
of the Government Securities are consistent 
with the currency and estimated terms of the 
defined benefit obligation.

Re measurements, comprising of actuarial gains 
and losses excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability are 
recognised immediately in the balance sheet 
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which 
they occur. Re measurements are not reclassi-
fied to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or 
loss on the earlier of:

-  The date of the plan amendment or cur-
tailment, and

-  The date that the group recognises relat-
ed restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the dis-
count rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset. The group recognises the following 
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as 
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

 -  Service costs comprising current service costs, 
past-service costs, gains and losses on curtail-
ments and non-routine settlements; and

 - Net interest expense or income

 -  Changes in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation resulting from plan am-
mendments or curtailments are recognised im-
mediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

  Compensated absence

The employees are entitled to accumulate 
leave subject to certain limits, for future en-
cashment, as per policy of the Group. Accru-
al towards compensated absences at the end 
of the financial year are based on last salary 
drawn and outstanding leave absence at the 
end of the financial year. The liability towards 
such unutilised leave at the end of each bal-
ance sheet date is determined based on inde-
pendent actuarial valuation and recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

 (s) Share-based payments
Employees of the Group receive remuneration 
in the form of share-based payments, where-
by employees render services as consideration 
for equity instruments (equity-settled transac-
tions).

  Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is deter-
mined by the fair value at the date when the 
grant is made using an appropriate valuation 
model.

That cost is recognised, together with a cor-
responding increase in share-based payment 
(SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in 
which the performance and/or service con-
ditions are fulfilled in employee benefits ex-
pense. The cumulative expense recognised for 
equity-settled transactions at each reporting 
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and the 
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The state-
ment of profit and loss expense or credit for a 
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period represents the movement in cumulative 
expense recognised as at the beginning and 
end of that period and is recognised in em-
ployee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance condi-
tions are not taken into account when deter-
mining the grant date fair value of awards, but 
the likelihood of the conditions being met is 
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate 
of the number of equity instruments that will 
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions 
are reflected within the grant date fair value. 
Any other conditions attached to an award, 
but without an associated service requirement, 
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. 
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair 
value of an award and lead to an immediate 
expensing of an award unless there are also 
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do 
not ultimately vest because non-market per-
formance and/or service conditions have not 
been met. Where awards include a market or 
non-vesting condition, the transactions are 
treated as vested irrespective of whether the 
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, 
provided that all other performance and/or 
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are 
modified, the minimum expense recognised 
is the expense had the terms had not been 
modified, if the original terms of the award are 
met. An additional expense is recognised for 
any modification that increases the total fair 
value of the share-based payment transaction, 
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as 
measured at the date of modification. Where 
an award is cancelled by the entity or by the 
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair 
value of the award is expensed immediately 
through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is re-
flected as additional share dilution in the com-
putation of diluted earnings per share.

In situations where the Group issues share-
based payments to employees of the subsidiary 
and does not cross charge the cost to such sub-
sidiary, the cost pertaining to the vesting period 
is recorded as Investment made in the subsidi-
ary with a corresponding credit to equity. 

 (t) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives 
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fi-
nancial liability or equity instrument of another 
entity.

  Financial assets

  Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recogni-
tion, as subsequently measured at amortised 
cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial 
recognition depends on the financial asset’s 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the 
Group’s business model for managing them. 
With the exception of trade receivables that do 
not contain a significant financing component 
or for which the Group has applied the prac-
tical expedient, the Group initially measures a 
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 
a financial asset not at fair value through profit 
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that 
do not contain a significant financing compo-
nent or for which the Group has applied the 
practical expedient are measured at the trans-
action price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer 
to the accounting policies in section - Revenue 
from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and 
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give 
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is re-
ferred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an 
instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing fi-
nancial assets refers to how it manages its fi-
nancial assets in order to generate cash flows. 
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The business model determines whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual 
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

  Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, fi-
nancial assets are classified in three categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

-  Debt instruments at fair value through oth-
er comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

-  Debt instruments, Derivatives and equity 
instruments at fair value through profit of 
loss (FVTPL).

  Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised 
cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for col-
lecting contractual cash flows, and

b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are sole-
ly payments of principal and interest (SPPI) 
on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the group. 
After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into ac-
count any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance 
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the profit or 
loss. This category generally applies to trade 
and other receivables. For more information on 
receivables, refer to Note 6D.

  Debt instrument at FVTOCI

   A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI 
if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is 
achieved both by collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling the financial assets, and

b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows repre-
sent SPPI.

  Debt instruments included within the 
FVTOCI category are measured initially as 
well as at each reporting date at fair val-
ue. Fair value movements are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, the Group recognizes interest 
income, impairment losses and reversals 
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
statement of profit and loss. On derecog-
nition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassi-
fied from the equity to profit and loss. In-
terest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 
instrument is reported as interest income 
using the EIR method.

   Debt instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instru-
ments. Any debt instrument, which does not 
meet the criteria for categorization as at amor-
tized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss.

  Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part 
of a financial asset or part of a group of sim-
ilar financial assets) is primarily derecognised 
(i.e. removed from the group’s balance sheet) 
when:

-  The rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or

-  The group has transferred its rights to re-
ceive cash flows from the asset or has as-
sumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ ar-
rangement; and either (a) the group has 
transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the group has 
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neither transferred nor retained substan-
tially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its rights to re-
ceive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates 
if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the group continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent 
of the group’s continuing involvement. In that 
case, the group also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associat-
ed liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the group has 
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form 
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the group could be re-
quired to repay.

  Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group ap-
plies expected credit loss (ECL) model for mea-
surement and recognition of impairment loss 
on the following financial assets and credit risk 
exposure: 

a.  Financial assets that are debt instruments, 
and are measured at amortised cost e.g., 
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade re-
ceivables and bank balance.

b.  Trade receivables or any contractual right 
to receive cash or another financial asset 
that result from transactions that are within 
the scope of Ind AS 115.

c.  Financial guarantee contracts which are 
not measured as at FVTPL.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 
Trade receivables and Other receivables. The 

application of simplified approach does not re-
quire the Group to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, 
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other 
financial assets and risk exposure, the Group 
determines that whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since ini-
tial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12- month ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, 
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the in-
strument improves such that there is no longer 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, then the entity reverts to recog-
nizing impairment loss allowance based on 
12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses 
resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 
12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL 
which results from default events that are pos-
sible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Group in accor-
dance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash 
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

  Equity Investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the 
group may make an irrevocable election to 
present in other comprehensive income sub-
sequent changes in the fair value. The group 
makes such election on an instrument-by-in-
strument basis. The classification is made on 
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the group decides to classify an equity instru-
ment as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes 
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 
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recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of 
the amounts from OCI to statement of profit 
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, 
the group may transfer the cumulative gain or 
loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss.

   Non-derivative financial assets – Service con-
cession arrangements

The group recognises a financial asset arising 
from a service concession arrangement when 
it has an unconditional contractual right to re-
ceive cash or another financial asset from or at 
the direction of the grantor of the concession 
for the construction or upgrade service pro-
vided. Such financial assets are measured at 
fair value upon initial recognition and classified 
as trade receivables. Subsequent to initial rec-
ognition, such financial assets are measured at 
amortised cost.

If the group is paid for the construction ser-
vices partly by a financial asset and partly by an 
intangible asset, then each component of the 
consideration is accounted for separately and 
is initially recognised at its fair value.

  Financial liabilities 
  Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recog-
nition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables 
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrow-
ings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

The group’s financial liabilities include trade 
and other payables, loans and borrowings in-
cluding bank overdrafts and derivative finan-
cial instruments.

  Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends 
on their classification, as described below:

   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss

   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial rec-
ognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated as such at the initial date of recog-
nition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are 
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair 
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in 
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These 
gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred 
to statement of profit and loss. However, the 
group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of 
such liability are recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss. The group has not designat-
ed any financial liability as at fair value through 
profit and loss.

  Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the group. 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into ac-
count any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. 
For more information (refer Note 13A).

  Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
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cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original lia-
bility and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

  Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simul-
taneously.

 (u) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to an insignif-
icant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, 
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and 
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of 

outstanding bank overdrafts as they are con-
sidered an integral part of the group’s cash 
management.

 (v) Dividend
The Group recognises a liability to make cash 
or non-cash distributions to equity holders of 
the parent when the distribution is authorised 
and the distribution is no longer at the discre-
tion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in 
India, a distribution is authorised when it is ap-
proved by the shareholders. A corresponding 
amount is recognised directly in equity.

 (w) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by divid-
ing the net profit or loss attributable to equity 
holder (after deducting preference dividends 
and attributable taxes) by the weighted av-
erage number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstand-
ing during the year are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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3B. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 16,770 7,566 

Add: Additions during the year 24,315 21,259 

Less: Capitalisation during the year (17,400) (12,055)

Closing Balance 23,685 16,770 

 Ageing Schedule of Capital work in Progress:

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

As at 31 March 2023
 - Projects in progress 13,447 7,650 756 688 22,541 

 - Projects temporarily suspended 296 646 192 10  1,144 

As at 31 March 2022
 - Projects in progress 13,715 2,441 308 306 16,770 

 - Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

  For CWIP, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan the project wise 
details of when the project is expected to be completed it given below:

 Completion schedule of Overdue Projects:

Particulars To be completed in
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress
E-waste- Recycling Dundigal  
Project - Civil Works

1,896 - - -  1,896 

E-waste- Recycling Dundigal  
project - Plant & Machinery (P&M)

151 - - -  151 

Mumbai waste management project- 
Industrial Waste Management (IWM)

811 - - -  811 

Orissa waste management project-IWM 766 - - -  766 

Rajasthan waste management  
project - IWM

719 - - -  719 

Punjab waste management  
project - IWM

691 - - -  691 

Bargur project - IWM 540 - - -  540 
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Particulars To be completed in
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

Hyderabad waste management  
project - IWM

435 - - -  435 

Maridi Bio-Bangalore project - Bio 
Medical Waste (BMW)- P&M

245 - - -  245 

Maridi Bio-Bangalore project -  
BMW- Civil Works

134 - - -  134 

ARM Recycling plant project - Recycling 658 - - -  658 

West Bengal waste management  
project - IWM

241 - - -  241 

Orissa Waste Management Project-BMW 212 - - -  212 

Karnataka waste management  
project - IWM

 65 132 - -  197 

Uttar Pradesh waste management 
project - IWM

176 - - -  176 

Medicare-Kalyani Project - BMW - 134 - -  134 

Re Sustainability Solutions 
-Gummidipoondi Project- IWM

107 - - -  107 

Mumbai waste management  
project- Administrative works

101 - - -  101 

Pithampur waste management  
project-IWM

 93 - - - 93 

Re Sustainability Solutions-Kondapalli 
Project- Common effluent treatment 
plant (CETP)

 88 - - - 88 

Saltora waste management  
project - IWM

 87 - - - 87 

Re Sustainability Solutions - Madurai 
project -IWM

 74 - - - 74 

Mumbai Waste Management  
Project - BMW

 68 - - - 68 

Re Sustainability Solutions-
Gummidipoondi project-BMW

 60 - - - 60 

Re Sustainability Solutions- Bargur 
Project - BMW

 49 - - - 49 

ARM Recycling plant project -  
Recycling- Bangalore

 37 - - - 37 

Medicare project Administrative works  35 - - - 35 
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Particulars To be completed in
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

Medicare Howrah Project- BMW  23 - - - 23 

Other projects (individually below  
Rs 20 lakhs each)

 93 - - - 93 

Projects temporarily suspended

Arah waste management project - IWM 1,144 - - -  1,144 

Particulars To be completed in
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

As at 31 March 2022
Projects in progress
Saltora waste management project - Bio 
Medical Waste Plant (BMW)

501 - - -  501 

Mumbai waste management project- 
Industrial Waste Management (IWM)

472 - - -  472 

Visakha Solvents - Solvent recovery 
facility project

232 - - -  232 

Karnataka waste management  
project - IWM

215 - - -  215 

West Bengal waste management  
project - IWM

171 - - -  171 

Arah waste management project - IWM 168 - - -  168 
TamilNadu waste management  
project - IWM

150 - - -  150 

Orissa waste management project - 
BMW

149 - - -  149 

Mumbai waste management  
project- Administrative works

149 - - -  149 

Rajasthan waste management  
project - IWM

127 - - -  127 

ARM Recycling plant project - Recycling 106 - - -  106 
Maridi Bio-Bangalore project - BMW  79 - - - 79 
Hyderabad waste management  
project - IWM

 76 - - - 76 

Uttar Pradesh waste management 
project - IWM

 74 - - - 74 

Punjab waste management  
project - IWM

 71 - - - 71 



Re Sustainability Limited    |    Integrated Annual Report    2022-23 

42

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars To be completed in
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

Costal Waste Management  
Project - IWM II

 44 - - - 44 

Bargur project - IWM  41 - - - 41 

Orissa waste management  
project - IWM

 37 - - - 37 

Re Sustainability Solutions-Operation & 
Maintenance

 37 - - - 37 

Coastal waste management  
project - IWM

 36 - - - 36 

Medicare - Agartala project - BMW  36 - - - 36 

Arah waste management project - BMW  34 - - - 34 

Other projects (individually below  
Rs 20 lakhs each)

136 - - -  136 

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Particulars Freehold land Total 

Cost

As at 1 April 2021 8 8 

Additions during the year -  - 

Deletions / adjustments -  - 

As at 31 March 2022 8 8 

Additions during the year 12 12 

Deletions / adjustments -  - 

As at 31 March 2023 20 20 

 Fair values of investment property
  Details of investment property and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 

2022, are as follows:

Fair value hierarchy Fair value as at  
31 March 2023 

Fair value as at  
31 March 2022 

Freehold Land Level 3 23 9 

  The fair value of the land is determined with the help of internal technical department. Valuation is based on 
government rates, market research, market trend and comparable values as considered appropriate.
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5A. GOODWILL
  Goodwill arising upon business combination is not amortised but tested for impairment atleast annually or more 

frequently if there is any indication that the cash generating unit to which goodwill is allocated is impaired.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening 3,925 3,945 

Disposal of subsidiaries #  (154) (20)

3,771 3,925 

 #  The Company has sold its investment in Bio Medical Waste Treatment Plant Private Limited & B&G Solar Private Limited in 
current year and previous year respectively.

5B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (IA)

Intangible assets under 
service concession 

arrangement

Customer 
contracts

Computer 
software

Total

Gross block

As at 1 April 2021 194,931 388 348 195,667 

Additions during the year  25,493 - 111  25,604 

Deletions / adjustments (2,498) - -  (2,498)

As at 31 March 2022 217,926 388 459 218,773 

Additions during the year  18,864 - 199  19,063 

Deletions / adjustments (5,306) - (16)  (5,322)

As at 31 March 2023 231,484 388 642 232,514 

Amortization

As at 1 April 2021  39,090 383  48  39,521 

For the year  15,832 - 120  15,952 

Deletions / adjustments (309) - - (309)

As at 31 March 2022 54,613 383 168 55,164 

For the year  18,037 - 183  18,220 

Deletions / adjustments - - - - 

As at 31 March 2023 72,650 383 351 73,384 

Net block

As at 31 March 2022 163,312 5 290 163,609 

As at 31 March 2023 158,834 5 291 159,130 

 Refer note 13 for the charge created against the Intangible assets.
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5C. INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT (IAUD)

Friday, 31 March 2023 Thursday, 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 28,170 15,399 

Add: Additions during the year 43,390 33,087 

Less: Capitalisation during the year (17,711) (19,968)

Less: Deletion during the year (218) (348)

Closing Balance 53,631 28,170 

 Ageing Schedule of Intangible assets under development:

Particulars Amount in IAUD for a period of
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

As at 31 March 2023
- Projects in progress 30,247 22,946 314 17 53,524 

- Projects temporarily suspended - - - 107 107 

As at 31 March 2022
- Projects in progress 26,473  1,155 158 277 28,063 

- Projects temporarily suspended - - - 107 107 

  For IAUD, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan the project wise 
details of when the project is expected to be completed is given below:

 Completion schedule of Overdue Projects:

Particulars To be completed in

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2023

Projects in progress

Dundigal Waste 2 Energy Project- waste 
to energy (W2E)

19,862 - -  - 19,862 

Re Sustainability Solutions Delhi Project- 
Industrial waste management (IWM)

1,208 - -  -  1,208 

Rewa MSW Energy Solutions projects- 
Municipal solid waste (MSW)

775 - -  - 775 

Hyderabad Kolkata - Construction & 
Demolition (C&D)

223 - -  - 223 

Delhi MSW Project - Collection and 
Transport (C&T)

174 - -  - 174 
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Particulars To be completed in

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years

Total

Hyderabad Project -Processing and 
Disposal (P&D)

121 - -  - 121 

Delhi MSW Project - P&D 91 - -  - 91 

Saagar MSW Project - P&D 42 - -  - 42 

Saagar MSW Project - C&T 38 - -  - 38 

Katni MSW Project - P&D 29 - -  - 29 

Katni MSW Project - C&T 28 - -  - 28 

Rewa Msw Project - C&T 27 - -  - 27 

Others (individuals below Rs. 20 each) 375 - -  - 375 

Projects temporarily suspended

Hyderabad Uppal - transfer stations - 107 -  - 107 

Particulars To be completed in

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  
3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2022

Projects in progress

Delhi MSW Project - C&T 659 - -  - 659 

Delhi waste management project - IWM 270 - -  - 270 

Rewa project - C&T 228 - -  - 228 

Rewa project - P&D 189 - -  - 189 

Rewa project -WTE 119 - -  - 119 

Hyderabad project - WTE 47 - -  - 47 

Hyderabad project - C&T 35 - -  - 35 

Delhi MSW project - P&D 24 - -  - 24 

Others (individuals below Rs. 20 each) 19 - -  - 19 

Projects temporarily suspended -

Hyderabad Uppal - transfer stations 107 - -  - 107 
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5D.  LEASES
  Set out below, are the carrying amounts of the Group’s Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities and the movements 

during the period:

Particulars Right-of-use assets Lease Liabilities
As at 1 April 2021 5,800 4,347 
Additions  4,340  3,852 
Deletions (1,249) (1,165)
Amortisation expense (2,228) -
Interest expense - 355 
Payments - (3,744)
Foreign currency translation  16  46 
As at 31 March 2022 6,679 3,691 
Additions  3,785  3,454 
Deletions (47) (47)
Amortisation expense (2,401) -
Interest expense - 331 
Payments - (2,980)
As at 31 March 2023 8,016 4,450 
Non-current  8,016  3,759 
Current - 691 

 The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss:

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2023

For the year ended  
31 March 2022

Amortisation expense of right-of-use assets 2,401 2,228 

Interest expenses (using effective interest method) 331 355 

Rent expense - Short-term leases 949 498 

Total amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 3,681 3,081 

6.  FINANCIAL ASSET
6A. Investments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - unquoted
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (fully paid-up) 
10,15,000 (31 March 2022: 10,15,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each of 
Pithampur Auto Cluster Limited 

102 102 

10,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares of AED.1/- each of Oman 
Maritime Waste Treatment SAOC

19 19 

121 121 



47

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

6B. Loans (Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Inter corporate deposits to related parties (refer note 34) 3,902 3,449 
Inter corporate deposit to others 428 528 

4,330 3,977 

 Inter corporate deposits carries interest @3.50% p.a (31 March 2022: 3.50%) and repayable on demand

  All the Inter corporate deposit have issued between group companies in the normal course of business under the 
treasury activities. No money was advanced or invested to entites outisde the group.

6C. Other financial asset (Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Security deposits 2,681 2,456 
Receivable from service concession arrangement 10,827 10,263 
Deposit with remaining maturity more than 12 months * 18,231 12,951 
On current accounts (escrow accounts) 758 2,381 
Earnest money deposits 152 416 
Less: Provision for earnest money deposits (70) (70)

 32,579 28,397 
*  Represents term deposits that will be released during maintenance/post closure period of land fills and Debt 

Service Reserve Account (DSRA) balances required to be maintained as per agreement with lenders.
Current
Security deposits 503 278 
Earnest money deposit 1,088 630 
Other receivables 1 635 
Government grant receivable 1,458 874 
Interest accrued 655 330 

3,705 2,747 

6D. Trade receivables

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Trade receivables 642 10,295 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  (642) (10,295)

- -
Current
Trade Receivables from related parties 4,456 5,154 

Trade receivables from others  140,677 107,730 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss  (10,175) (12,792)

 134,958 100,092 
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 Notes to 6D:
 1.  There are no trade receivables due from private companies/ partnership firm in which group’s director is a director/

partner.
 2.  Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally receivable on terms mutually agreed with the customers.
 3. For trade receivables from related party refer note 34.

 Ageing Schedule of Trade receivables:

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Not Due Unbilled <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years Total

As at 31 March 2023

Undisputed Trade receivables 
– Considered good

- From related parties 203 - 4,227 7 -  19 4,456 

- From others  19,557 5,363 92,515 15,844  4,023 2,662 139,964 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
–Credit impaired

- - -  - - 1,023 1,023 

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered good

- - -  - -  - - 

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit impaired

- - -  - -  332 332 

Less: Trade Receivables - Credit 
Impaired

(10,817)

Balance at the year end 134,958 

As at 31 March 2022

Undisputed Trade receivables 
– Considered good

- From related parties 164 - 3,626  989 375  - 5,154 

- From others  25,031 5,405 57,843 10,639  2,401 1,652 102,971 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
–Credit impaired

- - -  - 164 1,548 1,712 

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered good

- - -  - -  - - 

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit impaired

- - 357 1,274  1,866 9,845 13,342 

Less: Trade Receivables - Credit 
Impaired

(23,087)

Balance at the year end 100,092 
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 * Relationship with struck off companies #

Name of the struck 
off company

Nature of 
transactions

Transactions during 
the year ended 31 

March 2022

Outstanding 
as at 31 

March 2022

Transactions during 
the year ended 31 

March 2023

Outstanding 
as at 31 

March 2023

I.G.S. Chemicals 
Private Limited

Trade 
receivables 

- - 1 1 

Sharman Woollen 
Mills Limited 

Trade 
receivables 

-  1 0 2 

Zoheb Leather 
Finisher Private 
Limited

Trade 
receivables 

- - 0 0 

Indus Bio-Naturals 
Private Ltd. 

Trade 
receivables 

-  1 - 1 

Pyrotek India Private 
Limited

Trade 
receivables 

0 0 0 -

Sew-Eurorive India 
Private Limited

Trade 
receivables 

0 0 -  0 

 # Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs.

6E. Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cash on hand 19 24 

Balances with banks:

 On current account 13,094 17,689 

 Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months  1,377 31,004 

14,490 48,717 

6F. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non-current

Current

Other Bank Balances

Deposit with remaining maturity less than 12 months* 2,194 4,033 

2,194 4,033 

 * Represents balances with banks held as margin money or security deposit against guarantees and other commitments.
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 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Current Borrowings Non-current 
Borrowings

1 April 2022 13,460 70,682 
Cash flows (1,522) (687)

Reclassification 3,099  (3,099)

31 March 2023 15,037 66,896 

1 April 2021 8,498 39,748 
Cash flows 1,945  33,951 

Reclassification 3,017  (3,017)

31 March 2022 13,460 70,682 

 Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Inter Corporate Deposits (Non current) (Note No. 6B) 4,330  3,977 

Trade receivables (Current) (Note No. 6D) 134,958 100,092 

Trade receivables (Non current) (Note No. 6D) -  -

Cash and cash equivalent (Note No. 6E) 14,490  48,717 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Current)  
(Note No. 6F)

2,194  4,033 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Non current) 
(Note No. 6F)

-  -

Other Financial asset (Current) (Note No. 6C) 3,705  2,747 

Other Financial asset (Non current) (Note No. 6C)  32,579  28,397 

Total financial assets carried at amortised cost  192,256  187,963 

7.  INVENTORIES (VALUED AT LOWER OF COST AND NET REALISABLE VALUE)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw material, tools and spares 7,174  4,435 

Finished goods 702 461 

7,876 4,896 

8. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax asset (net) (refer note 28) 19,144 15,244 

 19,144 15,244 
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9. NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance income tax (net of provision for income tax) 6,658  6,124 

Tax paid under protest  - -

6,658 6,124 

10. OTHER ASSETS (UNSECURED AND CONSIDERED GOOD UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
Capital advances**  32,124 9,051 

Contract Assets

Retention Money receivable #

 Considered good  16,884 14,457 

 Considered doubtful 809 72 

 Impairment allowance- Doubtful receivable  (809) (72)

Balances with government authority (amount paid under protest) 796 872 

Prepayments 149 238 

Advances to supplier and service provider - 38 

49,953 24,656 
Current
Advances to supplier and service providers* 8,115 4,341 

Less: Provision for advances to supplier and service provider  (333)  (312)

7,782 4,029 

Contract assets

 Retention Money receivable (refer note 34)

 Considered good 3,007 2,412 

 Considered doubtful 462 374 

 Impairment allowance ECL  (462)  (374)

3,007 2,412 

Unbilled Revenue

 Considered good – unsecured  14,066 4,740 

 Unsecured - considered doubtful 71 71 

 Impairment allowance Doubtful asset (71) (71)

 14,066 4,740 

Balances with government authority 6,136 6,534 

Prepayments 1,939 1,601 

Advance to employees

 Considered good 189 144 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

 Considered doubtful 48 35 

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (48) (35)

189 144 

Other advances 762 725 

33,881 20,185 

 ** Includes capital advances given to related parties amounting to Rs. 27,757, refer note 34

 #  Includes Rs 16,885 (31 March 2022: Rs 13,852) deducted by the customer towards post closure maintenance activities. As per 
the concession agreement with customers the deducted amount has to be deposited in an escrow account, however the same 
has not been deposited yet.

 *Relationship with struck off companies

Name of the struck off company Nature of 
transactions

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2022

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 
2022

Transactions 
during the 

year ended  
31 March 2023

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 
2023

Cyril Logistics & Engineering # Advances to 
suppliers

- 0 -  0 

Future Vision Enterprises # Advances to 
suppliers

- 0 -  0 

 # Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs.

11. SHARE CAPITAL
Class A - Equity 

Shares
Face value of  

Rs.10 each

Class B - Equity 
Shares

Face value of 
Rs.10 each

 0.001% Compulsory 
Convertible 

Preference Shares 
Face value of Rs.10 

each 

 0.001% Optionally 
convertible 

redeemable 
preference shares 

Face value of  
Rs.15 each 

 Redeemable 
preference shares 

Face value of 
Rs.100 each 

Number of 
shares in 

Lakhs

INR 
Lakhs

Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs*

INR 
lakhs

Number 
of shares 

in lakhs

INR lakhs Number 
of shares 

in lakhs

INR lakhs Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs

INR 
lakhs

(i)  Authorised share capital

 As at 1 April 2021 2,025 20,252 0 0 1 100  13  202  1  71 

  Increase during the year - - - - -  - -  - - -

 As at 31 March 2022 2,025 20,252 0 0 1 100  13  202  1  71 

  Increase/(Change) during 
the year

- - - - -  -  -  - - -

 As at 31 March 2023 2,025 20,252 0 0 1 100  13  202  1  71 

ii)  Issued equity share 
capital

 Total 

 As at 1 April 2021  42 418 0 0  42 418 
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Class A - Equity 
Shares

Face value of  
Rs.10 each

Class B - Equity 
Shares

Face value of 
Rs.10 each

 0.001% Compulsory 
Convertible 

Preference Shares 
Face value of Rs.10 

each 

 0.001% Optionally 
convertible 

redeemable 
preference shares 

Face value of  
Rs.15 each 

 Redeemable 
preference shares 

Face value of 
Rs.100 each 

Number of 
shares in 

Lakhs

INR 
Lakhs

Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs*

INR 
lakhs

Number 
of shares 

in lakhs

INR lakhs Number 
of shares 

in lakhs

INR lakhs Number 
of 

shares in 
lakhs

INR 
lakhs

 Issued during the year - - - - -  -

  Redeemed during  
the year

- - - - -  -

 As at 31 March 2022  42 418 0 0  42 418 

 Issued during the year  1  5 - - 1  5 

Redeemed during the year - - - - -  -

As at 31 March 2023  42 423 0 0  42 423 

 * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

 (iii) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
   The Company has two classes of equity shares, i.e. Class A and Class B, having par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each 

equity shareholder is entitled to one vote per equity share held. Both Classes of equity shares have same 
voting rights. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the 
board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

   In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in 
proportion to the number of equity shared held by the shareholders.

 (iv) Terms/ rights attached to preference shares
 a. Compulsory Convertible Preference shares and Redeemable Preference Shares :
   Compulsory convertible preference shares are convertible in to equity shares are entitled to 0.001% dividend. 

The terms of these preference shares have been amended and converted in to redeemable preference shares. 
These shares were redeemed on 08 February 2019 but were extinguished from the records subsequent to the 
balance sheet.

 b. Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (OCRPS)
-  The face value of each OCRPS is Rs 15 each and carries dividend of 0.00001% which is cumulative and 

participative based on the formula specified in the Share Subscription and Share Purchase Agreement 
(SSPA).

  -  OCRPS shall be redeemed for cash on the twentieth anniversary of their issuance, unless converted or 
redeemed earlier.

  -  The existing shareholders have agreed to indemnify the investor / the Company along with its subsidiaries 
on the happening of certain events specified the SSPA. It also specifies the nature of indemnity along 
with indemnified amount and period of such indemnity after closing date.
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  -  These preference shares are convertible into equity shares or redeemed based on agreed indemnity 
events and mechanism specified in SSPA.

  -  During current year, the Company has converted 11,10,909 number of OCRPS into 52,017 number of 
equity shares.

  -  The Company shall automatically convert all the remaining OCRPS (that have not been converted/
redeemed) into equity shares representing 1 equity share i.e. after nineteen years from the date of 
allotment.

 (v)  The details of shares held by shareholder holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the 
Company:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares  

in lakhs % of holding Number of shares  
in lakhs % of holding

Class A equity shares:
A Ishaan 14 34% 14 34%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

25 60% 25 59%

Class B equity shares:
Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

0 * 100% 0 * 100%

Optionally Convertible 
Redeemable Preference 
Shares:
Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

 2 100% 13 100%

  * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

 (vi) Shares held by promoter
  As at 31 March 2023

Promoter Name
Class of 
Equity Shares

Face value
No. of shares at 

the beginning 
of the year

Change 
during the 

year

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of 
Total 

Shares

% change 
during the 

year

A Ishaan
Class A equity 
shares

Rs 10 each 1,424,851  - 1,424,851 34% 0%

Metropolis 
Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

Class A equity 
shares

Rs 10 each 2,485,488 52,217 2,537,705 60% 2%

Metropolis 
Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

Class B equity 
shares

Rs 10 each  100  -  100 100% 0%

Metropolis 
Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

OCRPS 1,339,472 (1,110,909)  228,563 100% -83%
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 As at 31 March 2022

Promoter Name
Class of 
Equity Shares

Face value

No. of 
shares at the 

beginning 
of the year

Change 
during the 

year

No. of 
shares at the 

end of the 
year

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during the 

year

A Ayodhya Rami Reddy*
Class A equity 
shares

Rs 10 each 1,608,399 (1,424,850)  183,549 4% -89%

A Ishaan
Class A equity 
shares

Rs 10 each 1  1,424,850 1,424,851 34% 100%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

Class A equity 
shares

Rs 10 each 2,485,488  - 2,485,488 60% 0%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

Class B equity 
shares

Rs 10 each  100  -  100 100% 0%

Metropolis Investments 
Holdings Pte Limited

OCRPS 1,339,472  - 1,339,472 100% 0%

 *  Mr. A Ayodhya Rami Reddy ceases to be a promoter with effect from 31 March 2022 on transfer of significant stake to  
Mr. A Ishaan.

12. OTHER EQUITY

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital reserve
Opening balance 3,396 3,396 
Add: Received / (transfer) during the year -  -

 3,396 3,396 
Securities premium 
Opening Balance -  -
Add: Premium on conversion of preference shares 9,281  -

 9,281  -
General reserve
Opening balance 87 87 
Add: Received / (transfer) during the year -  -

87 87 
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance  1  1 
Add: Received / (transfer) during the year* -  0 

 1  1 
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Opening Balance  71,162 71,162 
Add: On issue of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference 
Shares

-  -

Additions/Deletions during the year -  -
71,162  71,162 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Retained earnings
Opening Balance 194,398  148,384 

Add: Profit for the year  47,188 46,072 

Less: Share issue expenses - (58)

 241,586 194,398 
Other comprehensive income
a) Re-measurement of net defined benefit plan 
 Opening Balance  (346)  (368)

 Add: Increase during the year  138 22 

(208) (346)
b) Foreign currency translation reserve
 Opening balance 2,924 1,986 

 Add: Increase during the year 2,353 938 

 5,277 2,924 
 246,655 196,976 

Share-based Payment Reserve
Opening  2,504 2,148 
Additions during the year  206 356 

Closing  2,710 2,504 
 333,292 274,126 

 * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs.

 Nature and purpose of reserves
 Capital Reserve 

The Group recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the group’s own equity instruments 
to capital reserve.

 General reserve
General reserves are the reserves accumulated to meet contingencies. 

 Foreign currency translation reserve
Gains/ losses on account of foreign currency translation are accumulated in this reserve.

 Equity component of compound financial instruments
The Company has issued Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) during the year ended 
31 March 2019. Considering the accounting principles to be followed in line with Indian Accounting Standards, 
the Company has computed the liability portion of OCRPS with the instrument. The difference between the issue 
amount of the OCRPS and the liability so computed has been treated as the “Equity component of compound 
financial instruments” and grouped under other equity.
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 Share-based payment reserve
The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to 
employees under Employee stock option plan.

 Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/Losses (net of appropriations) of the company earned till date, including items 
of other comprehensive income.

 Securities premium 
Securities premium represents the premium received on conversion of optionally convertible redeemable 
preference share into equity shares over and above the face value of equity shares. The reserve is available for 
utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Capital Redemption Reserve
This is a statutory requirement to be create in case the company redeemed the preference share capital or Buy-
back of equity share capital. The same is created by the company on redemption of OCRPS.

 Other comprehensive income (OCI)
OCI represents the incomes and expenses that are not recognized as a part of the Statement of profit and loss account.

13. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
13A. Borrowings

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Non-current borrowings
Secured (at amortized cost)
Term loans 
 - from banks 21,033  7,327 18,414  6,033 
 - from others 45,713  5,878 51,847  3,643 
Equipment and vehicle loans
 - From banks - 29  29 264 
 - From others - -  13 196 
Unsecured
Loans from others
 - From Group companies -  - 
Loans from others 150 100 379 100 

66,896 13,334 70,682 10,236 

 Current borrowings
Secured (at amortized cost) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured loans from banks:
 - Cash credit  1,690  3,211 
Current maturities of long term borrowings 13,334 10,236 
Unsecured
Loan from others  13 13 

15,037 13,460 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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 c
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 c

or
po

ra
te

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
, b

an
k 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
pa

rty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

oc
um

en
ts

;

 
(d

) 
 al

l I
ns

ur
an

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
s a

nd
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ee
ds

; 

 
(e

) 
 as

sig
nm

en
t o

f g
ua

ra
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ra
ct

or
/m

od
ul

e 
su

pp
lie

r (
if 

an
y)

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
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 o
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 p
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 c
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at
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

13B. Trade payables

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises; 4,469 2,098 

-  Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises.

37,757 28,656 

- Dues to related parties (refer note 34) 1,045 1,135 

43,271 31,889 

 Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
 - Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within credit terms.
 - For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer note 40.

 Ageing Schedule of Trade Payables:

Particulars
Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Accrued 
expenses Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years Total

As at 31 March 2023

Micro Small Medium Enterprises

 - Undisputed dues -  1,664 2,624 91  61 29  4,469 

 - Disputed dues - - -  -  - - -

Other than Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises

 - Undisputed dues

  Others 17,336  4,817  13,653 696 372 883  37,757 

  Related parties - 583 336 61  62  3  1,045 

 - Disputed dues - - -  -  - - -

As at 31 March 2022

Micro Small Medium Enterprises

 - Undisputed dues - 848 1,025 148  58 19  2,098 

 - Disputed dues - - -  -  - - -

Other than Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises

 - Undisputed dues

  Others 10,314  9,758 5,958  1,634 271 721  28,656 

  Related parties 773 305 14  43  1,135 

 - Disputed dues - - -  -  - - -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Relationship with struck off companies

Name of the struck 
off company

Nature of 
transactions

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2022

Outstanding 
as at 31 March 

2022

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2023

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2023

Solvics Facilities 
Management

Payable to 
vendors

- 5 - 5 

Ronnifacilities 
Management 
Private Limited

Payable to 
vendors

- 5 - 5 

Pawan Envion And 
Aqua Engineering

Payable to 
vendors

- 2 - 2 

Auskini InfraQP 
Private Limited 

Payable to 
vendors

- 1 - 1 

Cyril Logistics & 
Engineering

Payable to 
vendors

- 0 - 0 

Boc India Limited # Payable to 
vendors

- 0 - 0 

Divyanka Engineers # Payable to vendors - 0 0 0 

 # Nil due to nearest rounding off in lakhs

13C. Other financial liabilities
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non Current 
At amortised cost
Retention money payable 3  3 
At fair value through profit and loss
Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (OCRPS) (refer note 11) 2,194 11,480 

2,197 11,483 
Current 
At amortised cost
Capital creditors* 8,886 10,537 
Security deposit payable** (refer note 34) 11,203 10,223 
Interest accrued and due 2  1 
Interest accrued but not due  103 112 
Retention money payable (refer note 34) 4,015 2,437 
Interest on micro and small enterprises payable  304 130 
Other financial liabilities 82 98 

24,595 23,538 

 * Includes payable to related parties amounting to Rs. 1,006 (31 March 22: Rs. 768).
 **  Security deposits received from customers are repayable on demand, Since the Company does not have an unconditional 

right to defer the payment, these deposits have been classified as current balances.
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for the year ended 31 March 2023
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 Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings (Non current) (Note No. 13A) 66,896 70,682 

Borrowings (Current) (Note No. 13A) 15,037 13,460 

Trade payables (Note No. 13B) 43,271 31,889 

Other financial liabilities (Non current) (Note No. 13C) 3  3 

Other financial liabilities (Current) (Note No. 13C) 24,595 23,538 

Total of financial liabilities carried at amortized cost 149,802 139,572 

14. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (refer note 28) 14,085 3,252 

14,085 3,252 

15. LIABILITIES FOR CURRENT TAX (NET)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for taxes (net of advance tax) 5,723 2,079 

5,723 2,079 

16. PROVISIONS
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non current
Provision for employee benefits 
- Gratuity (Refer note 31 for Ind AS 19 disclosure) 2,267 1,966 
- Compensated absences 1,078  887 
Other provisions
- Replacement of assets under service concession 47,791 43,388 
- Capping obligation 5,697 2,929 
- Post closure 5,159 4,195 

61,992 53,365 
Current
Provision for employee benefits 
- Gratuity (Refer note 31 for Ind AS19 disclosure) 455  446 
- Compensated absences  1,167 1,031 
Other provisions
- Replacement of assets under service concession  8,593 6,897 
- Capping obligation  6,804 6,689 
- Incineration 296  201 

17,315 15,264 
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for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Movement in provisions for the year ended 31 March 2023:

Replacement Capping Post closure Incineration
At the beginning of the year 50,285 9,618 4,195 201 

Add: Provision made during the year  3,585 2,175 645  2,621 

Add: Finance cost on liability component  5,761 875 432  -

Less: Provision reversed/utilized during the year  (3,247)  (167)  (113)  (2,526)

At the end of the year  56,384 12,501 5,159  296 
Current provision 8,593 6,804  - 296 

Non Current provision 47,791 5,697 5,159  -

 Movement in provisions for the year ended 31 March 2022:

Replacement Capping Post closure Incineration
At the beginning of the year 41,894  10,002 3,290 314 

Add: Provision made during the year  4,918 2,009 500  2,056 

Add: Finance cost on liability component  5,066 485 405 - 

Less: Provision reversed/utilized during the year  (1,593)  (2,878) -  (2,169)

At the end of the year  50,285  9,618 4,195  201 
Current provision  6,897 6,689  - 201 

Non Current provision 43,388 2,929 4,195  -

17. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non current
Opening balance 1,223 2,408 

Movement during the year (27) (1,053)

Recognised in the statement of profit and loss (111) (132)

Closing balance 1,085 1,223 

18. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Contract liability

 - Advances from customers* 7,405 7,171 

 - Unearned revenue 1,814  778 

Statutory dues payables 4,736 5,100 

Other liabilities 1,916 1,959 

15,871 15,008 

 * Includes payable to related parties amounting to Rs. 614 (31 March 22 Rs. 616).
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 Relationship with struck off companies #

Name of the struck off 
company

Nature of 
transactions

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2022

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2022

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2023

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2023

Ensemble Furniture 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers - 1 - 1 

Z-Tronics Infratel Private 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  1 - 1 

Bannari Amman Mills 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 -  0 

Dole Industries Private 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers  0  0 - 0 

Shama Bright Bars 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Dana India Private 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Rajlalita Chemicals 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers - - 0 0 

J.J.Fabrics Private 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers - - 0 0 

Intellevet Bioservices 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

GMP Pharmachem 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Rbr Knit Fashions Private 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Dankuni Life Care 
Hospital Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Mira Memorial Clinic 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers  -  0 -  0 

Sun Diagnostic Centre Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Fullerence Chemicals 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Packol Plastics (Nashik) 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Steel Chain Conveyors 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Anup Chemicals Private 
Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  7 7 - 
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Name of the struck off 
company

Nature of 
transactions

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2022

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2022

Transactions 
during the year 

ended  
31 March 2023

Outstanding 
as at  

31 March 2023

Bangalore Test House Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Angelina Medisearch 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Eren Medical Centre 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Aigle Biosolutions 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 - 0 

Theramyt Biologics 
Private Limited 

Advances from 
customers -  0 -0 - 

 # Nil due to nearest rounding off in lakhs

19. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rendering of services
- Revenue from waste disposal activities 216,625 180,688 
- Revenue from commercial and conservancy services  49,887  45,249 
- Revenue from consultancy and other services 3,260 4,200 
- Revenue from service concession activity  43,584  37,929 
- Revenue from turnkey contracts  20,701 6,493 
Sale of goods
- Revenue from sale of power generation  20,978  21,659 
- Revenue from sale of goods 2,456 1,364 
Other operating revenues
- Other operating revenues 5,789 2,109 

 363,280  299,691 
19 (a) Contract balances
Trade receivables 134,958 100,092 
Contract assets  17,073 7,152 
Contract liabilities 9,219 7,949 

 19(b)  Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 368,165 304,210 

Adjustments

Performance penalties  (4,643)  (4,338)

Discounts (242) (181)

Revenue from contracts with customers 363,280 299,691 
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for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

20. OTHER INCOME

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on

- Inter corporate deposits to related party 224 18 

- Bank and other deposits 975 844 

- Interest income (using the effective interest method) 629 852 

- Others 186 71 

Apportionment of government grants 111 132 

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 137 95 

Liabilities no longer required written back  - 118 

Foreign exchange gain (net)  12 89 

Gain on sale of Investments  78  - 

Other non-operating income 304 416 

Insurance claims  74 147 

2,730 2,782 

21. COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Inventory at the beginning of the year 4,435 3,540 

Add: Purchases 20,733 12,216 

Less: inventory at the end of the year (7,174) (4,435)

Cost of raw material and components consumed 17,994 11,321 

22. CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Construction cost on service concession activity 42,254 36,839 

42,254 36,839 

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries, allowances and wages 35,734 31,944 

Contribution to provident fund and other funds  2,329  2,228 

Gratuity expense 726 703 

Staff welfare expenses  1,267  1,178 

Share-based Payment expense (refer note 32) 206 357 

40,262 36,410 
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

24. FINANCE COSTS

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on debt and borrowings  7,559  4,310 

Interest expenses (using the effective interest method)  7,121  6,056 

Interest others 953 669 

Other borrowing cost 380 379 

16,013 11,414 

25. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property plant and equipment (note 3A) (including 
depreciation of Rs 84.62 on Assets held for sale in previous year)

9,585 9,808 

Amortization of intangible assets (note 5B) 18,220 15,952 

Amortization of Right-of-use assets (note 5D) 2,401 2,228 

30,206 27,988 

26. OTHER EXPENSES

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Consumption of stores and spares 5,992 4,658 

Sub contract expenses 12,834 6,566 

Labour contract charges 41,345 36,154 

Licence fees 2,866 2,376 

Power and fuel 19,552 16,167 

Vehicle maintenance 239 186 

Transport charges 20,333 14,173 

Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery 5,265 4,193 

- Vehicle 2,175 1,367 

- Others 4,372 3,558 

Revenue sharing expenses 475 458 

Hire charges 8,237 4,936 

Capping for land fill (refer note 16) 2,175 2,009 

Incineration expenses (refer note 16) 2,621 2,056 

Post closure maintenance expenses (refer note 16) 645 500 

Security charges 2,299 2,064 

Legal and professional charges 3,803 5,611 

Payment to auditors (refer details below) 226 223 

Travelling and conveyance 2,244 1,202 
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rent 949 498 

Rates and taxes 1,213 839 

Insurance 2,262 1,873 

Advertisement and business promotion 414 457 

Communication expenses 573 526 

Printing and stationary 221 162 

Office maintenance 695 406 

Foreign exchange gain/loss net  61 -

Loss on sale of investment -  81 

Bad debts / advances written off 208 481 

Provision for doubtful trade receivables 2,501 4,120 

Provision for assets on account of termination of contracts  
(refer note 51)

848 253 

CSR Expenditure 945 979 

Miscellaneous expenses 2,831 2,130 

 151,419  121,262 

 Payment to auditors (excluding indirect taxes as applicable)

As auditor: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory audit fee 225  222 

Reimbursement of expenses 1 1 

226 223 

Details of CSR expenditure 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 936  655 

b)  Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1,200 1,130 

c)  Amount spent during the year ending on  
31 March 2023

In Cash Yet to be paid  
in Cash Total 

 i)  Construction/ acquisition of any asset - - -

 ii)  On purposes other than (i) above 945 -  945 

d)  Amount spent during the year ending on  
31 March 2022

 i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - - -

 ii) On purposes other than (i) above 979 -  979 
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e) Details related to spent / unspent obligations: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
 i) Contribution to Public Trust - -

 ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust 945  979 

 iii) Unspent amount in relation to:

  - On going project  NA  NA 

  - Other than ongoing project  NA  NA 

27. COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 180 34 

Deferred tax on remeasured gain (42) (12)

138  22 

28. INCOME TAX
  The major components of income tax expenses for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as 

follows:

 Profit or loss section

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax expense 14,931  12,168 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (3)  (3,317)

Deferred tax  5,202 1,383 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 20,130  10,234 
OCI Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Net (gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (42)  (12)

Income tax charged to OCI (42)  (12)

  Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for  
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax 67,104  56,134 

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (31 March 2022: 33.38%) 19,541  18,738 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (3)  (3,317)

Mat credit entitlement of previous years -  (2,916)

Items which are not tax deductible for computing taxable income 97  19 



75

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Effect of difference in tax rates (1,996)  (3,837)

Items on which Deferred tax not created 900 4,281 

Items which are not tax taxable for computing taxable income (530)  (2,734)

Deferred Tax relates to earlier year provisions  2,424  -

DT adjustments due to differential tax rates in future (368)  (73)

Others 65  73 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 20,130  10,234 

 Deferred tax

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets (net) 19,144  15,244 

Deferred tax liability (net)  (14,085)  (3,252)

Net Deferred tax asset  5,059  11,992 

 Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets in relation to:

2022-23 Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

MAT Credit 
entitlement /

(utilisation)

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets in  
relation to:

MAT Credit 13,806  (161) - (1,848)  11,797 

Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 
1961, allowed on payment basis

1,087  (199)  (42) -  846 

Unabsorbed depreciation and carried 
forward losses

6,635  92 - - 6,727 

Provision for replacement 5,839  1,353 - - 7,192 

Provision for capping and post closure  (12,182)  (3,512) - -  (15,694)

Property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets

(7,574)  (2,363) - -  (9,937)

Financial assets at FVTPL  (642)  198 - -  (444)

Processing charges amortisation  (51)  (11) - -  (62)

Deferred tax on compulsory convertible 
debentures and cumulative convertible 
redeemable preference shares

 (588)  (107) - -  (695)

Provision for doubtful debts and 
advances

6,409  (1,167) - - 5,242 

Others  (747)  675 - 159  87 

11,992  (5,202)  (42) (1,689) 5,059 
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 Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets in relation to:

2021-22 Opening 
balance

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

MAT Credit 
entitlement /

(utilisation)

Closing 
balance

Deferred tax (liabilities) /assets 
in relation to:

MAT Credit 9,127  4,968 - (289)  13,806 

Disallowances under Income 
Tax Act, 1961, allowed on 
payment basis

 617  482  (12)  - 1,087 

Unabsorbed depreciation and 
carried forward losses

3,633  3,002 -  - 6,635 

Provision for replacement 4,356  1,483 -  - 5,839 

Provision for capping and post 
closure

(4,316)  (7,866) -  -  (12,182)

Processing charges amortisation  (51)  -  (51)

Property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets

(2,422)  (5,152) -  -  (7,574)

Financial assets at FVTPL  (371)  (271) -  -  (642)

Deferred tax on compulsory 
convertible debentures 
and cumulative convertible 
redeemable preference shares

(8)  (580) -  -  (588)

Provision for doubtful debts and 
advances

3,640  2,769 -  - 6,409 

Others  (520)  (227) -  -  (747)

13,685  (1,392)  (12) (289)  11,992 

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by 
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

  Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting 
for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding 
during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the 
dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent (before 
exceptional items)

47,188  46,072 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent (after 
exceptional items)

47,188  46,072 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 42 42 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 43 43 

Earnings per equity share computed on the basis of profit 
attributable to equity holders of the parent

Basic earnings per share 1,129 1,103 

Diluted earnings per share 1,094 1,069 

30. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected 
in future years.

 Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 a. Revenue from contracts with customers
   The company provides waste management services to its customers and has certain performance obligations 

attached to their services such as capping and post closure obligations. The company believes that these 
obligations are not separate performance obligations as they are required to be performed due to laws 
governing waste management and are not capable of being distinct from the most management service.

 b. Recognition of Concession Agreement as an Intangible Asset and Financial Asset
  i) Basis of accounting for the service concession 

  Management has assessed the applicability of Appendix D to Ind AS 115 “Service Concession Arrange-
ments” to the concession agreement and hence has applied it in accounting for the concession.

  As per the agreement with the municipal authorities, the construction and operations of facility shall 
be recovered by the Company in form of tipping fees received from municipal authorities (Intangible 
asset).

  Disclosures for Service Concession Arrangement as prescribed under Appendix E to Ind AS 115. Disclo-
sure have been incorporated into the financial statements.

  ii) Significant assumptions in accounting for the intangible asset
  The Group has recognised intangible asset with a construction margin based on sensitivity analysis of 

companies with business in similar construction activities.
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 c. Leases (Ind AS 116)
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered 
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies 
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or 
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise 
either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there 
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or 
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements 
or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of building with shorter non-can-
cellable period. The Group typically exercises its option to renew for these leases because there will be a 
significant negative effect on production if a replacement asset is not readily available. The renewal periods 
for leases of building with longer non-cancellable periods are not included as part of the lease term as these 
are not reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination options are 
included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.”

  Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabil-
ities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are 
beyond the control of the group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

  (i) Provision for capping and post closure

  Provision for capping requires an evaluation of the cost of protective capping of the active landfills in 
which waste is dumped. The provision recorded in the statement of financial statement at year-end is 
derived on the basis of estimated cost for capping the landfill, proportionate to the capacity of landfill 
utilised till the end of the year. The significant estimates involved include capping cost in respect of 
the total expected waste capacity of the landfill that requires, the time period during which these cost 
would actually be paid, inflation rate and the discount rate applied.

  Further, to ensure that there is no negative impact on the environment due to waste disposal, the Group 
is required to perform certain post closure monitoring activities for a period ranging from 15-30 years 
after the estimated operating period (10-25 years). The provision for post closure monitoring at the end 
of each year is calculated based on the estimated aggregate costs to be incurred during the post clo-
sure period proportionate to the capacity of site utilized till the end of the year. The significant estimates 
involved include post monitoring cost in respect of the total expected waste during the operating peri-
od, the time period during which these cost would actually be paid, inflation rate and the discount rate 
applied.

  The estimates for projected capping and post closure monitoring are developed using inputs from the 
Group’s engineers, accountants and are reviewed by management at regular intervals.
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  (ii) Provision for incinerations:

  Provision for incinerations recorded in the balance sheet as at the year-end is derived on the basis of 
estimated cost of treating the incinerable waste in the facility. Such an estimate is made on the basis of 
average actual per tonne cost incurred by the Group.

  (iii) Provision for replacements

  Provision for replacements recorded in the balance sheet. Such an estimate is made on the basis of cost 
to be incurred by the Group.

  (iv) Estimates related to service concession arrangement

    The Group has recognised applicable construction margin on intangible assets under service concession 
arrangement. Management has estimated such margin based on sensitivity analysis of similar construction 
contracts.

  (v) Estimates of outcomes of indemnity events

  The Group has estimated the outcomes of each of the indemnity events specified in SSPA taking into 
account the probability of their occurrence and underlying factors.

  (vi) Taxes

    Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

  (vii) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 

    The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the 
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

  The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate 
for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in cur-
rencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The underlying bonds 
are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of 
bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate 
bonds.

  (viii) Impairment of non-financial assets

    Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less 
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at 
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the 
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget 
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to 
or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The 
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recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected 
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

  (ix)  Fair value measurement of financial instruments
  When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation tech-
niques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

  (x) Share-based payments
    Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate 

valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires 
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the 
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For the measurement 
of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Group uses Black 
Scholes Option valuation model for time based options and Binomial option model for performance 
based options. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment 
transactions are disclosed in Note 32.

31. GRATUITY AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS
(a) Defined contribution plan
  The following amount recognised as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and 

other funds. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contribution to provident fund and other funds recognised as 
expense in the statement of profit and loss

2,329 2,228 

(b) Defined benefit plan
  The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of continuous 

service gets a gratuity on retirement at 15 days last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service. The 
scheme is funded with an insurance Group in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

  The following table’s summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and 
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

 Statement of profit and loss

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost
Current service cost  564  560 

Past service cost 5 46 

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation  199  148 

Interest income on plan asset (42)  (36)
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current service cost capitalised during the year  -  (14)

Net benefit expense  726  703 
Re measurement during the period/year due to :
Actuarial loss arising from change in financial assumptions  76 (166)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from change in demographic 
assumptions

5 20 

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising on account of experience changes  (268)  102 
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 7 10 
Amount recognised in OCI outside profit and loss statement (180)  (34)

Balance Sheet:
Reconciliation of net liability / asset
Closing Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 3,330 2,932 
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets  607  520 
Closing net defined benefit liability 2,722 2,412 
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are 
as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 2,932 2,356 
Current service cost  564  560 
Interest cost  199  148 
Re measurement during the period due to :
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial Assumptions  76 (166)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic Assumptions 5 20 
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience Changes  (268)  102 
Benefits paid  (178)  (88)
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,330 2,932 
Net liability is bifurcated as follows :
Current  455  446 
Non-current 2,267 1,966 
Net liability (net of plan assets) 2,722 2,412 
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets  520  533 
Interest income on Plan Assets  42 36 
Employer Contributions  232 25 
Benefits paid  (178)  (88)
Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income)  11 19 

Others (employee contributions, taxes and expenses) (20)  (5)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets  607  520 
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 The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Group’s plans are:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate (p.a.) 8% 7%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 8% 8%

Mortality Rate 100% 100%

Disability Rate 0% 0%

With drawl rate 16% 20%

Normal Retirement age 60 years 60 Years

Adjusted Average future service 25 25

A quantitative analysis for significant assumptions is as shown below:
Assumptions - Discount rate
Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase/(decrease) by)

Impact of Increase in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 2,923 2,637 

Impact of Decrease in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 3,230 2,911 

Assumptions - Salary Escalation rate
Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Impact of Increase in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 3,238 2,920 

Impact of Decrease in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 2,920 2,630 

Assumptions - Withdrawl rates
Sensitivity Level (a hypothetical increase/(decrease) by)

Impact of Increase in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 3,055 2,756 

Impact of Decrease in 100 bps on defined benefit obligation 3,086 2,783 

  The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Expected future benefit payments

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 460 448 

Between 2 and 5 years 1,398 1,353 

Between 6 and 10 years 2,026 1,553 

Total expected payments 3,884 3,354 

  The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period (based 
on discounted cash flows) is 7.04 (31 March 2022: 9.75) years.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
 Share Option Plan for Key Employees 
  Under the 2019 Share Option Plan for Key employees, the management has authorised the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee to grant share options to directors and certain identified eligible employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries. This scheme is further divided into Plan I and Plan II.

 The vesting of the share options under Plan I and Plan II is based on below:
 Plan I
 a.  Time based vesting for 40% of the total options with 20% options vesting each year for 5 years - on 1 May 

2020 (for the first tranche 20% of the time options), and subsequently, on April 1st each year, for the remaining 
four tranches of 20% of the time options.

 b.  Performance based vesting for 60% of the total options and 20% of such options vest each year (over 5 years) 
on achievement of agreed Profit Before Tax (“PBT”) performance of the Company, on a consolidated basis, with 
opportunity to catch up in 2 (two) subsequent years, if the performance target is not met in any given year.

   In all cases, no option will vest prior to (i) the first anniversary of the grant date or (ii) 1 May 2020, whichever 
is later.

 Plan II
 The share options under Plan II shall vest on the completion of 1 (one) Year from the Grant Date.

  The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant date using Black Scholes Option valuation 
model for time based options and Binomial option model for performance based options, taking into account the 
terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted. However, the above performance condition is 
only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

 Exercise price per Share of an option under Plan II shall mean the face value of the Shares on the Grant Date.

  The contractual term of the share options is five years and there are no cash settlement alternatives for the 
employees.

 The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 206 357 

Total 206 357 

 There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards in year ending 31 March 2023.

 Movements during the year
  The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, 

share options during the year:
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 Plan I

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Number WAEP Number WAEP

Outstanding at 1 April 2022 66,890 0.14  66,890 0.14 

Granted during the year -  - - -

Forfeited / expired during  
the year

-  - - -

Exercised during the year -  - - -

Outstanding at 31 March 2023 66,890 0.14  66,890 0.14 

Exercisable at 31 March 2023 16,054  -  10,702 -

 Plan II

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Number WAEP* Number WAEP

Outstanding at 1 April 2022  4,893  - 4,893 -

Granted during the year -  - - -

Forfeited / expired during  
the year

-  - - -

Exercised during the year -  - - -

Outstanding at 31 March 2023  4,893  -  4,893 -
Exercisable at 31 March 2023  4,893  - 4,893 -

 * Nil due to rounding off to nearest lakhs

  The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2023 was 2 years 
(31 March 2022: 3 years).

 The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs. 0.12 (31 March 2022: INR 0.12).

  The following tables list the inputs to the models used for plan I for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 
2022, respectively

Particulars

31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Plan I - Time based Plan I - Performance based

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 1 and 2 Tranche 3

Expected volatility (%) 37.5% 36.50% 44.60% 37.50% 44.60%

Risk–free interest rate (%) 7.20% 6.10% 4.80% 7.20% 4.80%

Expected life of share options/ 
SARs (years)

5.00 4.50 3.5 5.00 3.5

Weighted average share price (INR) 0.05 0.06 0.09 0.05 0.03

Model used Black-Scholes option-pricing Model Binomial option pricing model
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  The following tables list the inputs to the models used for plan II for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 
2022, respectively

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Plan II Plan II

Expected volatility (%) 37.5% 37.5%

Risk–free interest rate (%) 7.20% 7.20%

Expected life of share options/SARs (years) 5.00 5.00 

Weighted average share price (INR) 0.12 0.12 

Model used Black-Scholes Option-Pricing Model

33. GROUP INFORMATION
 Information about subsidiaries
  The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiaries, joint controlled entity and associates 

listed in the table below:

Name Country of 
Incorporation

% equity interest

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Subsidiaries of Re Sustainability Limited:

Indian Subsidiaries

Re Sustainability IWM Solutions Limited (formerly 
known as Tamil Nadu Waste Management Limited)

India 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky IWM Private Limited) 

India 100% 100%

Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited India 100% 100%

West Bengal Waste Management Limited India 97% 97%

Visakha Solvents Limited (up to 17 June 2022)  
(refer note: f)

India 0% 51%

Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited India 100% 100%

Pithampur Industrial Waste Management Private 
Limited 

India 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Solutions Private Limited (formerly 
known as Ramky Enviro Services Private Limited)

India 100% 100%

Maridi Bio Industries Private Limited India 100% 100%

Chennai MSW Private Limited India 100% 100%

Dehradun Waste Management Private Limited India 100% 100%

Chhattisgarh Energy Consortium (India) Private 
Limited (refer note 41)

India 51% 51%

Adityapur Waste Management Private Limited India 100% 100%

Dundigal Waste 2 Energy Private Limited India 100% 100%

Chennai Enviro Solutions Private Limited India 100% 100%
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Name Country of 
Incorporation

% equity interest

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Kesda Waste Management Private Limited India 90% 90%

IP MSW Solution Private Limited India 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Urban Solutions Private Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky MSW Private Limited)

India 100% 100%

Mumbai Waste Management Limited (refer note: a) India 100% 100%

Delhi MSW Solutions Limited (refer note: b) India 100% 100%

Medicare Environmental Management Private 
Limited (refer note: c)

India 100% 100%

Re Sustainability & Recycling Private Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky Reclamation and 
Recycling Private Limited) (refer note: g)

India 100% 100%

REWA MSW Holdings Limited (refer note d) India 100% 100%

Hyderabad RDF WTE Private Limited  
(w.e.f 4 July 2022)

India 100% 0%

Saidpura Envirotech Private Limited  
(w.e.f. 26 May 2022)

India 99% 0%

Foreign Subsidiaries

Re Sustainability International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 
(formerly known as Ramky International  
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd)

Singapore 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Middle East FZ-LLC (formerly 
known as Ramky Enviro Engineers Middle East  
FZ-LLC)

UAE 100% 100%

Ramky Enviro Engineers Bangladesh Limited Bangladesh 100% 100%

Subsidiary of Re Sustainability Urban Solutions 
Private Limited

Katni MSW Management Private Limited India 100% 100%

Saagar MSW Solutions Private Limited India 100% 100%

Subsidiary of Mumbai Waste Management Limited

Bio Medical Waste Treatment Plant Private Limited 
(up to 12 August 2022) (refer note f)

India 0% 55%

Subsidiary of Re Sustainability Solutions Private 
Limited (formerly known as Ramky Enviro Services 
Private Limited)

Pashamylaram CETP Private Limited India 100% 100%

Subsidiaries of Delhi MSW Solutions Limited

Hyderabad C&D Waste Private Limited India 100% 100%
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Name Country of 
Incorporation

% equity interest

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Pro Enviro C&D Waste Management Private Limited 
(refer note. e)

India 49% 49%

Dhanbad Integrated MSW Limited India 100% 100%

Subsidiaries of Medicare Environmental 
Management Private Limited

Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky Energy and Environment 
Limited)

India 100% 100%

Alliance Envirocare Company Private Limited India 74% 74%

Subsidiaries of Re Sustainability & Recycling  
Private Limited

Pro Enviro Recycling Private Limited India 51% 51%

Re Sustainability Reldan Refining Private Limited 
(formerly known as Ramky ARM Recycling  
Private Limited)

India 51% 51%

Subsidiaries of REWA MSW Holdings Limited

REWA MSW Management Solutions Limited India 100% 100%

REWA Waste 2 Energy Projects Limited India 100% 100%

Dhanbad Integrated Waste 2 Energy Private Limited India 100% 100%

REWA MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited India 100% 100%

Subsidiaries of Re Sustainability International 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd

Re Sustainability Cleantech Pte. Ltd. (formerly 
known as Ramky Cleantech Services Pte. Ltd)

Singapore 100% 100%

RVAC Private Limited Singapore 98.56% 98.56%

PT Ramky Indonesia Indonesia 100% 100%

Ramky Environmental Technology (Shenzhen)  
Co. Ltd

China 100% 100%

Ramky International (India) Pte. Ltd Singapore 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Solutions Pte. Ltd. (formerly  
known as Ramky Solutions Pte. Ltd.)

Singapore 100% 100%

Ramky North America LLC USA 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Dulsco Services WLL  
(w.e.f. 2 August 2022) (refer note e)

Qatar 49% 0%

Subsidiaries of Re Sustainability Cleantech Services 
Pte. Ltd

Ramky Cleantech Services (China) Pte. Ltd Singapore 100% 100%
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Name Country of 
Incorporation

% equity interest

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Ramky Cleantech Services (Philippines) Pte. Ltd Singapore 100% 100%

Subsidiaries of Ramky Cleantech Services 
(Philippines) Pte. Ltd)

Ramky-Royal Building Maintenance and Services Inc Philippines 51% 51%

Subsidiary of Ramky North America LLC

Nature Environmental & Marine Services LLC USA 100% 100%

Subsidiaries of Re Sustainability Middle East FZ LLC

Ramky Tanzania Limited Tanzania 100% 100%

Ramky Cleantech Environmental Services - Sole 
Proprietorship LLC, U.A.E

UAE 100% 100%

Re Sustainability Environmental services LLC UAE 100% 0%

Joint Venture

Al Ahlia Environmental Services Co LLC Oman 50% 50%

Oman Maritime Waste Treatment Saoc (subsidiary 
of Al Ahlia Environmental Services Co LLC)

Oman 39.9% 39.9%

Associate:

Al Ahlia Waste Treatment LLC UAE 49% 49%

Ramky Al-Turki Environmental Services (Limited 
Liability Company) (formerly known as Ramky RISAL 
Environmental Services)

Saudi Arabia 49% 49%

FARZ LLC India 25% 25%

 Notes:
 a)  Including 26% held by Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Re 

Sustainability Limited.

 b) Including 49% held by Mumbai Waste Management Limited.

 c)  Upton 21 March 2021, 49% held by Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited and 51% by Ramky 
International (India) Pte. Ltd. With effect from 22 March, 2021, Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private 
Limited acquired 51% shared held by Ramky International (India) Pte. Ltd resulting Medicare Environmental 
Management Private Limited wholly-owned subsidiary of Re Sustainability Industrial Solutions Private Limited.

 d)  51%, 26% and 23% held by Chennai MSW Private Limited, Delhi MSW Solutions Limited and Mumbai Waste 
Management Limited respectively.

 e) The group has control over its relevant activities and hence classified as a subsidiary.

 f) During the previous year, the Group has sold the subsidiary.

 Entity with control over the Group
  Metropolis Investments Holdings Pte Ltd owns 60.00% of the equity shares in Re Sustainability Ltd (formerly known 

as Ramky Enviro Engineers Limited) (31 March 2022: 59.50%).
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Nature of relationship and names of related parties

Nature of relationship Name of related parties
i) Jointly Controlled Entity Al Ahlia Environmental Services Co. LLC

Oman Maritime Waste Treatment Saoc
ii) Associates FARZ LLC

Al Ahlia Waste Treatment LLC
Ramky Al-Turki Environmental Services

iii)  Entities controlled by persons having control/
significant influence over Group

Ramky Infrastructure Limited

Ramky Estates and Farms Limited
Vishaka Pharma city Limited (formerly known as Ramky 
Pharma City (India) Limited)
Ramky Towers Limited
Ramky Foundation
Smilax Laboratories Limited
Ramky Integrated Township Limited
Frank Lloyd Tech Management Services Limited 
KKR Capstone India Operations Advisory Private 
Limited

iv)  Group Companies and Companies/Firms/Other 
concerns in which promoters are interested 

Madhya Pradesh waste Management Private Limited 

(v) Promoter/relatives of promoters Alla Ayodhya Rami Reddy (Relative of promoter)
Alla Dakshani (Relative of promoter)
Alla Dasaratha Rami Reddy (Expired) (Relative of 
promoter)
Alla Veeraraghavamma (Relative of promoter)
Alla Sharan (Relative of promoter)
Alla Ishaan (Promoter)

vi) Key Managerial Person
 Managing director M Goutham Reddy 
 Joint Managing Director Anil Khandelwal 
 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Masood Alam Mallick 
 Independent Director Narayan Keelveedhi Seshadri
 Independent Director Shantharaju Bangalore Siddaiah
 Independent Director Hwee Hua Lim
 Independent Director Vaishali Nigam Sinha
 Nominee Director Rohan Rakesh Suri (w.e.f. 15 September 2021)
 Nominee Director Suveer Kumar Sinha (w.e.f. 24 August 2022)
 Nominee Director Simrun Mehta (w.e.f. 24 August 2022)
 Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Pankaj Maharaj (w.e.f 24 August 2022)
 Company secretary Govind Singh 
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(b) Transactions with the related parties during the year

Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

i) Ramky Infrastructure Limited
Revenue from waste 
disposal

1,699 1,398 

Revenue from Sale of 
Goods

729  - 

Purchase of Intangible 
Assets

6,373 6,012 

Capping expenses 3,299 1,312 

Purchase of Property, 
plant & equipment

234 1,861 

ii)  Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Consultancy Income - 16 

Rental Expenses  34 31 

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 4  - 

Maintenance Expenses  8  - 

iii) Vishaka Pharma city Limited Operational expenses 3,229 26 

Water charges  58  - 

Power & fuel  72  - 

Lease rentals  13  - 

Property Tax  30  - 

iv) Ramky Foundation Donation 932 843 

v)  Ramky Al-Turki Environmental Services Investment - 508 

Revenue from 
operations

531  - 

vi) Smilax Laboratories Limited
Revenue from waste 
disposal

 82 44 

vii)  KKR Capstone India Operations 
Advisory Private Limited

Consultancy Fee - 322 

viii)  Madhya Pradesh waste Management 
Private Limited

Rental Expenses  21 79 

Maintenance Expenses  1 45 

ix)  Ramky Integrated Township Limited Capital Advance given  25,000  - 

x) FARZ LLC, UAE Investment - 703 

xi)  Al Ahlia Environmental Services  
Co. LLC, Oman

Interest income on ICD 162 134 

Intercorporate  
deposits given

- 710 

xii)  Al Ahlia Waste Treatment L.L.C, UAE Investment - 73 
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Nature of Transaction Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Interest income on ICD  39  - 

Intercorporate deposit 
given

- 636 

Revenue from O&M 
operations

4,652 3,368 

xiii)  Oman Maritime Waste Treatment, 
Oman

Contract revenue - 3,433 

xiv) Alla Dakshayanai Rental Expenses - 169 

xv) Govind Singh Remuneration*  21 18 

xvi) M Goutham Reddy Remuneration* 356 253 

xvii) Anil K Khandelwal Remuneration* 343 343 

xviii) Masood Alam Mallick Remuneration* 454 439 

xix) Pankaj Maharaj Remuneration* 124  - 

xx) Narayan Keelveedhi Seshadri Sitting Fee**  75 50 

xxi) Shantharaju Bangalore Siddaiah Sitting Fee**  75 50 

xxii) Hwee Hua Lim Sitting Fee**  75 50 

xxiii) Vaishali Nigam Sinha Sitting Fee**  75 50 

 -  The above remuneration does not include the provision made for Gratutity and leave benefits, as they are 
determined on on valuation basis for the Company as a whole. 

 *  Includes ESOP expense for the year amounting to Rs. 160 (31 March 2022: 240) to M.Goutham Reddy: Rs. 62 (31 
March 2022: Rs. 107), Masood Alam Mallick: Rs.44 (31 March 2022: Rs. 76), Anil Khandelwal: Rs.32 (31 March 2022: 
Rs.56), Pankaj Maharaj : Rs. 21 (31 March 2022: Rs. Nil) and Govind Singh: Rs. 1 (31 March 2022: Rs. 1).f

 **  Amounts paid during the year pertaining to the total amount paid and provision created towards sitting fee and 
commission for the respective years

(c) Balance outstanding at the end of the year

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

i) Ramky Infrastructure Limited Trade receivables 1,409 3,050 

Advances to supplier 
and service providers

1,591 2,601 

Trade payables 726 776 

Capital creditors 1,006 768 

Capital Advance given 2,757  - 

Retention money 
payable

744 374 
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Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

ii) Ramky Estates and Farms Limited Trade receivables  1 60 

Advance to supplier - 3 

Trade payables  18 7 

Advances received 
from Customers

 0  - 

Security Deposit given  5 2 

iii) Vishaka Pharma city Limited Trade payables 171 18 

iv)  Evergreen Cleantech Facilities 
Management Private Limited

Trade receivables  1 1 

v) Smilax Laboratories Limited Trade receivables  88 42 

Advances received 
from Customers

- 2 

Security Deposit 
received

 5 5 

vi)  KKR Capstone India Operations 
Advisory Private Limited

Trade payables - 177 

vii) Ramky Integrated Township Limited Capital Advance  25,000  - 

viii)  Frank Lloyd Tech Management 
Services Limited 

Trade payables  1 1 

ix)  Madhya Pradesh Waste Management 
Private Limited

Intercorporate deposit 
taken

 13 13 

Trade payables 129 157 

Advances received 
from customers

614 614 

Other payables  29 29 

x) FARZ LLC, UAE Trade receivables - 17 

Investments in 
Associates

2,796 2,358 

xi)  Al Ahlia Environmental Services  
Co. LLC, Oman

Trade receivables  18 17 

Intercorporate deposit 
given

3,173 2,782 

Retention receivable 205 296 

Investment 714 628 

xii) Al Ahlia Waste Treatment L.L.C, UAE Trade receivables 2,914 1,849 
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Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

Retention receivable - 190 

Investment 2,617 2,505 

Contract Assets 446 411 

Intercorporate deposit 
given

729 636 

xiii)  Oman Maritime Waste Treatment, 
Oman

Contract Assets  29 27 

Investment  19 19 

Trade receivables  21 117 

Advance from customers - 9 

xiv)  Ramky Cleantech Environmental 
Services LLC

Intercorporate deposit 
given

- 30 

xv) Ramky Al-Turki Environmental Services Investment in Associates 607 606 

Contract Assets 543  - 

xvi) Govind Singh Remuneration payable - 1 

xvii) M Goutham Reddy Remuneration payable - 6 

xviii) Anil K Khandelwal Remuneration payable - 8 

xix) Masood Alam Mallick Remuneration payable - 9 

xx) Narayan Keelveedhi Seshadri Sitting fee payable  61 33 

xxi) Shantharaju Bangalore Siddaiah Sitting fee payable  62 31 

xxii) Hwee Hua Lim Sitting fee payable  75 50 

xxiii) Vaishali Nigam Sinha Sitting fee payable  69 41 

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

i. Commitments
  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 

capital account and not provided for (net of advances)
62,861 57,920 

ii. Contingent liabilities:
 Performance Guarantees issued by banks:
 -  On behalf of the subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries and an associate 14,570 16,129 

  Corporate guarantees to banks against credit facilities 
extended to:

 - Subsidiaries, step-down subsidiary and jointly controlled entity 2,308 2,308 
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Friday,  
31 March 2023

Thursday,  
31 March 2022

iii. Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of:*
 a) Sales tax / Service Tax/ GST matters 1,312 531 
 b) Income tax matters 3,091 863 
 c) Other matters 1,286 1,899 

 * Excluding interest not ascertainable from the date of order, if any.

 West Bengal Waste Management Limited
(i)  During the year 31 March 2021, the Company has received Assessment Order for financial year 2017-18, 

thereby raising a Tax Demand of Rs. 420. The Company has filed appeal before CIT(A) against the assessment 
order. Based on internal assessment, the Company does not envisage any financial impact on account of the 
aforesaid demand and accordingly not made any provision in the financial statements.

(ii)  During the FY 2022-23, the Company has received Assessment Order for the FY 2019-20, making adjustments 
on account of disallowance of post closure & Ind AS Adjustment over the Returned Income. Thereby raising 
a Tax Demand of Rs. 372. The Company has filed appeal before CIT(A) against the assessment order. Based 
on internal assessment, the Company does not envisage any financial impact on account of the aforesaid 
demand and accordingly not made any provision in the financial statements.

 Re Sustainability IWM Solutions Limited
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company received a demand note of Rs 949 u/s 156 of Income tax Act, 1961 
for A.Y. 2018-19 from the Income Tax department on account of certain disallowances under various heads of Rs.4,271. 
The Company has filed appeal before Commissioner of Income tax Appeal (CIT(A)) against the assessment order and 
paid Rs. 195 as amount under protest. Based on internal assessment, considering the nature of additions and judicial 
precedence, returned losses and other deductions available, the Company does not envisage any financial impact 
on account of the aforesaid demand and has accordingly not made any provision in the books of account.

 Delhi MSW Solutions Limited
During the FY 2022-23, we received an adverse order for the AY 2020-21 with the disallowance of 237 of Expenditure, 
on account of Grant of 750 Lakhs deletion from P & M, Movable Assets is not accepted. Depreciation to the extent 
of Rs. 237 is disallowed. Entire grant of Rs. 750 reduced against 15% block where as Assessing Officer divided grant 
between 15% and 40% block and disallowed the excess depreciation calculated. Aggrieved with the disallowance 
company filed the appeal at CIT(A).

 Chennai MSW Private Limited
During the FY 2022-23, Company field appeal at CIT(A) against the AY 2020-21 assessment order u/s for the 
disallowance of expenses Rs.349 (CSR Exp, 23, Ind As adjustment 290, ICDs adjustment of Rs.36).

 Re Sustainability and Recycling Private Limited
  During the previous year, The Company has received a tax demand of Rs. 254 u/s 156 of Income Tax Act 1961 for AY 

2021-22. The Company has filed objections before CIT(A) Hyderabad against the demand order. Based on internal 
assessment, considering the nature of additions and judicial precedence, the Company envisaged that there will 
not be any probable financial impact and therefore no provision is made against the same.

 Re Sustainability Healthcare Solutions Limited
During the previous years, the Company has received a tax demand of Rs. 230 for AY 2013-14 and AY 2014-15. The 
Company won the case in CIT(A) whereas the same had lost in ITAT. Company has filed the appeal before High 
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Court during the year. Based on internal assessment, considering the nature of additions and judicial precedence, 
the Company envisaged that there will not be any probable financial impact and therefore no provision is made 
against the same.

 Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited
During the previous years, the Company has received a demand from Gram panchayat Jawahar nagar,for payment 
of property tax amounting to Rs. 642 related to F.Y.2015-16 to F.Y.2020-21. As per the concession agreement with 
GHMC, the property tax shall be payable by GHMC. However  the same has been recovered by GHMC from the 
revenue invoices of the Company. Management is in discussions with GHMC and is of the opinion that the liability 
would not devolve on the company and the same is disclosed as contingent liability.

 Chennai MSW Private Limited
(i)  During the previous years, the Company has received an order passed under section 7A of Employees 

Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 for the period April 2015 to February 2016 from Employees 
Provident Fund Organization (EPFO) directing the Company to remit PF related dues amounting to Rs. 205 on 
certain allowances given by the Company to its employees. The Company has assessed that it has legitimate 
grounds for appeal and has contested the order by filing an appeal which is pending before Central 
Government Industrial Tribunal. The Company has paid an amount of Rs. 72 under protest and believes that 
no provision is required to be created for the aforesaid dues demanded under the order.

(ii)  During the FY 2022-23, Company field appeal at CIT(A) against the AY 2020-21 assessment order u/s for the 
disallowance of expenses Rs.349 (CSR expenses Rs. 23, Ind As adjustment Rs. 290, ICDs adjustment of Rs.36).

36. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

Name of Joint 
Venture

Share Assets Liabilities
Group's 

investment
Income Expenditure Tax OCI

Total 
comprehensive 

income

Group's 
Share of 

TCI
Al Ahlia 
Environmental 
Services Co LLC 
31 March 2023 50% 11,808 10,379 714 4,435 4,364 - - 71 36 
31 March 2022 50% 10,422 9,166 628 3,737 5,335 - - (1,597)  (799)

37. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

Name of 
Associates

Share Assets Liabilities
Group's 

investment
Income Expenditure Tax OCI

Total 
comprehensive 

income

Group's 
Share of 

TCI
Al Ahlia Waste 
Treatment LLC
31 March 2023 49% 12,317 6,977  2,617 6,360 6,417 (57) (28)
31 March 2022 49% 11,860 6,747  2,505 4,124 4,168 - - (44) (21)
FARZ LLC
31 March 2023 25% 23,606 12,424  2,796 7,381 10,779 - - (3,397)  (849)
31 March 2022 25% 23,419 13,987  2,358 3,870 5,293 - - (1,423)  (356)
RRESL
31 March 2023 49%  1,751  512 607  -  177 - - (177) (87)
31 March 2022 49%  1,618  381 606  -  164 (164) (80)
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38. SEGMENT REPORTING
 Operating Segments

The Group has only one segment i.e. carrying on the business of Integrated waste management solutions, 
construction of waste treatment facilities, consultancy, emerging technologies, car park, cleaning, conservancy 
services. The conditions prevailing in activities involved by the group are not being uniform, hence business 
segments forms the primary segment of the Group.

 Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars
Waste 

management 
division

Turnkey 
Projects 
Division

Car Park, 
Cleaning and 
Conservancy 

Service

Consultancy 
and Others Unallocable adjustments/ 

eliminations Total

Revenue
External customers 289,432  20,701 49,887 3,261 (0) - 363,281 

Inter-segment 2,630  27,573 - 1,026 - (31,229) -

Total revenue 292,062  48,274 49,887 4,287 (0) (31,229) 363,281 
Income/(Expenses)
Depreciation and 
amortisation

24,142 34 5,233 209 587 -  30,205 

Segment profit 85,043 2,356 1,995 370 (10,036) 1,587  81,315 

Add: Interest Income - - - - 2,014 - 2,014 

Add: Other Income - - - - 716 -  716 

Less: Finance Charges - - - -  16,013 -  16,013 

Profit before share of 
profit of associates 
and a joint venture, 
exceptional items  
and tax

- - - - - -  68,032 

Add: Share of profit of 
an associate and a joint 
venture 

- - - - (928) (928)

Profit before tax - - - - - -  67,104 
Less: Tax expenses - - - - (20,130) - (20,130)

Profit after tax - - - - - -  46,974 
Total assets 383,889  42,063 37,151 319 147,369 - 610,791 
Total liabilities 101,337  32,243 17,863 279 120,795 - 272,517 
Other disclosures
Investments in an 
associate and a joint 
venture 

 - - - - 6,734 - 6,734 

Capital expenditure 69,040 3,167 3,735 - - -  75,942 
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 Year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars
Waste 

management 
division

Turnkey 
Projects 
Division

Car Park, 
Cleaning and 
Conservancy 

Service

Consultancy 
and Others Unallocable adjustments/ 

eliminations Total

Revenue

External customers 243,749 6,493 48,361 1,088 - - 299,691 

Inter-segment 5,436  16,314 - - - (21,750) - 

Total revenue 249,185  22,807 48,361 1,088 - (21,750) 299,691 

Income/(Expenses)

Depreciation and 
amortisation

20,913 8 6,371 210 487 -  27,989 

Segment profit 73,426 1,162 3,109 (451) (11,221) -  66,025 

Add: Interest Income  - - - - 1,784 - 1,784 

Add: Other Income  - - - - 997 -  997 

Less: Finance Charges  - - - - (11,414) - (11,414)

Profit before share of 
profit of associates and a 
joint venture, exceptional 
items and tax

 - - - - - -  57,391 

Add: Share of profit 
of an associate and a 
joint venture 

 - - - - (1,256) -  (1,256)

Profit before tax  - - - - - -  56,135 

Less: Tax expenses  - - - - (10,234) - (10,234)

Profit after tax  - - - - -  45,901 

Total assets 307,824  28,893 32,165 5,090 148,054 - 522,026 

Total liabilities 97,382  18,341 14,791 4,833 110,220 - 245,567 

Other disclosures

Investments in an 
associate and a joint 
venture 

 - - - - 6,097 - 6,097 

Capital expenditure 50,705 - 5,122 94 530 -  56,451 

  Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the ‘adjustments and eliminations’ column. All other 
adjustments and eliminations are part of detailed reconciliations presented further below.

 Adjustments and eliminations
 i)  Interest income, Other income, finance cost, other expenses, share of profit of an associates and a joint venture, 

exceptional item and tax expenses are not allocated to individual segments as the same are managed on a group basis.  
ii) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties 
including movement of capital work in progress.
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39. FAIR VALUES
  The management assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, 

other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts 
as fair value except for investment in mutual funds.

  The fair value for investments in mutual funds (FVTPL) are valued using Level 1: Unquoted (unadjusted) market 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

  The fair value of Optionally convertible preference shares are valued using Level 3: Valuation techniques for which 
the input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The Group’s 
financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, loans, trade 
receivables and other receivables.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management 
framework. In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Group is exposed to the Market Risk, 
Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

 i) Market risk
  Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market prices. Such changes in the value of financials instrument may result from changes 
in interest rates, credit worthiness, liquidity and other market changes. The Group exposure to market risk 
is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes Loans, 
borrowings and deposits.

  Interest rate risk
   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. This risk is set off partially due 
to investments in Mutual Funds.

  Interest rate sensitivity
   The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that 

portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held 
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

  Liabilities (Long term borrowing)

Increase/decrease in 
basis points

Effect on profit  
before tax

31 March 2023
INR +100 (609)
INR -100 609 
31 March 2022
INR +100 (602)
INR -100 602 
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 ii) Credit risk
   Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 

contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, 
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

  a) Trade receivables
    Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited, based on our historical experience of collecting 

receivables, supported by the level of default. 

  b) Financial instruments and cash deposits
    Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s top management 

in accordance with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved 
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are 
reviewed by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject 
to approval of the Company’s board of directors. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks 
and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

 iii) Foreign Currency risk
   The year end foreign currency exposure that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or other wise 

are as under

In Foreign Currency In Rupees
Particulars Currency 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade Payable USD 1  4 74 266 

Trade Payable EUR 0 -  4  - 

Capital Creditors USD 2 - 171  - 

Capital Creditors EUR 6 - 565  - 

Retention money payable USD  20 - 1,624  - 

  Foreign Currency Sensitivity
   The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with 

all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair 
value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Increase/(decrease) in Profit before tax
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Change in USD rate

- 5% Increase (4) (13)

- 5% decrease 4 13 

 iv) Liquidity risk
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated 

with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result 
from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.
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  The Group has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term 
and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises 
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group manages the liquidity 
risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Group also has adequate credit facilities 
agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a 
timely and cost-effective manner. The Group invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and in mutual 
funds, which carry no or low market risk. 

   The table below analyses derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Carrying 
Value

On 
demand

Less than 3 
months

3 to 12 
months 1 to 5 years > 5 years

As at 31 March 2023

Borrowings (including current 
maturities)

81,933 1,690  2,322 11,012  48,139  18,772 

Trade payables 43,271 - 22,177 20,095 999 - 

Other financial liabilities 26,792 - 10,434 9,311  2,487  4,560 

As at 31 March 2022
Borrowings (including current 
maturities)

84,142 3,211  1,900 8,387  46,497  24,147 

Trade payables 31,889 -  - 33,511 - - 

Other financial liabilities 35,021 - 31,334 2,697 - - 

   At present, the Group does expects to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such 
cash commitments, the operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows.

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The group endeavours to maintain sufficient levels of working capital, current assets and current liabilities which 
helps the company to meet its expense obligations while also maintaining sufficient cash flow. The capital 
structure of the group consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and equity of the group 
(comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings). The capital structure of the Company is reviewed by 
the management on a periodic basis.

Gearing ratio 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings (non-current and current, including current maturities of 
non-current borrowings, interest accrued and due, Interest accrued 
but not due)

82,038 84,255 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (including mutual funds, balances 
at bank other than cash and cash equivalents and margin money 
deposits with banks)

(16,684) (52,750)

Net debt (A) 65,354 31,505 

Equity (refer note 11 and 12) (B) 333,715 274,544 

Total Capital and Debt (C) 399,069 306,049 

Gearing ratio (%) (A/C) 16% 10%
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 Gearing ratio:
  The group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The group’s 

policy is to keep the gearing ratio within 50%.

  In order to achieve this overall objective, the group makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions 
and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company aims to ensure that it meets the financial covenants 
attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 

42.  Management post detailed evaluation of compliance of FEMA regulations in 2018-19 and had submitted all pend-
ing reports with Authorized Dealer Bank,  addressed  observations and compounded the non-compliances for 
two of its overseas JV/Subsidiaries and is in process of filing the compounding applications for other two JV/
Subsidiaries. Based on legal advice obtained and other documentary evidence available with the Company, the 
management is of the view that there would be no material impact on the financial statements and accordingly, 
no adjustments for the possible effect of such non-compliance have been made to the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company.

43.  In the earlier years, the Company had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with the other shareholder of Ch-
hattisgarh Energy Consortium India Private Limited (CECIPL) and purchased 51% stake in CECIPL and entered into an 
agreement to sell its investment in CECIPL to one of the shareholder’s entity (buyer) and had received advance of 
Rs. 614 for such sale from the buyer. During earlier years, the Beneficial Ownership of the said subsidiary had been 
transferred to the buyer. However, the control over the subsidiary could not be transferred on account of dispute 
between the shareholders of CECIPL and hence the Company has continued to disclose the assets of the subsidi-
ary of Rs. 614 as Asset Held for Sale. The Financial Statement of CECIPL have not been audited after the year ending 
31 March 2014 till current year. Pending transfer of control as on balance sheet date, the Company has continued 
to consolidate CECIPL based on financial statements certified by management.

44. SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
 (i)  During the previous year, pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement (Scheme), the following 

wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company viz., (1) Ramky Reclamation and Recycling Limited (RRRL); (2) 
Deccan Recyclers Private Limited (DRPL); (3) Ramky e-waste Management Limited (REWML); and (4) Delhi 
Cleantech Services Limited (DCSPL) have merged into Jodhpur MSW Private Limited (JMPL). The Appointed 
Date of merger is 1 April 2019. Further, the name of the merged entity was changed to “Re Sustainability & 
Recycling Private Limited”.

   The Scheme was approved by the Hyderabad bench of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal at Hyderabad 
vide its order dated 9 July 2021. The Scheme was made operative on 27 August 2021, with retrospective effect 
from 1 April 2019, by filing form INC-28 with the Registrar of Companies.

45. MATERIAL ARBITRATION AND PENDING LITIGATION DETAILS:
 (i)  In F.Y.2017-18, Hyderabad Integrated MSW Limited (HIMSW) had filed a petition in High Court of Andhra Pradesh 

and Telangana against one of its customers the Greater Hyderabad Municipal Corporation(“”GHMC””) towards 
non-certification / payment of escalation on tipping fee, deduction of performance penalty and non-deposit 
of withhold towards post closure obligations in escrow account along with interest, as applicable. The Court 
had directed the HIMSW to settle the matters through arbitration process. In the year 2018, on conclusion of 
arbitration process, the arbitrator passed an order on 10 March 2018 stating that the HIMSW is not entitled to 
escalations and the customer is not entitled to deduct any amount towards performance penalty. Further it 
directed the customer to deposit amounts withhold towards post closure obligations in escrow account. On 
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15 June 2018 the HIMSW has filed petition at City Civil Court, Hyderabad challenging the arbitration award 
towards escalation, 0n 28 August 2018 the aforesaid customer also filed petition at City Civil Court, Hyderabad 
challenging the arbitration award towards performance penalty. On 12 September 2022 the City Civil Court 
has passed order dismissing section 34 application of both GHMC and the HIMSW. However the detailed 
order has been provided by the Court on 31 March 2023. HIMSW has filed the execution petition which is yet 
to be numbered by the Court and further is in the process of filing Appeal under section 37 of the arbitration 
act before the Hon’ble High Court of Telangana challenging the Order of the commercial court..

   As at 31 March 2023, HIMSW has trade receivables of Rs. NIL (31 March 2022 : Rs.NIL), net of provision of Rs.NIL 
(31 March 2022 Rs.5,525) towards performance penalty deducted.”

 (ii)  Delhi MSW Solutions Limited (DMSW) had filed arbitration claims against North Delhi Municipal Corporation 
(NDMC) related to the disputes that arose under the Concession Agreement pertaining to rate escalation, 
recovery of amount withheld on account of non- disposal of refused derived fuel (RDF), revenue share on sale 
of electricity along with certain other claims. Wherein a favourable Award was passed by the Arbitral Tribunal 
for all other matters except revenue share, wherein it stated that DMSW is liable to share 3.86% of revenue 
generated from the sale of electricity with NDMC as against the 3% being currently shared pursuant to an 
interim direction passed by the National Green Tribunal (NGT) in the year 2016. The award was challenged 
by both the parties before the Delhi High Court which is listed on 9 May 2023 for arguments, however has 
not reached the bench. The matter was posted to 10 August 2023 for completion of arguments by NDMC on 
the stay application. Conservatively, Company is creating provision for 3% of revenue share in the books.  
The total amount of such disputed amounts in the books as at 31 March 2023 is Rs Nil (31 March 2022: Rs 4,128).

 (iii)  North Delhi Municipal Corporation (“NDMC” or “the customer”) issued a show cause notice to DMSW in the 
previous year u/sec 4 & 7 of the Public Premises (Eviction of Unauthorised Occupants) Act, 1971 for eviction of 
the purported unauthorised occupation of municipal land approx. 5.688 acres during the period 2009 to 2020 
and to pay Rs 28,649 as damages along with interest. DMSW has challenged the aforesaid notices, however 
the Estate Officer, NDMC in August, 2021 directed for vacation of the land in 15 days and pay damages. 
DMSW filed an appeal against the order of NDMC before the District Judge, Rohini Court which is being 
heard by the Court. After hearing from both the parties, the Court on 16 March 2023 passed Order by setting 
aside the impugned order dated 23 August 2021 passed by the Estate Officer, Public Premises Dept, NDMC 
and remanded back the to the Estate Officer for proper finding of this aspect and further directed both the 
parties to appear before the Estate Officer on 27 March.2023. DMSW has appeared before the Estate Officer 
on 27 March 2023 through advocates. Considering that the MCD representatives were not able to provide 
satisfactory answers/ responses to the queries raised during the hearing on 28 April 23, the Estate Officer 
issued notice to the Director, DEMS, to appear in person on the next date of hearing, and explain the status 
of the excess land in question. DMSW has been in lawful possession of the land handed over to it by NDMC 
under the Concession Agreement and is obliged to return to NDMC upon completion of the Project in 2029.  
The matter is listed on 10 May 2023 for further proceedings before the Estate Officer. Based on internal 
assessment and legal advice, management is of the firm view that there will not be any impact of this matter 
on the financial statements.

 (iv) Tipping fee issue
   A Power Purchase Agreement was executed between Hyderabad MSW Energy Solutions Private Limited 

(HMESPL) and Telangana State Southern Power Distribution Company Limited (TSSPDCL) in February 2020. 
Telangana State Electricity Regulatory Commission (TSERC) has determined the tariff for the power generated 
through Waste to Energy Plants vide its generic tariff order in April 2020 which includes a direction for 
reimbursement of tipping fee by the generators upon receipt of the same under the Concession Agreement. 
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Therefore, TSSPDCL has issued a notice in July 2021 claiming reimbursement of tipping fee. The Company has 
challenged the aforesaid notice and obtained an interim relief of stay order against TSSPDCL not to deduct 
such reimbursement from the bills till the matter is decided. As HMESPL does not receive any tipping fee, the 
need for reimbursement does not arise. Further HIMSW & HMESPL are two separate entities and therefore 
lifting of corporate veil as alleged by TSSPDCL is not applicable.

  PLF issue
   HMESPL and TSSPDCL executed PPA on 19 February 2020 for sale of power wherein the tariff was determined 

by TSERC vide the Generic Tariff Order dated 18 April 2020 in O.P. No.14/2020. While determining the tariff, 
TSERC considered & approved the Plant Land Factor as 65% for the 1st year, 75% for 2nd year and 80% from 
the 3rd year onwards. TSSPDCL computed the bills of HMESPL with the aforesaid PLF factor and did not 
consider 100% procurement of energy. Hence, HMESPL has filed application before TSERC. 

   Both the Petitions are heard and reserved for Orders. Based on internal assessment and legal advice, 
management is of the view that there would be no impact of this matter on the financial statements of the 
Company.

46.  The Income tax department has conducted a search operation on the Company’s registered office during the 
previous year. No order consequent to such operation has so far been received by the Company. Reassessment 
notices were received from the IT department and subsequent to balance sheet date, company received notice 
seeking information for reassessment. Management believes that there would be no implication of the aforesaid 
search operations on the financial statements of the Company.

47. STATUTORY GROUP INFORMATION

Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets less total liabilities

Share in profit and loss
Share in other 

Comprehensive  
income (OCI)

Share in total 
Comprehensive  

income (TCI)

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Parent company

Re Sustainability 
Limited

46% 156,109 18% 8,329 38%  53 18% 8,382 

Indian Subsidiaries

Mumbai Waste 
Management 
Limited 

29%  99,697 41% 19,193 -4%  (6) 41% 19,187 

Delhi MSW 
Solutions Limited 

10%  34,806 8% 3,741 9%  12 8% 3,753 

Hyderabad 
Integrated MSW 
Limited 

9%  31,170 8% 3,813 -9% (12) 8% 3,801 

Hyderabad MSW 
Energy Solutions 
Private Limited

6%  19,614 4% 1,895 2%  3 4% 1,898 
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets less total liabilities

Share in profit and loss
Share in other 

Comprehensive  
income (OCI)

Share in total 
Comprehensive  

income (TCI)

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Medicare 
Environmental 
Management 
Private Limited 

5%  16,267 8% 3,598 32%  44 8% 3,642 

West Bengal Waste 
Management 
Limited 

4%  13,615 3% 1,209 -4%  (6) 3% 1,203 

Re Sustainability 
IWM Solutions 
Limited

4%  13,249 5% 2,531 -17% (24) 5% 2,507 

Dundigal Waste 
2 Energy Private 
Limited

6%  20,834 1%  236 -2%  (3) 0%  233 

Re Sustainability 
Healthcare 
Solutions Limited

3% 8,972 3% 1,586 15%  21 3% 1,607 

Re Sustainability 
Industrial Solutions 
Private Limited

1% 4,926 0%  (1) 0%  - 0% (1)

Chennai Enviro 
Solutions Private 
Limited

2% 7,101 8% 3,699 1%  2 8% 3,701 

Re Sustainability 
Reldan Refining 
Private Limited

2% 7,792 0% (229) -3%  (4) 0% (233)

REWA MSW Energy 
Solutions Private 
Limited

3% 8,775 1%  301 -4%  (6) 1%  295 

Chennai MSW 
Private Limited

0% 1,339 -2% (770) 17%  23 -2% (747)

Saagar MSW 
Solutions Private 
Limited 

0% 878 -2% (823) 3%  4 -2% (819)

Re Sustainability 
Solutions Private 
Limited

1% 2,076 1%  460 1%  2 1%  462 
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets less total liabilities

Share in profit and loss
Share in other 

Comprehensive  
income (OCI)

Share in total 
Comprehensive  

income (TCI)

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Hyderabad C&D 
Waste Private 
Limited 

1% 2,208 -1% (426) 1%  2 -1% (424)

Maridi Bio Industries 
Private Limited

0% 1,604 1%  432 9%  12 1%  444 

Adityapur Waste 
Management 
Private Limited 

1% 1,958 2% 1,149 2%  3 2% 1,152 

Pithampur 
Industrial Waste 
Management 
Private Limited 

1% 2,118 3% 1,311 2%  3 3% 1,314 

Visakha Solvents 
Limited

0% 453 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Dehradun Waste 
Management 
Private Limited 

0%  (763) -3%  (1,531) 3%  4 -3% (1,527)

Alliance Envirocare 
Company Private 
Limited

0% 342 0% 97 4%  5 0%  102 

Bio Medical Waste 
Treatment Plant 
Private Limited 

0%  96 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Pashamylaram CETP 
Private Limited

0%  (0) 0%  (1) 0%  - 0% (1)

Dhanbad 
Integrated Waste 
2 Energy Private 
Limited

0% 0 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Re Sustainability & 
Recycling Private 
Limited

-1%  (2,423) -5%  (2,434) 3%  4 -5% (2,430)

REWA MSW 
Management 
Solutions Limited 

-1%  (2,138) -2% (816) 5%  7 -2% (809)
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets less total liabilities

Share in profit and loss
Share in other 

Comprehensive  
income (OCI)

Share in total 
Comprehensive  

income (TCI)

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Re Sustainability 
Urban Solutions 
Private Limited 

-1%  (1,943) -2% (946) 0%  - -2% (946)

Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Private Limited 

0%  (895) -1% (265) 1%  2 -1% (263)

Pro Enviro 
Recycling Private 
Limited 

0%  (511) 0% (196) 0%  - 0% (196)

Katni MSW 
Management 
Private Limited 

0%  (633) -1% (403) -1%  (1) -1% (404)

Dhanbad 
Integrated MSW 
Limited

0% 1,186 1%  331 1%  2 1%  333 

REWA Waste 2 
Energy Projects 
Limited 

0%  (837) -1% (665) 0%  - -1% (665)

Kesda Waste 
Management 
Private Limited

0% 801 0%  (1) 0%  - 0% (1)

IP MSW Solution 
Private Limited

0% 1,635 -1% (453) 0%  - -1% (453)

REWA MSW 
Holdings Limited 

0%  (2) 0%  (1) 0%  - 0% (1)

Chhattisgarh 
Energy Consortium 
(India) Private 
Limited

0%  - 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Saidpura Envirotech 
Private Limited

0%  - 0%  (1) 0%  - 0% (1)

Hyderabad RDF 
WTE Private Limited

0%  - 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Foreign 
Subsidiaries

 - 
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets less total liabilities

Share in profit and loss
Share in other 

Comprehensive  
income (OCI)

Share in total 
Comprehensive  

income (TCI)

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Re Sustainability 
Cleantech Pte. Ltd.

4%  14,957 0% 1,744 0%  - 4% 1,744 

Re Sustainability 
International 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

7%  23,120 16% 7,641 0%  - 16% 7,641 

Re Sustainability 
Middle East FZ-LLC

2% 8,302 2%  821 0%  - 2%  821 

Ramky International 
(India) Pte. Ltd 

1% 4,753 0%  (2) 0%  - 0% (2)

Re Sustainability 
Solutions Pte. Ltd.

1% 2,469 0% 40 0%  - 0% 40 

Nature 
Environmental & 
Marine Services

0% 1,389 0%  469 0%  - 1%  469 

RVAC Private 
Limited 

0% 1,031 0% 67 0%  - 0% 67 

Ramky Enviro North 
America LLC

0% 446 2% 23 0%  - 0% 23 

Ramky-Royal 
Building 
Maintenance and 
Services Inc 

0% 215 1% - 0%  - 0%  - 

PT Ramky 
Indonesia 

0% 2 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Ramky Cleantech 
Services (China) 
Pte. Ltd 

0%  42 2%  769 0%  - 2%  769 

Ramky Enviro 
Engineers 
Bangladesh Limited

0% (59) 0%  (25) 0%  - 0%  (25)

Ramky Cleantech 
Services 
(Philippines) Pte. 
Ltd 

0% (30) 0%  (3) 0%  - 0% (3)
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets less total liabilities

Share in profit and loss
Share in other 

Comprehensive  
income (OCI)

Share in total 
Comprehensive  

income (TCI)

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Ramky 
Environmental 
Technology 
(Shenzhen)  
Co. Ltd 

0% (24) 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Ramky Tanzania 
Limited

0% (50) 0%  (27) 0%  - 0%  (27)

Ramky Cleantech 
Environmental 
Services - Sole 
Proprietorship 
LLC,

0%  - 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Non-controlling 
interests in all 
subsidiaries

1% 4,559 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Foreign Associates  - 

Al Ahlia Waste 
Treatment LLC

1% 2,617 0%  (28) 0%  - 0%  (28)

FARZ LLC 1% 2,796 -2% (849) 0%  - -2% (849)

Ramky Al-Turki 
Environmental 
Services

0% 607 0%  (87) 0%  - 0%  (87)

Foreign Joint 
controlled 
entities 

 - 

Al Ahlia 
Environmental 
Services Co LLC 

0% 714 0% 36 0%  - 0% 36 

Less: Effect of 
intercompany 
adjustments/
eliminations

-53%  (179,056) -16%  (7,564) -5%  (7) -16% (7,571)

Total 100%  338,274 100%  46,974 100% 139 100%  47,112 
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2022

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Parent company

Re Sustainability 
Limited

50% 138,235 10% 4,805 (5%) (44) 10% 4,761 

Indian Subsidiaries

Mumbai Waste 
Management 
Limited 

29%  80,507 38% 17,551 0% 2 37% 17,553 

Delhi MSW Solutions 
Limited 

11%  31,051 14%  6,522 3%  27 14% 6,549 

Hyderabad 
Integrated MSW 
Limited 

10%  27,371 -3% (1,396) (1%) (13) -3%  (1,409)

Hyderabad MSW 
Energy Solutions 
Private Limited

6%  17,715 8%  3,460 (1%)  (5) 7% 3,455 

Medicare 
Environmental 
Management Private 
Limited 

5%  12,622 5%  2,231 5%  51 5% 2,282 

West Bengal Waste 
Management 
Limited 

4%  12,412 4%  2,028 0% 3 4% 2,031 

Re Sustainability 
IWM Solutions 
Limited

4%  10,742 7%  3,129 (1%) (13) 7% 3,116 

Dundigal Waste 
2 Energy Private 
Limited

3% 7,695 1%  431 0%  - 1% 431 

Re Sustainability 
Healthcare Solutions 
Limited

3% 7,365 3%  1,451 (2%) (17) 3% 1,434 

Re Sustainability 
Industrial Solutions 
Private Limited

2% 4,827 0% 35 0%  - 0%  35 

Chennai Enviro 
Solutions Private 
Limited

1% 3,399 7%  3,342 0%  (0) 7% 3,342 

Re Sustainability 
Reldan Refining 
Private Limited

1% 3,063 0% (183) 0% 1 0%  (182)
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2022

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

REWA MSW Energy 
Solutions Private 
Limited

1% 2,713 0% 98 0%  - 0%  98 

Chennai MSW 
Private Limited

1% 2,082 -1% (665) 0% 5 -1%  (660)

Saagar MSW 
Solutions Private 
Limited 

1% 1,697 0%  (50) 0% 2 0% (48)

Re Sustainability 
Solutions Private 
Limited

1% 1,614 0% 34 0% 1 0%  35 

Hyderabad C&D 
Waste Private Limited 

0% 1,337 0% (166) (0%)  (3) 0%  (169)

Maridi Bio Industries 
Private Limited

0% 1,160 1%  495 1% 6 1% 501 

Adityapur Waste 
Management Private 
Limited 

0% 806 2%  802 0% 3 2% 805 

Pithampur Industrial 
Waste Management 
Private Limited 

0% 804 3%  1,583 0%  - 3% 1,583 

Visakha Solvents 
Limited

0% 604 0% (142) 0% 1 0%  (141)

Dehradun Waste 
Management Private 
Limited 

0% 464 0% (201) (0%)  (0) 0%  (201)

Alliance Envirocare 
Company Private 
Limited

0% 241 0% 61 0%  - 0%  61 

Bio Medical Waste 
Treatment Plant 
Private Limited 

0% 173 0% 49 0%  - 0%  49 

Pashamylaram CETP 
Private Limited

0%  1 0% (0) 0%  - 0% (0)

Dhanbad Integrated 
Waste 2 Energy 
Private Limited

0%  0 0% - 0%  - 0% (0)

Re Sustainability & 
Recycling Private 
Limited

0%  3 1%  563 0% 4 1% 567 
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2022

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

REWA MSW 
Management 
Solutions Limited 

0%  (1,330) -1% (645) 1% 7 -1%  (638)

Re Sustainability 
Urban Solutions 
Private Limited

0%  (997) 0% (103) 0%  - 0%  (103)

Pro Enviro C&D 
Waste Management 
Private Limited 

0%  (631) 0% (218) 0% 1 0%  (217)

Pro Enviro Recycling 
Private Limited 

0%  (315) 0%  (22) 0%  - 0% (22)

Katni MSW 
Management Private 
Limited 

0%  (229) -1% (319) (0%)  (0) -1%  (319)

Dhanbad Integrated 
MSW Limited

0%  (209) 0% 10 0% 3 0%  13 

REWA Waste 2 
Energy Projects 
Limited 

0%  (172) 0% (196) 0%  - 0%  (196)

Kesda Waste 
Management Private 
Limited

0%  (18) 0%  (18) 0%  - 0% (18)

IP MSW Solution 
Private Limited

0% (9) 0%  (10) 0%  - 0% (10)

REWA MSW 
Holdings Limited 

0% (1) 0% (0) 0%  - 0% (0)

Chhattisgarh Energy 
Consortium (India) 
Private Limited

0%  - 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

B & G Solar Private 
Limited 

0%  - 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Foreign 
Subsidiaries

 - 

Re Sustainability 
Cleantech Pte. Ltd.

7%  20,314 7%  3,167 0%  - 7% 3,167 

Re Sustainability 
International 
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

5%  13,586 -1% (279) 0%  - -1%  (279)

Re Sustainability 
Middle East FZ-LLC

2% 6,561 1%  589 22% 212 2% 800 
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2022

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Ramky International 
(India) Pte. Ltd 

2% 4,318 0% (0) 0%  - 0% (0)

Re Sustainability 
Solutions Pte. Ltd.

1% 2,202 0%  133 0%  - 0% 133 

Nature 
Environmental & 
Marine Services

1% 2,026 0%  227 0%  - 0% 227 

RVAC Private Limited 0% 871 0% 69 0%  - 0%  69 

Ramky Enviro North 
America LLC

0% 825 0% 26 0%  - 0%  26 

Ramky-Royal 
Building 
Maintenance and 
Services Inc 

0% 196 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

PT Ramky Indonesia 0%  2 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Ramky Cleantech 
Services (China) Pte. 
Ltd 

0%  (699) 0% (3) 0%  - 0% (3)

Ramky Enviro 
Engineers 
Bangladesh Limited

0%  (34) 0%  (27) 0%  - 0% (27)

Ramky Cleantech 
Services (Philippines) 
Pte. Ltd 

0%  (24) 0% (2) 0%  - 0% (2)

Ramky Environmental 
Technology 
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd 

0%  (22) 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Ramky Tanzania 
Limited

0% 355 0% 0 0%  - 0%  0 

Ramky Cleantech 
Environmental 
Services - Sole 
Proprietorship LLC,

0%  - 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Non-controlling 
interests in all 
subsidiaries

1% 1,915 0% - 0%  - 0%  - 

Foreign Associates

Al Ahlia Waste 
Treatment LLC

1% 2,505 0%  (21) 0%  - 0% (21)

FARZ LLC 1% 2,358 -1% (356) 0%  - -1%  (356)
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Name of the entity 
in the group

As at 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2022

as a % of 
consolidated 

net assets
INR lakhs

as a % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
OCI

INR lakhs
as a % of 

consolidated 
TCI

INR 
lakhs

Ramky Al-Turki 
Environmental 
Services

0% 606 0%  (80) 0%  - 0% (80)

Foreign Joint 
controlled entities 

 -  - 

Al Ahlia 
Environmental 
Services Co LLC 

0% 628 -2% (799) 0%  - -2%  (799)

Less: Effect of 
intercompany 
adjustments/
eliminations

-54% (148,820) -2% (1,088) 76% 726 -1%  (362)

Total 100% 276,459 100%  45,900 100%  960 100% 46,860 

48. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
  The following Companies of the group (“concessionaries”) have entered into a services concession arrangement 

(s) with various authorities (“the Grantor”) for Design, Construction, Development, Finance, Operation and 
Maintenance of Integrated Municipal Solid Waste Management Projects(MSW) or Hazardous Waste Management 
Project (IWM) or Waste to Energy (WTE) or Construction and Demolition Waste Management Projects (C&D) on 
Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis, which at the end of concession period must be returned in the stipulated 
conditions to the grantors of the concession. The Group is entitled to collect tipping fees from the respective 
municipal authorities or the Customers towards waste collected/disposed and power sold.

S. 
No.

Group Entity Re 
Sustainability 

Limited

Re 
Sustainability 

Limited

Hyderabad 
Integrated 
MSW Ltd

Hyderabad MSW 
Energy Solutions 

Private Ltd

Saagar MSW 
Solutions 

Private Ltd

Katni MSW 
Private Ltd

Delhi MSW 
Solutions 

Ltd

Delhi MSW 
Solutions  

Ltd

1 Project Shimoga Belgaum Jawahar 
Nagar

Jawahar Nagar 
Waste to 
energy

Saagar MSW 
C&T and 

P&D

Katni MSW 
C&T and 

P&D 

Delhi C&T 
and P&D

Bilaspur C&T 
and P&D

2 Grantor Shimoga 
City 

Municipal 
Council

Belgaum 
City 

Corporation

Greater 
Hyderabad 
Municipal 

Corporation 
(GHMC)

Greater 
Hyderabad 
Municipal 

Corporation 
(GHMC)

Nagar Palik 
Nigam, 
Sagar

Nagar Palik 
Nigam, 
Katni

North Delhi 
Municipal 

Corporation 
(NDMC)

Bilaspur 
Municipal 

Corporation 
(BMC)

3 Nature of 
asset

Intangible 
asset

Intangible 
asset

Intangible/
Financial

Intangible asset Intangible/
Financial

Intangible/
Financial

Intangible 
asset

Intangible 
asset

4 Year when 
SCA granted

2009 2007 2009 2009 2015 2015 2010 2017

5 Scope # P&D -MSW P&D -MSW Integrated - 
MSW

Waste to 
Energy

Integrated - 
MSW

Integrated - 
MSW

Integrated - 
MSW

Integrated - 
MSW
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S. 
No.

Group Entity Re 
Sustainability 

Limited

Re 
Sustainability 

Limited

Hyderabad 
Integrated 
MSW Ltd

Hyderabad MSW 
Energy Solutions 

Private Ltd

Saagar MSW 
Solutions 

Private Ltd

Katni MSW 
Private Ltd

Delhi MSW 
Solutions 

Ltd

Delhi MSW 
Solutions  

Ltd

6 Period 
(including 
active landfill)

12 years 17 years 25 years 17 years 21 years 21 years 20 years 15 years

7 Extension of 
period

Mutually 
agreed 
terms

8 Commencement 
of Operations

2012 2010 2012 2020 2015 2015 2010 2019

9 Post Closure 
maintenance 
period

3 years 5 years 15 years 15 years NA NA 15 years -

10 Project end 
date (including 
Post closure)

2027 2032 2052 2052 2036 2036 2045 2034

11 Stage of 
Completion

Completed

12 Grants - - Eligible NA Eligible Eligible - -

13 Premature 
termination

On force majeure event or parties defaulting on their obligations

S. 
No.

Group Entity Delhi MSW 
Solutions Ltd

Chennai 
MSW Private 

Ltd (refer 
note 51)

Dhanbad 
Integrated 
MSW Ltd

Re Sustainability 
IWM Solutions 

Limited (Formerly 
known as 

Tamilnadu Waste 
Management 

Limited)

Hyderabad 
C&D waste 
private Ltd

Dehradun 
Waste 

Management 
Private Ltd 

(refer note 51)

Re Sustainability 
& Recycling 

Private Limited 
(formerly Ramky 

Reclamation & 
Recycling Private 

Limited)

REWA MSW 
Management 
Solutions Ltd

1 Project Raipur C&T 
and Raipur 

P&D

Dehradun 
C&T

Dhanbad 
C&T and 
Dhanbad 

P&D

Delhi TSDF 
Project

Hyderabad 
C&D 

Dehradun P&D  Noida C&D Rewa MSW 
C&T and P&D

2 Grantor Raipur 
Municipal 

Corporation 
(RMC)

Nagar Nigam 
Dehradun 

(NND)

Dhanbad 
Municipal 

Corporation

Delhi State 
Industrial &

Infrastructure 
Development 
Corporation 

Limited (DSIIDC)

Greater 
Hyderabad 
Municipal 

Corporation 
(GHMC)

Nagar Nigam 
Dehradun 

(NND)

New Okhal 
Industrial 

Development 
Authority 

Nagar Palik 
Nigam, REWA

3 Nature of 
asset

Intangible/
Financial

Intangible/
Financial

Intangible/
Financial

Intangible/
Financial

Intangible Intangible/
Financial

Intangible Intangible/
Financial

4 Year when 
SCA granted

2018 2018 2019 2019 2018 2016 2019 2017
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S. 
No.

Group Entity Delhi MSW 
Solutions Ltd

Chennai 
MSW Private 

Ltd (refer 
note 51)

Dhanbad 
Integrated 
MSW Ltd

Re Sustainability 
IWM Solutions 

Limited (Formerly 
known as 

Tamilnadu Waste 
Management 

Limited)

Hyderabad 
C&D waste 
private Ltd

Dehradun 
Waste 

Management 
Private Ltd 

(refer note 51)

Re Sustainability 
& Recycling 

Private Limited 
(formerly Ramky 

Reclamation & 
Recycling Private 

Limited)

REWA MSW 
Management 
Solutions Ltd

5 Scope # Integrated - 
MSW

C&T -MSW Integrated - 
MSW

P&D -Hazardous Construction 
& Demolition

Processing & 
disposal

Construction & 
Demolition

Integrated

6 Period 
(including 
active landfill)

14 years 10 years 24 years 25 years 25 years 15 years 15 years 21 years

7 Extension of 
period

Mutually 
agreed terms

8 Commencement 
of Operations 
date

2019 2019 2020 Mar-22 2020 2018 2020 2018

9 Post Closure 
maintenance 
period

- NA 15 years 30 Years - - - -

10 Project end 
date (including 
Post closure)

2033 2028 2059 2077 2045 2031 2035 2038

11 Stage of 
Completion

Completed Completed Completed/
Under 

Construction

Completed/
Under 

Construction

Completed Completed Completed Completed

12 Grants Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible - Eligible - Eligible 

13 Premature 
termination

On force majeure event or parties defaulting on their obligations

S. 
No.

Group Entity Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Pvt Ltd

Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Pvt Ltd

Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Pvt Ltd

Hyderabad 
Integrated 
MSW Ltd

Chennai Enviro 
Solutions 
Private Limited

Dundigal 
Waste 2 
Energy 
Private 
Limited

REWA MSW 
Energy 
Solutions 
Private 
Limited

IP MSW 
Solutions 
Pvt Ltd

1 Project C&D-
Vijayawada

C&D-Vizag C&D-Tirupati Kolkata C&D Chennai - C&T Dundigal 
W2E

Rewa WTE IP MSW

2 Grantor Vijayawada 
Municipal 
Corporation

Greater 
Visakhapatnam 
Municipal 
Corporation

Tirupati 
Municipal 
Corporation

Kolkata 
Municipal 
Corporation

The Greater 
Chennai 
Corporation

TSIIC/
TSREDCO/
TSSPDCL

Nagar Palik 
Nigam, 
REWA

North Delhi 
Municipal 

Corporation

3 Nature of 
asset

Intangible Intangible Intangible Intangible Intangible Intangible Intangible/
Financial

Intangible/
Financial
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S. 
No.

Group Entity Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Pvt Ltd

Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Pvt Ltd

Pro Enviro 
C&D Waste 
Management 
Pvt Ltd

Hyderabad 
Integrated 
MSW Ltd

Chennai Enviro 
Solutions 
Private Limited

Dundigal 
Waste 2 
Energy 
Private 
Limited

REWA MSW 
Energy 
Solutions 
Private 
Limited

IP MSW 
Solutions 
Pvt Ltd

4 Year when 
SCA granted

2017 2017 2018 2021 2021 As per TSREC 
Tariff Order, 
100% of 
power to 
be procured 
by TSSPDCL. 
Power 
Purchase 
Agreement yet 
to be signed.

2017 2022

5 Scope # Construction 
& Demolition

Construction & 
Demolition

Construction 
& Demolition

Construction 
& Demolition

C&T Waste to 
Energy

Integrated C&T

6 Period 
(including 
active landfill)

20 Years 20 Years 20 Years 10 years 8 years 20 Years** 21 years 10 Years

7 Extension of 
period

- - - - - - - Mutually 
agreed

8 Commencement 
of Operations 
date

2018 2019 Yet to start Yet to start 2021 Yet to start 2020 19.01.2022

9 Post Closure 
maintenance 
period

- - - NA - - - -

10 Project end 
date (including 
Post closure)

2037 2037 2038 2033 2029 2042 2038 2032

11 Stage of 
Completion

Completed Completed Under 
construction

Under 
construction 
(will be ready 
by May 23)

Completed Under 
construction

Under 
construction

Under 
construction

12 Grants - - - - - - - -
13 Premature 

termination
On force majeure event or parties defaulting on their obligations

 # Scope represents the following

C&T -MSW Collection and Transportation of Municipal waste
P&D -MSW Processing and Disposal of Municipal waste
Integrated MSW Represents combination of C&T and P&D
P&D -Hazardous Processing and Disposal of Industrial waste
C&D Treatment of Construction and Demolition waste
Waste to Energy Generation of Power using RDF

 ** As per TSREC Tariff Order, 100% of power to be procured by TSSPDCL. Power Purchase Agreement yet to be signed.
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49. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 

dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 1 April 2023. 

 (i)  Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
   The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting 

policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and 
inputs to develop accounting estimates. 

  The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements. 

 (ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
   The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing 

the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose 
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in 
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. 

   The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with 
the amended requirements.

 (iii)  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amend-
ments to Ind AS 12

   The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no 
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. 
The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest 
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a 
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be 
recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning 
obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. 

  The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.

50. OTHER STATUTORY MATTERS
 (i)  The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against 

the Company for holding any Benami property.

 (ii)  The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period.

 (iii)  The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

 (iv)  The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

  (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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 (v)  The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding 
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

  (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

  (b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

 (vi)  The Group has not entered in to any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

 (vii)  The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
(viii) No scheme of Arrangement has been approved by the competent Authority in terms of section 230 to 
237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

51.  During the year, Chennai MSW Private Limited had handed over the opration to its customer Nagar Nigam, Deh-
radun pursuant to termination notice issued towards C&T operations, the Company has derecognized intangible 
assets and all other assets by creating provision of Rs. 678.

  During the year, Dehradun MSW Private Limited, had handed over the opration to its customer Nagar Nigam, 
Dehradun pursuant to termination notice issued towards P&D operations, the Company has derecognized 
intangible assets and all other assets by creating provision of Rs. 1148.

52.  Previous year’s numbers have been regrouped / reclassed wherever consider necessary to match the classifica-
tions during the current year.
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